
March 22, 2021 Lathrop City Council Special Meeting Agenda Page 1

CITY OF LATHROP
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

FRIDAY, MARCH 22, 2021, 6:00 P.M. 
COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL

390 Towne Centre Drive, Lathrop, CA 95330

AGENDA

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to
participate in this meeting, please contact the office of the City Clerk ( 209) 941-7230. 
Notification 48 hours prior to a meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements
to ensure accessibility to that meeting [ 28 CFR 35 .102.35.104 ADA Title II]. 

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THIS MEETING & COVID-19

On March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom proclaimed a State of Emergency in California as
a result of the threat of COVID- 19. On March 12, 2020, Governor Newsom issued
Executive Order N-25-20, which allows Council Meetings to be conducted telephonically. 
On March 17, 2020, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-29-20, which allows
for the public to participate in any meeting of the City Council by electronic means. 

This meeting is being conducted utilizing teleconferencing and electronic means
consistent with State of California Executive Order N-29-20, dated March 17, 2020, 
regarding the COVID-19 pandemic. In accordance with Executive Order N-29-20, the
public may view the meeting on television and/ or online. Council Meetings are live-
streamed on Comcast Cable Channel 97, and on the City’s website at
https:// www.ci.lathrop.ca.us/ citycouncil/ page/ live-stream

This meeting will be available for public participation by video/ teleconference via Cisco
Webex at the following link: 

Event address for attendees ( copy and paste link on browser): 

https:// cityoflathrop.webex.com/ cityoflathrop/ onstage/ g.php?MTID= e
600416cff01572da209e9349cfc7c937

Please register at the bottom of the page, at least thirty minutes ( 30 min.) prior
to the meeting.  

If you wish to participate in public comment please call-in using WebEx audio
instructions are listed when you login to WebEx) 

For audio only: + 1-408-418-9388

Event Access code: 187 898 6236

1



March 22, 2021 Lathrop City Council Special Meeting Agenda Page 2

In accordance with Executive Order N-25-20, guidance from the California Department
of Public Health on gatherings, and to protect our employees and the public, remote
public participation is allowed in the following ways: 

Public comment/ questions will be accepted by email to City Clerk Teresa Vargas
at Tvargas@ci. lathrop.ca.us or by calling ( 209) 941-7230
Questions or comments must be submitted by 4:00 p.m., on the day of the
meeting. 
During the meeting, those joining by teleconference ( Cisco Webex link listed
above), will be allowed to speak prior to the close of public comment on an item, 
and read into the record during public comment. If you are using this method, 
send a “WebEx chat” to the City Clerk ( meeting host) indicating the item number
you wish to speak on.  

All meeting materials are available electronically via the City’s website, under “ Agendas
Minutes”: https:// www.ci.lathrop.ca.us/ meetings

1. PRELIMINARY

1.1 CALL TO ORDER

1.2 ROLL CALL

1.3 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

2. CONSENT ITEMS

Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine by the City Council and will
be enacted by one motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of
these items unless the Mayor, Councilmember, or citizen so requests, in which
event the item will be removed from the Consent Calendar and considered
separately. 

2.1 WAIVING OF READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS
Waive the Reading in Full of Ordinances and Resolutions on Agenda and
Adopt by Reading of Title Only, Unless Otherwise Requested by the Mayor
or a Councilmember

2.2 APPROVE LATHROP CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY SURFACE
WATER DISCHARGE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT WW 20-17
Adopt Resolution Approving the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility
Surface Water Discharge Capital Improvement Project ( CIP) WW 20-17

2



March 22, 2021 Lathrop City Council Special Meeting Agenda Page 3

3. SCHEDULED ITEMS

3.1 APPROVE THE CREATION OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT GG 21-11 - 
CREATE THE LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT, IMPLEMENT THE
TRANSITION OF LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FROM THE COUNTY TO THE
CITY AND AUTHORIZE THE RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT
Adopt Resolution Approving the Creation of Capital Improvement Project
GG 21-11 – Create the Lathrop Police Department, Implement the
Transition of Law Enforcement Services and Authorize the Related Budget
Amendment

4. ADJOURNMENT

Teresa Vargas/ 
Teresa Vargas, CMC
City Clerk

This meeting was called by a majority of the City Council per Government Code Section 54956.5.  
Members of the public interested in addressing the City Council during this Special Meeting may
address the item(s), which have been described in the notice of this Special Meeting in accordance
with Government Code Section 54954.3(a). 

3



4



ITEM 2. 2

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

MARCH 22, 2021 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVE LATHROP CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT
FACILITY SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE CAPITAL

IMPROVEMENT PROJECT WW 20- 17

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving the Lathrop
Consolidated Treatment Facility Surface Water

Discharge Capital Improvement Project  ( CIP)  WW

20- 17

SUMMARY:

The Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility ( CTF) Surface Water Discharge Capital

Improvement Project WW 20- 17 ( Project) would establish a direct discharge of highly
treated wastewater from the City of Lathrop' s CTF to the San Joaquin River to
facilitate development consistent with the City' s General Plan.

On March 8, 2021, City Council certified the Final Environmental Impact Report ( State
Clearinghouse # 2019110339) for the proposed Project, which evaluated the potential
environmental impacts of the proposed Project and was completed in accordance with
the California Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) requirements. On March 17, 2021,

the Planning Commission adopted a resolution finding that the proposed Project is
consistent with the General Plan for the City of Lathrop.

CEQA guidelines require that after certification of the Environmental Impact Report
EIR) the responsible agency officially approve the Project. Staff is requesting City

Council adopt a resolution approving the Project.

BACKGROUND:

The Project would establish a direct discharge of highly treated wastewater from the
City of Lathrop' s CTF to the San Joaquin River to facilitate development consistent
with the City' s General Plan. The proposed Project would involve modifications to the
CTF to remove chlorine from disinfected effluent to provide for discharge of
dechlorinated effluent to the river, installation of effluent pipelines in City roadways,
and construction of a new side- bank outfall along the river.

Pursuant to CEQA requirements, the City Council held a public hearing on March 8,
2021, and adopted a resolution certifying the Environmental Impact Report ( State
Clearinghouse # 2019110339), including the Adoption of Findings of Fact, a Mitigation
Monitoring and Reporting Program,   and authorizing staff to file a Notice of
Determination ( NOD) for the Project. On March 17, 2021, the Planning Commission
adopted a resolution finding that the proposed Project is consistent with the City' s
General Plan.

5



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

MARCH 22, 2021 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING
APPROVE LATHROP CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY SURFACE WATER
DISCHARGE PRO] ECT CIP WW 20- 17

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

CEQA guidelines require that after certification of the EIR the responsible agency
officially approve the Project.  Staff is requesting City Council adopt a resolution
approving the Project.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no direct fiscal impact associated with the recommended action.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Adopt Resolution Approving the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility
Surface Water Discharge Capital Improvement Project ( CIP) WW 20- 17

B.  Final Environmental Impact Report for the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment
Facility Surface Water Discharge Project WW 20- 17, dated February 2021

C.  Findings of Fact for the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility Surface Water
Discharge Project WW 20- 17

D.  Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for the Lathrop Consolidated
Treatment Facility Surface Water Discharge Project ( SCH# 2019110339), dated

February 2021

E.   Planning Commission Resolution No. 21- 6, March 17, 2021

6



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

MARCH 22, 2021 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING
APPROVE LATHROP CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY SURFACE WATER
DISCHARGE PRO7ECT CIP WW 20- 1'

APPROVALS:

3/, ZdZ

Michael King            Date

Public Works Director

3 2c 2!

rk M iss er Date
Com unit velopment Director

g _
Cari J es Date

Finan e & Administrative Services Director

3-/  - ZO Z 

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

3•t8•2oz1
St en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

7



RESOLUTION NO. 21 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING THE LATHROP CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY

SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT ( CIP) WW

20- 17

WHEREAS, the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility ( CTF) Surface Water

Discharge Capital Improvement Project WW 20- 17 ( Project) would establish a direct

discharge of highly treated wastewater from the City of Lathrop' s CTF to the San
Joaquin River to facilitate development consistent with the City' s General Plan; and

WHEREAS,  the Project would involve modifications to the CTF to remove

chlorine from disinfected effluent to provide for discharge of dechlorinated effluent
to the river, installation of effluent pipelines in City roadways, and construction of a
new side- bank outfall along the river; and

WHEREAS,   pursuant to California Environmenta)   Quality Act   ( CEQA)

requirements,  on March 8,  2021,  the City Council held a public hearing,  and

adopted a resolution certifying the Environmental Impact Report   ( State

Clearinghouse  # 2019110339),  which is attached as Attachment " B" to the March
22, 2021 staff report and incorporated herein by this reference as though set forth
in full,  and adopted Findings of Fact and a Mitigation Monitoring Program for the
proposed Project; and

WHEREAS,  the City has evaluated the comments received from public
agencies and persons who reviewed Draft EIR ( State Clearinghouse # 2019110339)

and prepared responses to the comments received during the public review period;
and

WHEREAS, conformance with the requirements of CEQA and the State CEQA
Guidelines, and the City' s Local CEQA Guidelines, the City has prepared, or caused
to be prepared   ( a)    Findings related to Draft EIR   ( State Clearinghouse

2019110339) which are attached as Attachment ' C" to the March 22, 2021 staff

report, and incorporated herein by this reference as though set forth in full, and ( b)
a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program,  which is attached as Attachment

D" to the March 22, 2021 staff report and incorporated herein by this reference as
though set forth in full; and

WHEREAS, in conformance with Sections 15132 and 15362 ( b) of the State
CEQA Guidelines, the Final EIR ( State Clearinghouse # 2019110339) consists of the
Draft EIR   ( State Clearinghouse   # 2019110339),    all technical studies and

memoranda prepared in connection with the Draft EIR, comments on the Draft EIR,
and responses to those comments and any errata to the Draft EIR; and

WHEREAS, on March 17, 2021, the Planning Commission conducted a duly
noticed public meeting and adopted a resolution finding that the proposed Project is
consistent with the General Plan; and

8



WHEREAS,  on March 22,  2021,  the City Council conducted a duly noticed
public special council meeting to consider the proposed Project at which members
of the public were afforded an opportunity to comment upon the Project; and

WHEREAS,  as contained herein,  the City Council has endeavored in good
faith to set forth the basis for its decision on the Project; and

WHEREAS,  all the requirements of the Public Resources Code,  the State
CEQA Guidelines, and the City' s Local CEQA Guidelines have been satisfied by the
City in connection with the preparation of the Final EIR  ( State Clearinghouse

2019110339), which is sufficiently detailed so that all of the potentially significant
environmental effects of the Project, as well as feasible mitigation measures, have
been adequately evaluated; and

WHEREAS, the Final EIR ( State Clearinghouse # 2019110339),  prepared in
connection with the Project sufficiently analyzes the feasible alternatives and
mitigation measures necessary to avoid or substantially lessen the Project' s

potentially significant environmental impacts; and

WHEREAS,  the findings and conclusions made by the City Council in this
Resolution are based on the oral and written evidence presented as well as the
entirety of the administrative record for the Project, which is incorporated herein by
this reference. The findings are not based solely on the information provided in this
Resolution; and

WHEREAS,   prior to taking action,   the City Council has heard,   been

presented with,  reviewed,  and considered all of the information and data in the
administrative record,   including but not limited to the Draft EIR   ( State
Clearinghouse   # 2019110339),   Final EIR   ( State Clearinghouse   # 2019110339),

Findings, and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program, and all oral and written
evidence presented to it during all meetings and hearings; and

WHEREAS,  the Final EIR ( State Clearinghouse  # 2019110339)  reflects the

independent judgment of the City Council and is deemed adequate for purposes of
making decisions on the merits of the Project; and

WHEREAS, no comments made in the public hearing conducted on March 8,
2021 by the City Council and no additional information submitted to the City
Council have produced substantial new information requiring recirculation of the
Final EIR ( State Clearinghouse  # 2019110339)  or additional environmental review
of the Project under State CEQA Guidelines section 15073. 5; and

WHEREAS,  all other legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution
have occurred.

9



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility Surface
Water Discharge Project WW 20- 17.

SECTION 1.  RECITALS.  The City Council hereby finds that the foregoing
recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein as substantive findings of
this Resolution.

SECTION 2. COMPLIANCE WITH THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
ACT. The City hereby certifies that ( 1) the EIR has been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of CEQA ( Pub.  Res.  Code  §  21000 et seq.)  and the State
CEQA Guidelines ( 14 C. C. R.  §  15000 et seq.),  ( 2) the Final EIR was presented to
the City and the City has reviewed and considered the information contained in the
Final EIR prior to considering adoption of the Project, and ( 3) the Final EIR reflects

the independent judgment and analysis of the City.

SECTION 3. The City Council hereby adopts the CEQA Findings attached as
Attachment " C" to the March 22, 2021 staff report and incorporated herein by this
reference as if fully set forth herein.

SECTION 4.  The City Council hereby adopts,  pursuant to Public Resources

Code section 21081. 6, the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program contained
in the Final EIR and attached as Attachment D" to the March 22, 2021 staff report
and incorporated herein by this reference.  The City finds that the Mitigation
Monitoring and Reporting Program is designed to ensure that,   during the

implementation of the Project, the City and any other responsible parties implement
the components of the Project and comply with the mitigation measures identified
in the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program.

SECTION 5.  The City Council hereby finds,  based on consideration of the
whole record before it, including the City' s local CEQA Guidelines and Thresholds of
Significance,  and testimony heard at the March 8th public hearing and the March
22nd public special meeting, as follows:

1.  Review Period: The City provided a 45- day public review period for
the Draft Environmental Impact Report  ( EIR)   as required under CEQA
Guidelines Sections 15073 and 15105; and

2.   Compliance with Law:  The EIR was prepared,  processed,  and
noticed in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act ( Public
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.),  the State CEQA Guidelines  ( 14
California Code of Regulations Section 15000 et seq.)  and the City' s local
CEQA Guidelines and Thresholds of Significance; and

3. Independent Judgment: The EIR reflects the independent judgment
and analysis of the City Council and is deemed adequate for purposes of
making decisions on the merits of the Project; and

10



SECTION 6. The City Council certified the Final EIR ( State Clearinghouse No.
2019110339) on March 8, 2021.

SECTION 7.  The documents and materials that constitute the record of

proceedings on which these findings are based are located at City of Lathrop City
Hall, 390 Towne Centre Drive, Lathrop, CA 95330. The Director of Public Works is

the custodian of the record of proceedings.

SECTION 8.  The Mayor shall sign this Resolution and the City Clerk shall
attest and certify to the passage and adoption thereof.

SECTION 9.  The City Council hereby directs staff to file a Notice of
Determination with San Joaquin County within five ( 5) working days of final Project
approval.

11



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 22nd day of March 2021, by
the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FOR   :

v

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

12



ATTACHMENT B

Final Environmental Impact Report for the

Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility
Surface Water Discharge Project

State Clearinghouse No. 2019110339

t„.      a',,

3  ,»   

h2 w  ;, `           '&    `     
A

a';     ''+^"...,.   

n .

1,?, i , p 25`' X;:      t r  

a. w a .- d 
a

a

Y`,¢^ t     '' s r

4     .

b i ac7  ..

Y'`^
X"         

r,  r?+
r

A°r q

z'.
4"" ti

i i d  . N y d ivf
i,    "€- s ni, t ya' p f d ;"   e„,- r v+;. i  )'.

o     a

ytt ,   r 4      ,
1 j,.„`,

i !,  ' t.

0°-"     b; F'„
r,  `° "'    

q.% 

Prepared for

City of Lathrop

February 2021

13



Firial Environmental Impact Report for the

athrop Consotidated Treatment Facility
Surface Water Discharge Project

State Clearinghouse No. 2019110339

4   +

F,       - u

r ..    }...

4

Prepared for:

City of Lathrop
390 Towne Center Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Contact:

Michael King, PE
Public Works Director

Preparecl by:

Ascent Environmental, Inc.

455 Capitol Mall, Suite 300

Sacramento, CA 95814

Contact:

Andrea L. Shephard, PhD

Project Manager

February 2021

19010070. 05

14



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section
Page

LISTOF ABBREVIATIONS........................................................................................................................................................................... II

1 INTRODUCTION........................................................................................................................................................................
1- 1

1. 1 Purpose and Intended Uses of This Final EIR........................................................................................................... 1- 1
1. 2 Project Location..................................................................................................................................................................1- 1

1. 3 Project Background and Need..................................................................................................................................... 1- 3
1. 4 Project Objectives..............................................................................................................................................................1- 7
1. 5 Summary Description of the Project...........................................................................................................................1- 7
1. 6 Major Conclusions of the Environmental Analysis................................................................................................. 1- 8
1. 7 CEQA Public Review Process......................................................................................................................................... 1- 9
1. 8 Organization of This Final EIR..................................................................................................................................... 1- 10

2 RESPONSES TO COMMENTS.................................................................................................................................................2- 1
2. 1 List of Commenters on the Draft EIR.......................................................................................................................... 2- 1
2. 2 Comments and Responses............................................................................................................................................. 2- 1

3 REVISIONS TO THE DRAFT EIR.............................................................................................................................................. 3- 1

3. 1 Corrections and Revisions to the Draft EIR.............................................................................................................. 3- 1

4 REFERENCES..............................................................................................................................................................................
4- 1

5 LIST OF PREPARERS.................................................................................................................................................................. 5- 1

Appendices

None

Figures

Figure1- 1 Proposed Project Site....................................................................................................................................................... 1- 2

Figure 1- 2 Lathrop CTF and Manteca WQCF Service Areas in the City of Lathrop.........................................................1- 4

Figure 1- 3 Lathrop Recycled Water System Infrastructure.......................................................................................................1- 5

Tables

Table2- 1 List of Commenters...........................................................................................................................................................2- 1

City of Lathrop
a hrop CTF Surface Waier Discharge Pre; ect Final EIR

i

15



List of Abbreviations
Ascent Environmental

LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

2013 CTF IS/ MND City of Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility lnitial Study/ Mitigated Negative Dedaration
ADWF average dry weather flow

BMP best management practices

CCR California Code of Regulations

CCV California Central Valley

Central Valley RWQCB Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board
CEQA California Environmental Quality Act

City City of Lathrop

CTF Consolidated Treatment Facility
CV Centra Valley

CWA Clean Water Act

diesel PM diesel particulate matter

Draft EIR draft environmental impact report

DWQ Division of Water Quality

EFH Essential Fish Habitat

ESA federal Endangered Species Act

Final EIR final environmental impact report

HRA health risk assessment

ITMM Incidental Take Minimization Measure

LAA land application area

Ib/ day pounds per day

Manteca City of Manteca

mgd million gallons per day

NOAA- NMFS National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, National Marine Fisheries Service
NOx oxides of nitrogen

NPDES National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System

OEHHA Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment

PM, o respirable particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter of 10 micrometers or less

RBI Robertson- Bryan, Inc.

RD Reclamation District

RWQCB regional water quality control board
sDPS southern distinct population segment

SJMSCP San Joaquin County Multi- Species Habitat Conservation and Open Space Plan

City of Lathrop
ii

Lathrop CTF Surface Ulater Discharge Project Final EIR

16



Ascent Environmental List of Abbreviations

SWPPP storm water pollution prevention plan

TAC toxic air contaminants

USACE U. S. Army Corps of Engineers

USFWS U. S. Fish and Wildlife Service

WDR Waste Discharge Requirement

WQC Water Quality Certification

WQCF Water Quality Control Facility

City of Lathrop
Lathrop CTF S! rf ce lat2r Distharge Project Final EIR iii

17



List of Abbreviations
Ascent Environmental

This page intentionally left blank.

City of Lathrop
i     

Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharge Project Final EIR

18



1 INTRODUCTION

This final environmental impact report ( Final EIR) has been prepared by the City of Lathrop ( City), as lead agency, in
accordance with the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) and the State CEQA Guidelines
California Code of Regulations [ CCR] Section 15132). It contains comments received on the draft environmental

impact report ( Draft EIR) for the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility( CTF) Surface Water Discharge Project
proposed project), responses to comments on the Draft EIR, and revisions to the Draft EIR based on the comments.

In its entirety, the Final EIR consists of the Draft EIR and this document.

1 . 1 PURPOSE AND INTENDED USES OF THIS FINAL EIR

CEQA requires a lead agency that has prepared a Draft EIR to consult with and obtain comments from responsible
and trustee agencies that have jurisdiction by law with respect to the project, and to provide the public with an
opportunity to comment on the Draft EIR. The Final EIR is the mechanism for responding to these comments. This
Final EIR has been prepared to respond to comments received on the Draft EIR, which are reproduced in this
document, and to present corrections, revisions, and other clarifications to the Draft EIR made in response to these
comments and as a result of the applicant' s ongoing planning and design efforts. The Final EIR will be used to
support the City of Lathrop' s decision regarding whether to approve the proposed project.

This Final EIR will also be used by CEQA responsible and trustee agencies in support of decision making for project
elements ( e.g., permits or other approvals) over which they have jurisdiction. It may also be used by other state,
regional, and local agencies that may have an interest in resources that could be affected by the project or that have
jurisdiction over portions of the project.

Responsible, trustee, and interested agencies for the proposed project may include:
California Department of Transportation,

State Water Resources Control Board,

California Department of Fish and Wildlife,

California State Lands Commission,

Central Valley Flood Protection Board,

Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board,

Delta Stewardship Council,

Redamation District 17, and

San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District.

1 . 2 PROJECT LOCATION

Elements of the proposed project would be constructed ( 1) at the City' s existing CTF, located on 54 acres of City-
owned land at 18800 Christopher Way, Lathrop, California; ( 2) along roadways in Lathrop between the CTF and the
San Joaquin River, including Tesla Way, Harlan Road, and Inland Passage Way; and ( 3) along the right bank of the
San Joaquin River at approximately river mile 55. 8, approximately 0. 7 mile downstream of the Interstate 5 ( I- 5)
overcrossing ( Figure 1- 1).

City of Lathrop

Lathrop CTF Surface Nater Discharge Prcject Final EIR

19



Ascent Environmentai
introduction

a  :    -•,.  
e   ,

i

Cap Existing Unused Pipe Pump Station

Y=   '' 

v:„     

Existing Unused Pipe
Recyded Water Storage Pond     , '"'       

Replace Existing Pipe Emergency Storage Basin j   `"—     

r Reuse Existing Pipe Percolatio Basin
ea  <

New Treated Effluent Discharge Pipe Proposed Staging Area
x '

s,     
M New Effluent Discharge Pipe Levee Crossing Raii Line r.

New Outfall lathrop City Limits
j       ;`  -

i

Q Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility( CTF)    
f i 2'

l    ' i"", ,

Lathrop CTF Treatment and Disinfection
System

a,,,.---      

s'
m   , C$ 4,:   e:.   o   -`  ,.

s,  .«

y
x   .$       ':,,."'^,

nwlRi A....^+""` 

t   , •
a' v.    .       

s t   .,  
4

A   $:
t t2''  -      1'     ,       

T"     +'

Yc'* sti d t a             , 

ac '+ w."'.  -'  .„,.  £    p.       
S  .      ,    

il' l'  ;,'.,   a          .     
yg,.„    

y, "`  ,  ; a .     i    e  "
g 

x.    
a_.    

d` sm    
D    ',,., q

t     ,

P       w,;,  A cY   
ti        p+'  a, v r,               ` 1    `  h

a m
n     j               

o,,
w       '`    ,  ,,     , `     

s
fi

s',.., v„,e»+ ,"    `
d    v, ,

r   w     ,       e:
o

n, s 

e s

Y* y  .{ i

Y,..,„ ' 1'
eawr'    

S^ c'     .    

Qx t"       i
5

a*   . lt'   d

N b
m

ro okF.r r Biv Z PB 1     'd .  .    
a p        

y 4
k ±^.'+"   n

t-
Y`

E'."   

M w

w..    
P

k

q,    W,      .  

6,r" i.. 5£ .+ a
y    S     

A
ha°. a' 3,   

x 2 t Pt si

Y    V 

pip P

P;
r,

q.   

sto('    
I

F '   ,      

a'

i$      
4

a .;,    . ac.,,   

a.     

W-=_`    ,       

y     { 
n

o  
p`- ?   S3       ,

x      O' ; w          Crossroads Pum  , tatio          _ 55 ,.
d..

o ,    
t

i,'r cr ,,  '  a    „ r      
w •     ,.>'      `

r^.

9      ,   -       e
rr

s,

n''^' 3 y wp     2    
5      

V

z        P e
o..   ^"+

g;` Az    

eSader Oak Dr C os

o _       Z p` g PM P- 1 Pump. Station
yr r y

3
y  1 w'

i
w

A

W

Existing Chlorine Contad Basin
d` Exit. Structure with New

ry  

t" '      Dechlorination Station

U P R R I
f

t

Q      £...;+%'*   "..,,...      

wr       .      - u. . ,-   

M1   b .
e l, a AI

M

tt.°: M t: i+7R 3'/`       

pQ :
f       ..  

a. r" 

ti

n'+"' 

jm'"•. * n    .          

i

k e.    ifi'      y     y
a

t'
n

w'

i+ae  ..
g'°      ti

g  
n,,'       

i5

2. a

j .,,-.  .°    .,,. "' a'"     Y;  °'   ; '   
f',

x  
r`    X` d " a i

v r

Y    

i

0 600 1, 200       i         
w*   ., '  

t      

3{
FEET p„'   

i in= 1, 250 ff f M 7
ESRI World Imagery

19010070.02 GIS 004 s M^"'R A
r      

Source: Data received from EKI and adapted by Ascent Environmental in 2020

Figure 1- 1 Proposed Project Site

City of Lathrop

Z Lathrop CTF SuT face 4 Jater Dis har e Project Final EIR

20



Ascent Environmenta)  Introduction

1 . 3 PROJECT BACKGROUND AND NEED

Wastewater from the City of Lathrop is treated at two separate facilities: the City of Manteca ( Manteca) Water Qua ity
Control Facility ( WQCF) and the CTF. The Manteca WQCF treats most of the wastewater generated in the City east of
I- 5 and north of Louise Avenue, and the CTF treats domestic and a relatively small amount of commercial wastewater
from the master planned communities in the western portion of the City and commercial and industrial wastewater
from the Crossroads Commercial Center area, South Lathrop, and Lathrop Gateway Business Park ( Figure 1- 2).
Treated wastewater effluent from the Manteca WQCF is primarily disposed of by discharge into the San Joaquin River
at river mile 57. Treated wastewater effluent from the CTF is stored in aboveground lined ponds and used for public
landscape and agricultural irrigation in the City or disposed of in a percolation basin ( Figure 1- 3).

The CTF produces treated effluent that meets the requirements for disinfected tertiary recycled water in accordance
with Title 22 of the CCR ( Title 22, Division 4, Chapter 3). CTF effluent disposal and reuse is regulated by the Central
Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board ( Central Valley RWQCB) under Waste Discharge Requirements ( WDRs)
and Master Recycling Permit Order No. R5- 2016- 0028- 01. Under the WDRs, the City may store disinfected tertiary
treated CTF effluent in aboveground lined storage ponds before pumping it to the distribution system for irrigation
of agricultural land application areas ( LAAs) and public landscape areas and disposal in a percolation basin ( PB- 1).

The CTF has an existing design treatment capacity of 2. 5 million gallons per day ( mgd) average dry weather flow
ADWF), and the recycled water system provides about 666 mi lion gallons per year of disposal capacity, or

approximately 1. 69 mgd ADWF via application to nine agricultural LAAs and the various public landscaping areas
throughout River Islands, and disposal in PB- 1. Therefore, the CTF' s maximum discharge capability is limited by the
currently permitted disposal capacity of 1. 69 mgd ADWF ( Central Valley RWQCB 2019). Lathrop has the right to 14.7
percent of the existing Manteca WQCF capacity by contract with Manteca, which is 1. 45 mgd. Manteca is reserving its
remaining capacity to serve future development in itsjurisdiction.

The Lathrop General Plan designates most of the agricultural LAAs and all the storage ponds except 55 and S16 for
commercial, residential, or urban development ( Figure 1- 3) ( EKI 2019a). Retaining this land for effluent storage and
disposal would prevent development of the properties in accordance with the general plan land use designations.
However, the influent ADWF rate at buildout in the CTF service area is projected to be 5. 2 mgd ( EKI 2019b) and
effluent production at the CTF, during the low- irrigation/ nonirrigation months of October through April in particular,
is projected to exceed the City' s available land- based effluent storage, reuse, and disposal capacity( RBI 2019: 13- 14).

Therefore, the City is proposing to establish a direct discharge of CTF- generated and dechlorinated disinfected,
tertiary treated effluent to the San Joaquin River for use when generation of treated CTF effluent exceeds the capacity
of the City' s recycled water system to store and reuse treated effluent for landscape irrigation. Most of the CTF

effluent discharged to the San Joaquin River would be discharged during winter, when irrigation demands are low
and river flow is relatively high, and less would be discharged during the irrigation season, when reuse of CTF
recycled water would be maximized for landscape irrigation. This approach would allow land designated in the

Lathrop General Plan for urban uses to be developed in accordance with the plan.

The City intends to obtain an initial National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System ( NPDES) permit to discharge up
to 2. 5 mgd ADWF of dechlorinated treated effluent( current ADWF treatment capacity of the CTF) to the San Joaquin
River. However, because CTF influent flows are currently projected to be 5. 2 mgd at buildout based on the adopted
General Plan and could be as high as 6 mgd based on proposed General Plan amendments, the analysis in the Draft
EIR evaluates the environmental impacts of wastewater generation and discharge of up to 2. 5 and 5. 2 mgd ADWF to
the San Joaquin River under the proposed project, and considers the incremental contribution of future cumulative
wastewater generation and discharge to the San loaquin River of up to 6 mgd ADWF.

The Draft EIR is tiered from, and incorporates by reference, the City of Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility Initial
Study/ Mitigated Negative Decfaration ( 2013 CTF IS/ MND) (City of Lathrop 2013), consistent with Section 15152 of the
State CEQA Guidelines and Public Resources Code Section 21094. The 2013 CTF IS/ MND provides project- level CEQA
authorization for expansion of the CTF treatment capaciry from 3. 0 mgd to 6. 0 mgd and program- level CEQA
authorization for an additional 3. 1 mgd of treatment capacity, for a total capacity of 9. 1 mgd at the CTF. This EIR
incorporates by reference the project- level environmental analysis of the CTF expansion, and applicable mitigation

measures identified in the 2013 CTF IS/ MND. The impacts of constructing and operating the proposed dechlorination
system, effluent pipeline, and outfall are the focus of this EIR.

City of Lathrop

Lathrop CTf S nface Water Discharge Pr ject Final EIR 3

21



Introduction Ascent Environmental

p. e.     
A Manteca Water Quality Control Facility Historic Lathrop infill and

e """    `   `- „ 

Project Footprint Other Developments
w

Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility Lathrop Gateway Business Park

Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility Sewer Service Area  [__;; Mossdale Landing
1

Manteca Water Qualiry Control Facility Sewer Service Area Mossdale Landing East

City Limits C,: Mossdale Landing South r    . y         

Development Areas River Isiands

L._ .._.,

a

j Central Lathrop Specific Plan Sharpe Army Depot QP 

0 Crossroads Commercial Center 1 South lathro Specific Plan
r

c      j       ,  «   ° ` 3
a    ,  ,     

q

R`T. :     ' , rP Y3i.      j t      , d?Wi§ kp 1 .';"
z t' "

3n p       S"ut

k 
i t

kd' e: tdt`  S!y'  h,` l.
s'    ...{ N,,,,

e, r,,  
3  '   9t."     

No cr: c! rcu i      
g

1 g': v°     a i A p

I

4 Y'  4 a ixr     Say';,   
k  i :'     P       *

i      .      
1. 

f

AM,      '' Yo r
r a  fr    

Y :.   ..    n   _„ ._...     

6  `.

p     9            

Ia(;". q,.'"    v   

k

9
m

r  , , ;    ' o       t      -       - — -  

t      =      t

tM, u c R, ,t..

ts        a a

i;      
s

o
q

e t'`   

1
P

t`, y zs        
s!     

r_     LaYhrop Rd  
z  

xj     
r.    

t/

t,,;,.,`  f        

a.!

t  ,.-    #' 

r. /       )  ri-   "

a

7;   

j:`  „  Fi -:-•.; I  '.
a}   l.  .. 6     '     

A X,... w, '"`

LOU15E' faVe"   ...   

f Y      .    ._
l C w>

f `  ..`       
LATHROP

f

l) Sf l ilt / L(' p

e
k

i  .
t u

r
3            ia

a

ri

x       ' 

J
I   ,       

4
q

i br h b+E      ",   4.,. a.
v

q i°     ,  3".'N !  

4   }      }      

3

B
4£^ 

x
A,

r s ,     
e r'       `  ; j   ' 

r,    w       ,      p     
r">   r    r}      

l'— - _    i

ar  t  "
s  et        .     1

u

1'( R            r
w      

z  , 1       

ii  "

Y`.
g'    x'`, t  ' '`." s       2  .»

a    .,,,   

a: ": t' t    
4 e 3,:       

f
F

r
S ut,; 

t,.     , t       `
o-, #",         ,

m   e x

Q

u s,'

cl S'` L.,,,..         
k,    4n t

t--~~';^

d.`
F,     a 0 3, 500 7, 000      '

jvs h

rp E 
y, yah            

r  s
FEET   

u;     

r*= , 
rr

L
V   ;

r„'   

f
i      , 

Y+       '  ' 5y ..

V.. N i# 1 i "       
itt3              F; RI World Imagery 19010070. 05 GIS 002

3 , 
1 ...  .     .. d ':.,..._ .. s a` 3

t     ,
oY_ ..._....   ', v...m...`....,.. a``....' ..

Source: Adapted by Ascent Environmental in 2020

Figure 1- 2 Lathrop CTF and Manteca WQCF Service Areas in the City of Lathrop

City of Lathrop
1- 4

Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharge Project Final EIR

22



o  __

V

I Z

vb,,,

M 1 odny
a

M uod iy
e Q

z Q
o h c'

c
S

q--.   
m 

i         1

jI I
any. lal' Y2b       

I

L a
i      

r--.  '^     

s

Na U

a

a a

u

I
a

a
Y  n

lDn Itdp o9a
N

I
f.: y  ,      4

I
J r. i

4;  

16
J

1

o       ,, .
a j

g       ;.
o

ti,_  

i
r

a  .

i,.._     
t

E           aa

j
N  _

t a/,
i Vtl st aqob

i
t     i a

I
r j};

a..   

ri`.'  

ti

1;
i'

y    ama
I

Narp
y    

o

l
i ., i.

itn.,`  i

i

i
I

I 1
v

i
i L         

a m yu y oh Y
i.;

ow

v'i

y

v
E    

o

wI t'     
a a l i,
a lJ

a"i    -
J c

n o
o ic  o N o   ' 

g,'  w
a

a    =

a a m _ ' o y       c.
o'   « n P^ 79 tiai1

a
n W _ a p I

L

U   6 A„  j      ' O   ...  p 0

O   (      I    o
Y

Y n W °   _     '^  N
O

0 2 A' A a °'
3 3 -    .-  3 °      a

o ° 
o O

a   °    

o
ry'    

n a      "-' " 
a f 3   a`   

i,         u

L
a j@ P  s  & 8

J

n .( o    

o W

uI I 7  I   ';...0 O      s    a  a P 18 1
s P i

a c
o oi    '_

23



Ascent Environmental Introduction

1 . 4 PROJECT OBJECTIVES

The proposed project has the following objectives:

Provide for planned City buildout and development based on the City' s General Plan by providing effluent
discharge to the San Joaquin River.

Provide efficient and cost- effective wastewater services through buildout of the City.

Maximize use of recycled water in the City presently and in the future.

1 . 5 SUMMARY DESCRIPTION OF THE PROJECT

The proposed project involves modifications to the CTF, installation of effluent pipelines, and construction of an
effluent pipeline levee crossing and outfall structure ( Figure 1- 1). These elements of the proposed project are
summarized below and described in detail in Chapter 2 of the Draft EIR.

1 . 5. 1 CTF modifications ( to Support 2. 5- mgd Surface Water

Discharge)

The CTF uses chlorine to provide disinfection of treated effluent for discharge to the LAAs. However, effluent
proposed to be discharged to the San Joaquin River would require dechlorination before discharge to be compliant
with an NPDES permit and to avoid adverse effects on aquatic species. Therefore, to allow continued distribution of
chlorinated CTF effluent for recycled water use, as well as discharge of dechlorinated CTF effluent to the San Joaquin

River when effluent flows exceed demand for recycled water, the City is proposing to implement the following
wastewater treatment system modifications:

use of sodium bisulfite for dechlorination;

use of Storage Ponds A, B, and C to cool final effluent before river discharge, as needed;

installation of new connections between Pond S5 and PMP- 1 and the Crossroads Pump Station;

installation of new pipelines, valves, monitoring equipment, and controls at the Crossroads Pump Station; and

connection of the Crossroads Pump Station to a new dedicated effluent discharge pipeline to pump
dechlorinated effluent to the river.

1 . 5. 2 Effluent Discharge Pipeline ( to Support 2. 5- mgd and Buildout

Surface Water Discharge)

The proposed project requires a dedicated effluent discharge pipeline connecting the Crossroads Pump Station at
the CTF to a new outfall along the San Joaquin River. The City would install a pipeline sufficiently sized to convey and
discharge effluent associated with general plan buildout ( see Figure 1- 1), including the following modifications:

installation of a new effluent discharge pipeline from the Crossroads Pump Station at the CTF along Tesla Way to
its intersection with Harlan Road and continuing south along Harlan Road to approximately 30 feet north of the
turnaround adjacent to I- 5, which would require crossing a rail spur line along Tesla Way and capping an existing
pipeline adjacent to Murphy Parkway upstream of its intersection with Tesla Way;

reuse of an existing steel pipe crossing under the freeway from Harlan Road to Sadler Oak Drive and continuing
along Sadler Oak Drive to its intersection with Inland Passage Way;

installation of new effluent discharge pipeline from Sadler Oak Drive north along Inland Passage Way and then
continuing to the toe of the Reclamation District( RD) 17 ( evee; and

City of Lathrop

Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharge ProjPct Final EIR 1- 7

24



Introduction Ascent Environmental

installation of a new valve system to a low manual diversion of stagnant water in the discharge pipeline to the
Mossdale sewer system for return to the CTF headworks following periods of no discharge to the river.

1 . 5. 3 Levee Crossing and Outfall Structure ( to Support 2. 5- mgd and

Buildout Surface Water Discharge)

The proposed CTF outfall would be located along the right bank of the San Joaquin River on the waterside of an existing
State Plan of Flood Control and Federal Flood Control Project levee maintained by RD 17. Construction of the proposed
effluent pipeline across the levee and the new side- bank outfall would involve the following:

installation of a new welded steel pressurized pipe in an approximately 16- foot- wide trench excavated through

the levee seepage berm and levee prism above the 200- year water surface elevation from the levee toe to the
proposed outfall on the waterside of the levee;

extension of the new pipe to the river, and construction of a new concrete- encased outfall structure below the
mean lower low water level and above the channel bed of the San Joaquin River at approximately river mile 55. 8
to create a new side- bank outfall; the elevation of the pipe at the outfall location would be set to ensure discharge

of effluent sufficiently low to achieve adequate mixing with river water such that an increase in ambient surface
water temperature of no more than 4 degrees Fahrenheit would be observed at any time during the year; and

installation of erosion protection materiai ( e.g., articulated concrete block, riprap) above and below the headwall
and extending upstream and downstream of the outfall to prevent scour.

1 . 5. 4 Project Operations

Operation of the proposed project would use the newly automated CTF system to control the effluent river discharge
and maximize reuse using the recycled water distribution system. In summer, during peak demand for recycled water,
chlorinated effluent would flow by gravity to Pond S5 and be used to supply the recycled water system. In late summer
or early fall, when recycled water demands decrease, the Crossroads Pump Station would be activated as needed to
discharge dechlorinated effluent in excess of recycled water demand to the river, which would allow water levels in the

ponds to be lowered. During winter, when CTF inflow generally exceeds irrigation demand and river water temperatures

are lower, most of the effluent would be dechlorinated, held temporarily in Ponds A, B, and C, or a subset of these, as
needed, to provide effluent cooling, and then discharged via the Crossroads Pump Station to the river through the new
effluent discharge pipe network. In spring, when minimum pond level setpoints are raised to maximize recycled water
storage and reuse again, discharge of dechlorinated effluent to the river would be reduced, and chlorinated effluent

would be directed from the chlorine contact basins to fill storage ponds in the recycled water system.

Implementing the proposed project would not require any changes to staffing at the CTF or to power,
telecommunications, gas, water supply, recycled water distribution, or sewer infrastructure in the near term.

1 . 6 MAJOR CONCLUSIONS OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS

As summarized in Table ES- 1, " Summary of Environmental Effects of the Alternatives Relative to the Proposed
Project," in the " Executive Summary" chapter of the Draft EIR, construction and/ or operation of the proposed project
would have the potential to cause the following significant but miti_ca ble environmental impacts. After mitigation,
none of the impacts would remain significant, and there would be no significant and unavoidable impacts from the

proposed project:

1 . 6. 1 Air Quality
Impact 3. 2- 1: Result in Short- Term Emissions of Criteria Air Pollutants and Precursors

City of Lathrop
1- 8 Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharge Project Fin l EIR

25



Ascent Environmental Ir iroduction

1 . 6. 2 Terrestrial Biological Resources

Impact 3. 3- 1: Cause Disturbance to or Loss of Valley Elderberry Longhorn Beetle

Impact 3. 3- 2: Cause Disturbance to or Loss of Western Pond Turtle

Impact 3. 3- 3: Cause Disturbance to or Loss of Swainson' s Hawk, White- Tailed Kite, Cooper' s Hawk, Sharp-
Shinned Hawk, and Other Nesting Raptors

Impact 3. 3- 4: Cause Disturbance to or Loss of Loggerhead Shrike, California Horned Lark, and Other Nesting Birds

Impact 3. 3- 5: Cause Disturbance to or Loss of Riparian Brush Rabbit

Impact 3. 3- 6: Cause Disturbance and Loss of Waters of the United States and State

Impact 3. 3- 7: Cause Disturbance to or Loss of Riparian Habitat

1 . 6. 3 Aquatic Biological Resources

Impact 3. 4- 2: Cause Direct Fish Injury or Mortality during Construction Resulting in Impacts on Fish Populations

1 . 6. 4 Cultural, Tribal Cultural, and Paleontological Resources

Impact 3. 5- 2: Cause a Substantial Adverse Change in the Significance of Archaeological Resources

Impact 3. 5- 3: Cause a Substantial Adverse Change in the Significance of a Tribal Cultural Resource

Impact 3. 5- 4: Disturb Human Remains

1 . 6. 5 Hazards and Hazardous Materials

Impact 3. 8- 1: Create a Significant Health Hazard from the Routine Transport, Use, or Disposal of Hazardous

Materials, Including Reasonably Foreseeable Upset or Accidents

1 . 7 CEQA PUBLIC REVIEW PROCESS

On October 21, 2020, the City released the Draft EIR for a 45- day public review and comment period. The Draft EIR
was submitted to the State Clearinghouse for distribution to reviewing agencies, it was posted on the City' s website
https:// www. ci. lathrop. ca. us/ com- dev/ page/ public- review- documents), and a computer disk or thumb drive

containing a copy of the document was made available upon request. A notice of availability of the Draft EIR was
published in the Manteca Bulletin and distributed by the City to a project- specific mailing list.

A public meeting was held on November 17, 2020, from 5: 30 pm. to 6: 30 p. m., to receive input from agencies and the
public on the Draft EIR. The meeting was recorded and made available on the City' s website at

https:// www. ci. lathrop. ca. us/ meetings. No one from the public provided oral comments at the public meeting.

As a result of these notification efforts, written comments were received from one federal agency and several state
and regional agencies on the content of the Draft EIR. Chapter 2, " Responses to Comments," of this Final EIR

identifies these commenting parties, their respective comments, and responses to these comments. None of the

comments received, or the responses provided, constitute " significant new information" by CEQA standards ( State
CEQA Guidelines CCR Section 15088. 5).

City of Lathrop
Lathrop CTF S! irface Nlater Discharge Project Final EIR 1- 9

26



Introduction Ascent Environmental

1 . 8 ORGANIZATION OF THIS FINAL EIR

This Final EIR is organized as follows:

Chapter 1, " Introduction," describes the purpose of this Final EIR, summarizes the proposed project and the major
conclusions of the Draft EIR, provides an overview of the CEQA public review process, and describes the content
ofthe Final EIR.

Chapter 2, " Responses to Comments," contains a list of all parties who submitted comments on the Draft EIR

during the public review period, copies of the comment letters received, and responses to the comments.

Chapter 3, " Revisions to the Draft EIR," presents revisions to the Draft EIR text made in response to comments or

to amplify, clarify, or otherwise make minor modifications or corrections. Changes in the text are signified by
where text is removed and by underline where text is added.

Chapter 4, " References," identifies the documents used as sources for the analysis.

Chapter 5," List of Preparers," identifies the lead agency contacts, as well as the preparers of this Final EIR.

City of Lathrop
1- 10 Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharge Project Final EfR

27



2 RESPONSES TO COMMENTS

This chapter contains comment letters received during the public review period for the Draft EIR, which concluded on
December 4, 2020. No oral comments were provided during the November 17, 2020, public meeting. In conformance
with Section 15088( a) of the State CEQA Guidelines, written responses were prepared addressing comments on
environmental issues received from reviewers of the Draft EIR.

2. 1 LIST OF COMMENTERS ON THE DRAFT EIR

A total of eight letters containing comments on the Draft EIR were received from public agencies. No comments were
received from members of the public or from nongovernmental organizations. Table 2- 1 presents the list of

commenters, including the numerical designation for each comment letter received, the author of the comment
letter, and the date of the comment letter.

Table 2- 1 List of Commenters

Letter Number Commenting Agency Date

1 San Joaquin Council of Governments( SJCOG) November 9, 2020

Laurel Boyd, Associate Habitat Planner

2 Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board( Central Valley RWQCB)  November 16, 2020

Nicholas White, Water Resource Control Engineer

3 Delta Stewardship Council( DSC)     December 1, 2020

Jeff Henderson, AICP, Deputy Executive Officer

4 State Water Resources Control Board( SWRCB) December 1, 2020

Cedric Irving, Environmental Scientist

5 California Department of Transportation( Caltrans)    December 2, 2020

Tom Dumas, Chief

6 California State Lands Commission( CSLC)    December 3, 2020

Nicole Dobroski, Chief

7 National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, National Marine Fisheries Service( NOAA- NMFS)     December 4, 2020

Erin Strange, San Joaquin River Branch Chief

8 San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District( SIVAPCD)    December 10, 2020

Arnaud Marjollet, Director of Permit Services

2. 2 COMMENTS AND RESPONSES

Written comments received on the Draft EIR and the responses to those comments are provided below. The
comment letters are reproduced in their entirety and are followed by the response( s). Where a commenter has

provided multiple comments, each comment is indicated by a line bracket and an identifying number in the margin
of the comment letter corresponding to the response.

City of Lathrop

Lathrop CTF Surface^ later Discharge Project Final FIR 2- 1

28



Responses to Comments Ascent Environmental

S J C O G, Inc.      Letter

1

S l:ast Weber Avenue• Stckkton, CA 452( Y1•( 2l) 235-( 1600• FAX( 209) 235- IH3E3

Sasi Joaq in County Multi- Species HaMtat Cm scrvatimi Open Space Platt( SJMSCP)

SJMSCP RESPONSE TO LOCAL) URISDICTION{ RTLJ)
ADVISORY AGENCY NOTICE TO SJCOG, Inc.

To:       Mic ael Kng, City of Lathrop, Public Worics

From:    Laurel Boyd, SJCOG, Inc.

Date:     November 9, 2020

Local Jurisdiction Project Title: NQA of a DEIR for the Lathrop CTF Surface Water Disd arge Project

Assessor Parcel Number( s):    198-210- 14,- 19,- 21

Local Jurisdiction Project Number:     State Clearinghous 2019110339

Total Acres to be converted from Open Space Use: Unknown

Habitat Types to be Disturbed:  Urban, Agriculture, Multi- Purpose Open Space and Natural Habitat Land

Species Impact Findings:     Findings to be determined by SJMSCP biologist.

Dear Mr. King:

SJCOG, Inc. has reviewed the Notice of Availability of a Draft Environmental Report for the Lathrop CTF Surtace Water
Discharge Project. This project consists of establishing a direct discharge of highly treated wastewater from its CTF to the
San Joaquin River. Currently, recycled water generated at the CTF is stored in ponds and used for urban and agricultural
irrigation.  With implementation of the proposed project, the majority of CTF effluent would be discharged to the San
Joaquin River during the winter, when irrigation demands are low and river flow is relatively high, and less would be 1- 1

discharged during the irrigation season, when reuse of CTF recycled water would be maximized for landscape irrigation.
The approach would allow existing storage ponds and land application areas designated for urban uses to be developed
in accordance with the City of Lathrop General Plan. The project site is located east and west of Interstate 5 and north of
State Route 120, Lathrop.

The City of Lathrop is a signatory to San Jaaquin County Multi- Species Habitat Conservation and Open Space Plan
SJMSCP). Participation in the SJMSCP satisfies requirements of both the state and federal endangered species acts,

and ensures that the impacts are mitigated below a level of significance in compliance with the California Environmental

Quality Act( CEQA). The LOCAL JURISDICTIQN retains responsibility for ensuring# hat the appropriate Incidental Take 1- 2

Minirnization Measure are properly implemented and monitored and that appropriate fees are paid in compliance with the
SJMSCP. Although participation in the SJMSCP is voluntary, Local JurisdictionlLead Agencies should be aware that if
project applicants choose against participating in the SJMSCP, they will be required to provide alternative mitigation in an
amount and kind equal to that provided in the SJMSCP.

Thls ProJecf! s subject to ihe SJMSCP. This can be up to a 30 day process and it is recommended that the project
applicant contact SJMSCP staff as early as possible. It is also recommended that the project applicant obtain an 1- 3

information package. nttn: i www. sj c. orq

Please contact SJMSCP staff regarding completing the following steps to satisfy SJMSCP requirements:

Schedule a SJMSCP Biologist to perform a pre- construction survey prior to any ground disturbance

SJMSCP Incidental take Minimization Measures and mitigation requirement:

1.  Incidental Take Minimi ntioa Measures( ITMMs} avill be issued o the projecl and nmsl 6e si¢ ned by hz projeci applicant prior u un}
gruund disturbance bui no tatcr( h n six ti) manths from reccipt of the fI MMs. 1( CCMMs arc no signed µilhin six months, lhr applicant

1
mu, t reapply tix S, IMtiC P Cuvcragc. lJpcm rcc; cipt of signvd ITMMs from prujcet applicant SJC( Xi, Inc. nlaffwill sign thc I PMMs. This
is the eflective date of the ITMMs.

2.   Under no circumstance shall; round disturbance occur without compliance and satisfaction of[ hz ITMMs.
3.  Upon issuance otfidly executed 1TMNLs and prior ro am ground dis urbance, the pmject applicant must:

a.   Post a Mind fur paymcnt of thc appliwblc S.IMSCP fcc suvcrine thc cntircty of thc pnijc 4 acroagc tming cuvcn:d( thc bond
should be valid 1'or no bneer than a 6 mon h period j; or

b.   Pay the appropriate SJMS( 7P fee for the entireg of the projcct ttcrcage bcing covered; or
c.   Ikdicate land in- licu of fus. ziiher a, conserva iun easements nr fee itle: or

City of Lathrop
2- Z I athrop CTF Sta face Water Discharge Project Fin l EIR

29



Ascent Environmenta)      Responses to Comments

2 SJC( G ,  Inc .

d.  Purchase approved mitigation ba ik credits.

4.   Within 6 months from thc ctlectivc datc of thc I' I' MMs or issuancc of u building permit,+ hichcvcr nccurs tirst, ffic projcct applicant must:
a.   Pay the appropriate SJMSCP for the entirety of the project acrea, e bein covered; or

1- 4
h.  Ucdicah: land in- licu of fi;cx. cithcr as conscmation caunxnts or fcc titic_ or

c.   Purchasn approved mitigation bank credits.  C011t.

1' ailurc to satisfy the oMigxtions of thc mitigation fi.: nhall subjcct thc txmd to hc cxllcd.

Receive your Certificate of Payment and release the required permit

t shou d be noted that if this project has any poten6at r'mpacts to wafers of the UniteU States( pursuant ro Sect+on 40a Gean water actj, it woutd require
the projecf to seek votuntary coverage fhrough the unmapped process under fhe SJMSCP which couJd take up fo 90 days. It may 6e pru0enf to obtain a
pre! lmrnary weNands map from a quafiTed cortsuRant. tf waters of the United States are confirmed ort ihe project site, fhe Corps and the Reqional Water 1- 5

Quality Control8oaid( RWQCB} woufd have regularory authority over those mapped areas( pursuant to Section 404 and 401 of the Clearr Wafer Act
respectivelyJ and permits xrould be required trom each of these resource agencres piior to grading the project site.

If you have any questions, please call( 209) 235- 0600.

City of Lathrop
Lathrop CTF Surface Nater Discharge Project Final EIR 2- 3

30



Responses to Comments Ascent Environmental

3 SJC; OG ,  Inc .

S JCOG, Inc.
Snn Joaquifr Coarrty llr lti-S c•ie3 Hnbitczt Con en utzorr' Oper Spacc Plan

555 East W eber Avenue Stockton, CA 95202( 209) 235- 0600• FAX{ 209) 23- 0438

SJMSCP HOLD

TO:       Local Jurisdiction: Communitv Develoament Department. Pianninp Deoartment Buildin9
Deoartment. Enqineerinq Department. Survev Denartment. Transportation Department.
Other:

FROM:    Laurel Boyd, SJCOG, Inc.

L '   L 3# i ' I

P£" IS J    F 3 ES PR J`

The landownerldevelaper for this site has requested coverage pursuant to the San Joaquin County Multi-
Species Habitat Conservation and Open Space Plan( SJMSCP). In accordance with that agreement, the
Applicant has agreed to:

1)    SJMSCP Incidental Take Minimization Measures and mitigation requirement:

1.  Incidental Take Minimization Measures( iTMMs) will be issued to the project and mus t br siened by the
projec,- t applicant prior to tmy ground ctisturbance but nu later than six( 6) months frc m recript of the ITMMs.
ff tTMMs are nc t signed within six months, the xpplicant must reapply for SJMSCP Coverage. Upon recei t
of siened[ TMMs tinm project applicant, S,I(: OCi. Inc, staft' µ ill si n th ITMMs. Thiti is the effectioe date
of the TTl f1 4s.

2.  l. nder no circumstance sha11 ground disturbunce accur without complixnce and 5atisfaction of' the ITNiMs,
3.  lipou issuance of full}' executed I Ci19Ms and prior to any ground dishvbance, the project applicant must:      1- 6

a. Yost ii bond for paymcnt ol' hc: pplicablc SJMSCP fcc covcring thc cntirctti of thc projcct acrcagc

bcing covercd{ the bond shoul i bc valid for no longer tlian a G uionth period); or

b. Ya}' the appropriate SJMSCP fee for the entirzq• of the project acreaee being cocered; or
a Dedicate land in- lieu of fees, eitlier as conserv atioa essemenu or fee title; or

d. Purcl ase approved mitigation bank credits.

4.  Within 6 months from thc effucti e daLc ol' th ITMMs or issuance of a heiilding pu mit, vhichever occurs
irst, hcproj tapplicantmuct:

a. Pay thc appropriatc SJ' 1SC: P I' or lhc cntircty of thc proja: t acrcagc l ing co- crcd: or
b. Dedicute land in- I ieu o1' fees, either as conservatiun easements or fee tiUe: or
c. Purchasc approvcd miligalion bank crcdits.

Pailuro to satisl' y thc obligation, ol' thc miti alion Ccc shall subjcc thc bond to bc callcd.
a ;     

Project Title: NOA of a DEIR for the Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharqe Proiect

Assessor Parcel# s: Multiplz

T R       , Section( s):

Local Jurisdiction Contact: Michael Kinq

The LOCAL JURISDICTION retains responsibility for ensuring that the appropriate
Incidental Take Minimization Measures are properly implemented and monitored and that
apprapriate fees are paid in compliance with the SJMSCP.

City of Lathrop
2- 4 Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharge Project Fina! EIR

31



Ascent Environmental Responses to Comments

Letter 1 San Joaquin Council of Governments

Laurel Boyd, Associate Habitat Planner

November 9, 2020

1- 1 The comment provides introductory remarks summarizing the elements of the proposed project. This
comment is acknowledged. Because no specific comment on the adequacy, accuracy, or completeness of the

Draft EIR is provided, no further response is necessary.

1- 2 The comment describes the San loaquin County Multi- Species Habitat Conservation and Open Space Plan
SJMSCP) and its purpose and discusses the responsibilities of the local jurisdiction with regard to

participation in the SJMSCP.

The City is an SJMSCP signatory and would participate in the plan to obtain federal Endangered Species Act
ESA) take coverage for impacts of the proposed project on valley elderberry longhorn beetle, as described

in Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 1a: Seek Coverage under the SJMSCP. In addition, the City will implement

Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 1b: Conduct Survey for and Protect Valley Elderberry Longhorn Beetle; Mitigation
Measure 3. 3- 2: Conduct Western Pond Turtle Preconstruction Survey and Relocation; Mitigation Measure
3. 3- 3: Protect Swainson' s Hawk, White- Tailed Kite, Cooper' s Hawk, Sharp- Shinned Hawk, and Other Nesting
Raptors; Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 4: Protect Loggerhead Shrike, California Horned Lark, and Other Nesting
Birds; and Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 7: Minimize and Compensate for the Loss of Riparian Habitat. These

mitigation measures are consistent with the Incidental Take Minimization Measures ( ITMMs) provided in the
SJMSCP for these species.

The project is located within 300 feet of occupied habitat for riparian brush rabbit; however, because the
SJMSCP does not provide a mitigation mechanism for loss of potential habitat for riparian brush rabbit, the
City will not use the SJMSCP to obtain take coverage for this species. However, consultation with the U. S. Fish
and Wildlife Service ( USFWS) under the ESA and with the California Department of Fish and Wildlife will

occur to obtain the required incidental take authorizations for this species. In addition, the City will
implement Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 5: Protect Riparian Brush Rabbit to avoid take of individual riparian brush

rabbits by the project.

The SJMSCP does not cover all fish species potentially affected by the project; therefore, consultation with
USFWS and NOAA- NMFS will also occur to obtain the required incidental take authorizations for Delta smelt,

green sturgeon, Central Valley( CV) steelhead, CV spring- run chinook salmon, and Sacramento River winter- run
chinook salmon. The Ciry will also implement Mitigation Measure 3. 4- 2: Conduct Fish Rescue and Relocation
Operation to avoid and minimize the impact of the project on these and other special- status fish species.

The City acknowledges that as the local planningjurisdiction, it is responsible for ensuring that appropriate
ITMMs are properly implemented and monitored and that the appropriate fees are paid in compliance with
the SJMSCP. The City would collect the appropriate mitigation fees on a per- acre basis, as established by the
Joint Powers Authority according to the measures needed to mitigate project impacts on the various habitat
and biological resources.

1- 3 The comment notes that the proposed project is subject to the S) MSCP and that the SJMSCP process can take
up to 30 days, so it recommends that the project applicant contact SJMSCP staff as soon as possible. The
comment also recommends that the applicant obtain an information package. The City is an SJMSCP signatory,

and the proposed project will participate in the SJMSCP, as discussed in the response to comment 1- 2. The City
will contact SJMSCP staff as soon as possible with regard to the project' s participation in the SJMSCP.

1- 4 The comment outlines the process by which the proposed project would receive ITMM approval pursuant to
the SJMSCP. This comment is acknowledged, and the City will contact SJMSCP staff before project

implementation to discuss project participation in the SJMSCP, implementation of mitigation measures
contained in the EIR that are consistent with SJMSCP ITMMs ( as discussed in the response to comment 1- 2),

and any additional ITMMs that may be required. The City will collect and pay the appropriate mitigation fees
to SJCOG as needed to mitigate project impacts on habitat.

City of Lathrop
La hrop CTF Suifi ce UJater Discharge Project Fin l EIR Z- 5

32



Responses to Comments Ascent Environmental

1- 5 The comment notes that if the proposed project would have potential impacts on waters of the United
States, it would be required to seek voluntary coverage through the unmapped process under the SJMSCP,
which could take up to 90 days. The comment further notes that it may be prudent to have a preliminary
wetlands map produced for the proposed project and that if waters are confirmed on the project site, the
U. S. Army Corps of Engineers ( USACE) and regional water quality control board ( RWQCB) would have
jurisdiction of those mapped areas, and permits from those agencies would be required. The comment also

provides a contact number for questions. Ascent Environmental, on behalf of the City, submitted a
preliminary aquatic resources delineation report to USACE. As delineated in the report, Ascent Environmental
concludes that all waters on the project site are both waters of the state and waters of the United States ( i. e.,

there are no isolated waters on the project site). USACE has not yet verified the preliminary aquatic resources
delineation. However, based on the preliminary aquatic resources delineation, the City has submitted an
application for a 404 permit to USACE and a 401 Water Quality Certification ( WQC) to the RWQCB. Because

no specific comment on the adequacy, accuracy, or completeness of the Draft EIR is provided, no further
response is necessary.

1- 6 The comment is an SJMSCP Hold form letter, which restates the requirements for ITMMs that are found in

comment 1- 4, above. The comment also provides the project title and notes that it is the responsibility of the
local jurisdiction to ensure that the appropriate ITMMs are properly implemented and monitored and that the
appropriate fees are paid in compliance with the SJMSCP. Refer to the responses to comments 1- 2 and 1- 4

above. Because no specific comment on the adequacy, accuracy, or completeness of the Draft EIR is
provided, no further response is necessary.

City of Lathrop
2- 6 Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharg2 Project Final EI

33



Ascent Environmental Responses to Comments

5E- GAV', N NEWSOII
f G vENMOP Letter

SE CED Bv FCpNFEL      
Water Boards ME-

Centrai Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board

16 November 2020

Michael King
Director of Public Works

390 Towne Center Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

COMMENTS TO REQUEST FOR REVIEW FOR THE DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL

IMPACT REPORT, LATHROP CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY( CTF

SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT, SCH# 2019110339, SAN JOAQUIN

COUNTY

Pursuant to the City of Lathrop Community Development Department' s 21 October
2020 request, the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board ( Central Valley
Water Board) has reviewed the Request for Review for the Draft Environmental Impact

Report for the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility( CTF) Surface Water Discharge
Project, located in San Joaquin County.       

2- 1

Our agency is delegated with the responsibility of protecting the quality of surface and
groundwaters of the state; therefore our comments will address concerns surrounding
those issues.

I.  Regulatory Setting

Basin Plan

The Central Valley Water Board is required to formulate and adopt Basin Plans for
all areas within the Central Vatley region under Section 13240 of the Porter-Cologne
Water Quality Control Act. Each Basin Plan must contain water quality objectives to
ensure the reasonable protection of beneficial uses, as well as a program of
implementation for achieving water quality objectives with the Basin Plans. Federal
regulations require each state to adopt water quality standards to protect the public
health or welfare, enhance the quality of water and serve the purposes of the Clean
Water Act.  In California, the beneficial uses, water quality objectives, and the 2- 2

Antidegradation Policy are the State' s water quality standards. Water quality
standards are also contained in the National Toxics Rule, 40 CFR Section 131. 36,

and the California Toxics Rule, 40 CFR Section 131. 38.

The Basin Plan is subject to modification as necessary, considering applicable laws,
policies, technologies, water quality conditions and priorities. The original Basin
Plans were adopted in 1975, and have been updated and revised periodically as
required, using Basin Plan amendments. Once the Central Valley Water Board has
adopted a Basin Plan amendment in noticed public hearings, it must be approved by

KARL E. LONGLEV SCD, P. E., CHAIR I PATRICK PULUPA, ESQ., EXECUTIVE OFFICER

11020 Sun Center Drive F200, Rancho Cordova, CA 95870  www. waterboards. ca. gov/ centralvalley

City of Lathrop
Lathro, CTF Surface Wat2r Discharge Project Final EIR Z- 7

34



Responses to Comments Ascent Environmental

Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility  - 2-   16 Navember 2020

CTF) Surface Water Discharge Project

San Joaquin County

the State Water Resources Control Board( State Water Board}, Office of

Administrative Law( OAL) and in some cases, the United States Environmental

Protection Agency( USEPA). Basin Plan amendments only become effective after
they have been approved by the OAL and in some cases, the USEPA. Every three
3) years, a review of the Basin Plan is completed that assesses the appropriateness 2- 2

of existing standards and evaluates and prioritizes Basin Planning issues. For more cont.

information on the Water Quality Contro! PJan for the Sacramento and San Joaquin
River Basins, please visit our website:
http:// www. waterboards. ca. qov/ centralvallev/ water issues/ basin plans/

Antide4radation Considerations

All wastewater discharges must comply with the Antidegradation Policy( State Water
Board Resolution 68- 16) and the Antidegradation Implementation Policy contained in
the Basin Plan. The Antidegradation Implementation Policy is available on page 74
at:

https:// www. waterboards. ca. pov/ centralvallev/ water issues/ basin plans/ sacsir 2018

a5. pdf

In part it states:

Any discharge of waste to high quality waters must apply best practicable treatment
or control not only to prevent a condition of po! lution or nuisance from occurring, but 2- 3

also to maintain fhe highest water quality possible consistenf with the maximum
benefit to the people of the State.

This information must be presented as an analysis of the impacts and potential
impacts of the discharge on water quality, as measured by background
concentrafions and applicable water quality objectives.

The antidegradation analysis is a mandatory element in the National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System and land discharge Waste Discharge Requirements

WDRs} permitting processes. The environmental review document should evaluate
potential impacts to both surface and groundwater quality.

II.  Permitting Requirements

NPDES Permit

If the proposed project discharges waste that could affect the quality of surtace
waters of the State, other than into a community sewer system, the proposed project
will require coverage under a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System

2_4
NPDES) permit. A complete Report of Waste Discharge must be submitted with the

Central Valley Water Board to obtain a NPDES Permit. For more information
regarding the NPDES Permit and the application process, visit the Central Valley
Water Board website at: https:// www. waterboards. ca. aov/ centralvallev/ help/ permiU

Construction Storm Water General Permit

Dischargers whose project disturb one or more acres of soil or where projects
disturb less than one acre but are part of a larger common plan of development that 2- 5

in total disturbs one or more acres, are required to obtain coverage under the

General Permit for Storm Water Discharges Associated with Construction and Land

City of Lathrop
2- 8 Lathrop CTF Su` ace Water Discharge° roject Final EIR

35



AscenC EnvironiT ental Responses to Comments

Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility  - 3-   16 Navember 2020

CTF) Surface Water Discharge Project

San Joaquin County

Disturbance Activities( Construction General Permit), Construction General Permit

Order Na. 2009- 0009- DWQ. Construction activity subject to this permit includes
clearing, grading, grubbing, disturbances to the ground, such as stockpiling, or
excavation, but does not include regular maintenance activities performed to restore
the original line, grade, or capacity of the facility. The Construction General Permit 2- 5

requires the development and implementation of a Storm Water Pollution Prevention cont.

Plan( SWPPP). For more information on the Construction General Permit, visit the

State Water Resources Control Board website at:

http:// www. waterboards. ca. qov/ water issues/ proqrams/ stormwater/ constpermits. sht
ml

Industrial Storm Water General Permit

Storm water discharges associated with industrial sites must comply with the
regulations contained in the Industrial Storm Water General Permit Order No. 2014-

0057- DWQ. For more information on the Industrial Storm Water General Permit, 2- 6

visit the Central Valley Water Board website at:
http:// www.waterboards. ca.aov/centralvallev/water issues/storm waterlindustrial qe
neral permits/ index. shtml

Cfean Water Act Section 404 Permit

If the project will involve the discharge of dredged or fill material in navigable waters
or wetlands, a permit pursuant to Section 404 af the Clean Water Act may be
needed fram the United States Army Corps of Engineers( USACE). If a Section 404

permit is required by the USACE, the Central Valley Water Board will review the
permit application to ensure that discharge will not violate water quality standards.  If 2- 7

the project requires surface water drainage realignment, the applicant is advised to
contact the Department of Fish and Game for information an Streambed Alteration

Permit requirements.  If you have any questions regarding the Clean Water Act
Section 404 permits, please contact the Regulatary Division of the Sacramento
District of USACE at( 916) 557- 5250.

Clean Water Act Section 401 Permit— Water Qualitv Certification

If an USACE permit( e.g., Non- Reporting Nationwide Permit, Nationwide Permit,
Letter of Permission, Indi idual Permit, Regional General Permit, Programmatic

General Permit), or any other federal permit( e. g., Section 10 of the Rivers and
Harbors Act or Section 9 from the United States Coast Guard), is required for this

project due to the disturbance of waters of the United States( such as streams and 2_g

wetlands), then a Water Quality Certification must be obtained from the Central
Valley Water Board prior to initiation of project activities. There are no waivers for
401 Water Quality Certifications. For more information on the Water Quality
Certification, visit the Central Valley Water Board website at:
https:// www.waterboards. ca.govlcentralvalley/ water issues/ water qualitvi certificatio
n/

Waste Discharste Requirements— Dischars es to Waters of the State

If USACE determines that only non- jurisdictional waters of the State{ i. e., " non-   2- 9

federal" waters of the State) are present in the proposed project area, the proposed

City of Lathrop
La± hrop CTF Surface h/ ater Discharge Project Fina) EIR 2- 9

36



Responses to Comments Ascent Environmental

Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility  - 4-   16 November 2020

CTF) Surface Water Discharge Project

San Joaquin County

project may require a Waste Discharge Requirement( WDR) permit to be issued by
Central Valley Water Board.  Under the California Porter- Gologne Water Quality
Control Act, discharges to all waters of the State, including all wetlands and other
waters of the State including, but not limited to, isolated wetlands, are subject to
State regulation.  For more information on the Waste Discharges to SurFace Water

NPDES Program and WDR processes, visit the Central Valley Water Board website
at: httqs:/ lwww.waterboards. ca. qov/ centralvallev/ water issues/ waste to surface wat

er/       
Z 9

Projects involving excavation or fill activities impacting less than 0. 2 acre or 400 cont.

linear feet of non- jurisdictional waters of the state and projects involving dredging
activities impacting less than 50 cubic yards of non- jurisdictional waters of the state
may be eligible for coverage under the State Water Resources Control Board Water
Quality Order No. 2004- 0004- DWQ ( General Order 2004- 0004). For more

information on the General Order 2004- 0004, visit the State Water Resources

Contral Board website at:

https://www.waterboards. ca.qov/board decisions/ adapted orders/water qualitv/200

4/wqo/wq o2004- 0004. pd f

Dewaterin Permit

If the proposed project includes construction or groundwater dewatering to be
discharged to land, the proponent may apply for coverage under State Water Board
General Water Quality Order( Low Threat General Order) 20Q3- 0003 or the Central
Valley Water Board' s Waiver of Report of Waste Discharge and Waste Discharge
Requirements ( Low Threat Waiver) R5-2018-0085. Small temporary construction
dewatering projects are projects that discharge groundwater to land from excavation
activities or dewatering of underground utility vaults. Dischargers seeking coverage
under the General Order or Waiver must file a Plotice of Intent with the Central

Valley Water Board prior to beginning discharge. 2- 10

For more information regarding the Low Threat General Order and the application
process, visit the Central Valley Water Board website at:
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board decisions/ adopted orders/water quality/2003/
wqo/ wqo2Q03- 0003. pdf

For more information regarding the Low Threat Waiver and the application process,
visit the Central Valley Water Board website at:
https:// www. waterboards. ca. qov/ centralvalley/ board decisions/ adopted orders/ waiv
e rs/ r5- 2018- 00 85. pd f

If you have questions regarding these comments, please contact me at{ 916) 464- 4856 T Z- 11
or Nicholas. White@waterboards. ca. gov.   1

i/ 

l.i C _
Nicholas White

Water Resource Control Engineer

City of Lathrop
2- 1   Latf rop CTF Surface Water Di, charge Project Final EIR

37



Ascent Environmental Responses to Comments

Letter 2 Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board
Nicholas White, Water Resource Control Engineer

November 16, 2020

2- 1 The comment provides an introduction to the letter and provides background on the commenter' s authority
to protect the quality of surface water and groundwater of the state. No specific comment on the adequacy,
accuracy, or completeness of the Draft EIR is provided; therefore, no further response is necessary.

2- 2 The comment provides background on the Basin Plan for the Central Valley region. No specific comment on
the adequacy, accuracy, or completeness of the Draft EIR is provided; therefore, no further response is
necessary.

2- 3 The comment provides information regarding " antidegradation considerations," including the Basin Plan' s
policy and analysis requirements for National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System ( NPDES) and Waste

Discharge Requirement( WDR) permitting. Project impacts on groundwater and surface water qualiry are
addressed in Section 3. 9, " Hydrology and Water Qualiry," of the Draft EIR. Impacts were determined to be less

than significant. The Draft EIR adequately analyzes the potential impacts on groundwater and surface water
quality and does not conflict with these requirements. The City submitted a report of waste discharge, which
contains the antidegradation analysis in accordance with NPDES requirements and the SWRCB' s

antidegradation implementation policy.

2- 4 The comment states that if the proposed project were to discharge waste that could affect the quality of
surface waters of the state, it would require coverage under an NPDES permit, and a complete report of

waste discharge must be submitted to support an NPDES permit application. The City has submitted a report
of waste discharge in support of an NPDES permit application.

2- 5 The comment notes that all land- disturbing construction projects that would involve disturbance of 1 or

more acres of soil, or projects that disturb less than 1 acre but are part of a larger common plan of
development that in total disturbs 1 or more acres, are required to obtain coverage under the General Permit

for Discharges of Storm Water Associated with Construction and Land Disturbance Activities ( Construction

General Permit Order 2009- 0009- Division of Water Quality [ DWQ]). Construction activities associated with

the proposed project would disturb more than 1 acre of soils, exposing the project site to possible wind and
water erosion. Pages 3. 9- 13 and 3. 9- 14 in Section 3. 9, " Hydrology and Water Quality," of the Draft EIR state
that the City and/ or its construction contractor would be required to implement construction best

management practices ( BMPs) to reduce the potential for pollutant discharges to surface water and

groundwater consistent with the NPDES permit required by the Central Valley RWQCB.

2- 6 The comment states that stormwater discharges associated with industrial sites must comply with Industrial
Storm Water General Permit Order No. 2014- 0057- DWQ. The Lathrop CTF is a municipal site and is not
covered under the Industrial Storm Water General Permit.

2- 7 The comment summarizes the requirements to obtain a permit pursuant to Section 404 of the Clean Water
Act ( CWA). The City has applied for a Section 404 permit from the USACE.

2- 8 The comment summarizes the requirements to obtain a CWA Section 401 WQC. The City has applied for a
401 WQC from the Central Valley RWQCB.

2- 9 The comment summarizes WDR requirements for discharges to waters of the state. As part of the Section 404

permit process, Ascent Environmental, on behalf of the City, submitted a preliminary aquatic resources
delineation report to USACE. As delineated in the report, Ascent Environmental concludes that there are no

isolated waters ( i. e., all waters of the state are waters of the United States) on the project site. USACE has not
yet verified the preliminary aquatic resources delineation. The preliminaryjurisdictional delineation informed
the Draft EIR' s analysis of impacts to wetlands and waters of the United States and waters of the state.

City of Lathrop

athrop CTF Surface UJater Discha ge Project Final EIR 2- 11

38



Responses to Comments Asc nt Environmental

2- 10 The comment summarizes requirements for a dewatering permit. As described on page 2- 24 under Section
2. 7. 3, " Construction Methods and Labor Force," in Chapter 2, " Project Description," of the Draft EIR, the

project proposes to dewater the area of the river behind a temporary cofferdam for work in the river. Any
water remaining inside the cofferdam would be pumped back over the levee into temporary ponds or Baker
tanks on the landside of the levee for settling, and then the supernatant( clarified river water overlying
material that has settled out) would be discharged to the river or pumped into the Ciry storm drain system
depending on water quality requirements. In the unlikely event that temporary construction dewatering
would discharge groundwater to land from excavation activities or dewatering of underground utility vaults,
the City or its contractor would apply for coverage under the appropriate general order or waiver.

2- 11 The comment provides a closing to the letter and contact information. No specific comment on the
adequacy, accuracy, or completeness of the Draft EIR is provided; therefore, no further response is necessary.

City of Lathrop

2- 12 Lathrop CTF Surface Warer Discharge Project Final EIR

39



Ascent Environmenta)      Respor ses to Comments

Delta etter

Stewardship 3

Council
A CALIFORNIA STATE AGENCY

December 1, ZOZO
HAIR

S isar; Tatayon

Michael King P. E.  MEMBERS

Director of Public Works fYank C. Gamreil; r.

City of Lathrop n' h' Pi c t°

390 Towne Center Drive
nnaria Uenran an

Lathrop, CA 95330
o5c 3 v iiP s

Daniel Zingale

Sentvia email: mkint, a.ci. lathrop. ca. us
EXECUTIVE OPFICER

e>; ica R. Pearson

RE: Comments on Draft Environmental Impact Report for the athrop

Consolidated Treatment Facility Surface Water Discharge Project

State Clearing House No. 2019110339)
980 Ninth S: reet,

Dear Michael King: 
su ce isoo

Sacraznenka, CA

Thank you for the opportuniry to review and comment on the Draft a ai`

Environmental Impact Report( DEIR) for the City of Lathrop( City)
Consolidated Treatment Facility Surface Water Discharge Project( Project}. s. 5; i

The Delta Stewardship Council( Council) recognizes the objective(s} of the DELTACOUNCI . CA.GOV

Project, as described in the DEIR, to: provide for planned City buildout and
development based on the City' s General Plan by providing effluent

discharge to the San oaquin River, provide efficient and cost- effective

wastewater services through buildout of the City, and maximize use of
recycled water in the City presently and in the future.

The Council is an independent State of California agency established by the Sacramento-

San joaquin Delta Reform Act of 2009( SBX7 1; Delta Reform Act}. The Cauncil is charged
with furthering California` s coequal goals for the Delta through the adoption and 3- 1

implementation of the Delta Plan, regulatory portions of which became effective on
September 1, 2013.

As stated in the Delta Reform Act, the State has"' coequal goals'( which) means two goals of
providing a more reliable water supply for California and protecting, restoring, and
enhancing the Delta ecosystem. The coequal goals shall be achieved in a manner that
protects and enhances the unique cultural, recreational, natural resource, and agricultural
values of the Delta as an evolving place"( Water Code section 85054}.

Through the Delta Reform Act, the Council was granted specific regulatory and appellate

authority over certain actions of State or local public agencies that take place in whole or in
part in the Delta. To do this, the Delta Plan contains a set of regulatory policies with which

City of Lathrop
Lathro CTF Surface UJater Discharge Project Fina! EIR Z- 13

40



Responses to Comments Ascent Environmental

City of Lathrop

Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility SurFace Water Discharge Project
December 1, 2020

Page 2

State and local agencies are required to comply. The Delta Reform Act specifically
established a certification process for compliance with the Delta Plan. This means that
State and local agencies that propose to carry aut, approve, or fund a qualifying action in
whole or in part in the Delta, called a" covered action," must certify that this covered action
is consistent with the Delta Plan and must file a certificate of consistency with the Council 3- 1

that includes detailed findings.   
cont.

For the purposes of compliance with both the Delta Reform Act and California
Environmental Quality Act( CEQA), we offer the following comments for your consideration
in preparation of the Final Environmental Impact Report( FEIR},

Comments on the DEIR

The following comments address actions outlined in the DEIR relevant to the Delta Plan. 3- 2

Regulatory Setting: The FEIR should identify Delta Plan policies in the applicable
regulatory setting discussions for each topic in the FEIR to which they apply.

Qn page 33- 5, the DEIR describes the various amendments to the Delta Plan. This section
should also identify that on March 26, 2020 the Council rescinded the April 2018
amendment to Delta Plan Policy RR P1 which set new priorities for State investment in 3- 3

Delta levees and restored the previous version of Policy RR P1 adopted in the Delta Plan in
2013.

Inconsistencies with the Delta Plan: Section 3. 1. 2 Land Use states that the" potential for

the proposed Project to conflict with The Delta Plan...[ is] addressed in Section 33

Terrestrial Biological Resources' and 3. 4' Aquatic Biological Resources."( P. 3- 4.) However,

neither resource section clearly identifies potential conflicts with the Delta Plan, nor how 3- 4

those potential conflicts were analyzed and addressed. The FEIR should make these
potential conflicts clear and document the analysis canducted to evaluate and resolve such
potential conflicts.

Covered Action Determination and Certification of Consistency with the Delta Plan

The Council submitted a comment letter on the Notice of Preparation of an Environmental
Impact Report( NOP) on December 17, 2019. In that letter, the Council outlined the multi-

part test defining what activities wauld be considered covered actions set forth in Water
Code Section 85057. 5 subdivision( a), noting that the Project appears to be a covered
action, and that the City must determine if the Project meets the definition of a covered
action.       3- 5

As stated in the DEIR Section 1. 5. 4 Required Permits and Approvals, the City has identified

the Project as a potential covered action and the DEIR identifies a certification of
consistency with the Delta Plan as a permit or approval action needed by the Project.( P. 1-
6.) As the local agency carrying out the Project, the City must file a certification of
consistency with the Council prior to project implementation.( Wat. Code,§ 85225; Cal.

City of Lathrop

2- 14 LaYhrop CTF Surface Water Discharge Project Final EIR

41



Rscent Environmental Responses to Comments

City of Lathrop
Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility Surface Water Discharge Project
December 1, 2020

Page 3

Code Regs., tit. 23,§ 5001{ j)( 3).) The next section of this letter provides information to assist
3- 5

the City in preparing a certification of consistency for the Project. 1 cont.

Comments Regarding Delta Plan Policies

The following section describes the Delta Plan regulatory policies that may apply to the
Project based on the available information in the DEIR. This information is offered to assist
the City to describe the relationship between the Project and the Delta Plan in the FEIR as

3- 6

part of the record supporting the City's future certification of consistency.

The Delta Plan includes regulatory policies that apply to all covered actions. Below, we have
highlighted key regulatory policies that may be relevant to the Project.

General Policy 1: Detailed Findings to Establish Consistency with the Delta Plan

Delta Plan Policy G P1 ( Cal. Code Regs., tit. 23,§ 50 2} specifies what must be addressed in a

certification of consistency by a state or local public agency for a project that is a covered 3'

action. The following is a subset of policy requirements which a project shall fulfill to be
considered consistent with the Delta Plan:

Mitigation Measures

Delta Pian Policy G P1( b}( 2)( Cal. Code Regs., tit. 23,§ 5002(b)(2)) requires that

covered actions that are not exernpt from the California Environmental Quality Act

CEQA} must include all applicable feasible mitigation measures adopted and

incorporated into the Delta Plan as amended April 26, 2018( unless the measures

are within the exclusive jurisdiction of an agency other than the agency that files the
Certification of Consistency), or substitute mitigation measures that the agency finds
are equally or more effective. These mitigation measures are identified in Deita Plan
Appendix O and are available at: https// deltacounciLca. gov dfldelta- plan/ 2018-
a er ciix= o- rniti atiorr- rnonitoring- and- reporting- prograrn. f.

3- 8

The DEIR identifies several potentially significant irnpacts that require mitigation,
inculding those related to air quality, terrestrial biological resources, aquatic
biological resources, cultural resources, and hazards and hazardous materials. The

City should review the mitigation measures in Delta Plan Appendix O which
correspond to the potentially significant impacts in these five resource areas, and
ensure that the mitigation measures described in the DEIR are equally or more

effective than corresponding mitigation measures in Delta Plan Appendix O. In its
certification of consistency for the Project, the Ciry should explain how these
mitigation measures are equally or more effective. than the applicable mitigation
measures contained in Appendix O.

City of Lathrop
Lathrop CTF Surface V later Discharge Pro; ect Final EIR 2- 15

42



Responses to Comments Ascent Environmental

City of Lathrop
Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility Surface Water Discharge Project
December 1, 202Q

Page 4

Best Available Science

Delta Plan Policy G P1( b}( 3)( Cal. Code Regs., tit. 23,§ 5002( b)( 3)) states that actions

subject to Delta Plan regulations must document use of besi available science as

relevant to the purpose and nature of the project. The Delta Pian defines best
available science as" the best scientific information a d data for informing
management and policy decisions."( Cal. Code Regs, tit. 23,§ 5001 (.) Best available

science is also required to be consistent with the guidelines and criteria in Appendix

1A of the Delta Plan( https// deltacouncil ca gov/ df/ delta- lan/ 201 S- appendix-

1 a.,pdf.

Six criteria are used to define best available science: relevance, inclusiveness,

objectivity, transparency and openness, timeliness, and peer review. The City should
3- 9

prepare a Certfication of Consistency that documents the scientific rationale for
applying these six criteria to the Project. The Council' s Delta Science Program
Adaptive Management Liaisons are available to provide further consultation and
guidance regarding the use and documentation of best available science in the City's
future Certification of Consistency for the Project.

The certification of consistency for the Project should document how the Project has
used best available science related to climate change and sea level rise that could

impact the ProjecYs ability to discharge treated effluent and how the effluent
discharges could effect water qualiry and harmful algal blooms.

Adaptive Management

Delta Plan Policy G P1( b)( 4)( Cal. Code Regs., tit. 23,§ 5002( b)( 4)) requires that

ecosystem restoration and water management covered actions include adequate

provisions for continued implementation af adaptive management, appropriate to
the scope of the action. This requirement is satisfied through: a} the development of

an adaptive management plan that is consistent with the framework described in
Appendix 1 B af the Delta Plan( htt s// deltacouncil ca gov/ pdf/ delta- plan/ 2015-

aqpendix- 1 b. dfl, and b} documentation of adequate resources to implement the

proposed adaptive management plan. 3- 10

An adaptive management plan consistent with the framework referenced above
would be required as part of a certification of consistency with the Delta Plan for the
Project because the Project proposes to treat waste waterleffluent and use recycled
water supply. In its certification of consistency, the City should document how its
adaptive management plan is consistent with the framework in Appendix 1 B, and
how its provisions for adaptive management are appropriate to the scope of the
Project. In addition, the City should document the resources allocated to implement
maintenance, monitoring, and any other adaptive management actions described in
the certification. The Council' s Delta Science Program Adaptive Management

City of athrop

2- 16 Latl rop CTF Surface Nlater Discharc e Project Final EIR

43



Ascent Environmentai Responses to Comments

City of Lathrop
Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility Surface Water Discharge Project
December 1, 202

Page 5

Liaisons are available to provide further consultation and guidance on 3- 10

documentation of adaptive management, and we strongly encourage the City to       cont.

engage with the Council in early consul[ ation regarding this matter.

Delta Flow Objectives

Delta Plan Policy ER P1 ( Cal. Code Regs., tit. 23,§ 5005) requires that the State Water

Resources Control Board' s Bay- Delta Water Quality Control Plan( Water Board` s Bay- Delta
WQCP) flow objectives be used to determine consistency with the Delta Plan.

The DEIR analysis of water quality impacts in Section 3. 9 Hyrdology and Water Quality( P.       3- il

3. 9- 1 through 3. 9- 34) relies on meeting the Water Board' s Bay- Delta WQCP requirements,
the Centrai Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board' s Basin Plan objectives, and the
ProjecYs Nationai Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Permit requirements to conclude

throughout the section that the ProjecYs impact on hydrology and water quality resources
are less than significant. This infarmation should be included in the projecYs certification of

consistency with the Delta Plan.

Ecosystem Restoration Policy 5: Avoid Introductions of and Habitat Improvements for
Invasive Nonnative Species

Delta Plan Policy ER PS( Cal. Code Regs., tit. 23, 5009} requires that covered actions fulty

consider and avoid or mitigate the potential for new introductions of, or improved habitat
conditions for nonnative invasive species, striped bass, or bass in a way that appropriately

protects the ecosystern.

The DEIR describes the construction of a new permanent outfall structure to discharge 3- 12

dechlorinated disinfected tertiray treated effluent into the San Joaquin River.( P. 2. 1 S) While
the analysis states that the Project' s discharge would not significantly affect the water

quality in the river at different times of the year( P. 3. 4- 29), it does not describe the
potential effects of the permanent outfall structure and discharged effluent to introduce or
improve habitat for invasive nonnative species. Such discussion should be included in the

FEIR.

In its certification of consistency for the Project, the City should explain how the design,
construction, and operations and maintenance elements of the permanent outfall
structure and discharged effluent would avoid or mitigate the potential for new

introductions of, or improved habitat conditions for, nonnnative invasive species, including

those identified in the DEIR. In the certification, the Ciry should also explain how measures
3- 13

to avoid, minimize, or mitigate the potential for new introductions of, or improved habitat
conditions for, nonnative invasive species( such as Mitigation Measure BIO- 1) are equally or

more effective than Delta Plan Mitigation Measure 4- 1 ( available at:

htt s_// del.tacouncil, ca_govlpdf/ de.lta- plan/ 2..018- app.endix_o- mit ati.on monitoring and.-
reqortin proQram adf).

Cit of Lathrop

Lathrop CTF Surf ce 4 Jater Discnarge Project Final EIR

44



Responses to Comments Ascent Environmental

City of Lathrop

Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility Surface Water Discharge Project
December 1, Z020

Page 6

Closin Comments

The Cauncil invites the City to engage with Council staff in early consultation prior to filing a
certification of consistency to discuss project elements and mitigation measures that would
promote the ProjecCs consistency with the Delta Plan.

3- 14

More information on covered actions, early consultation, and the certification process can
be found on the Council website at https: l/coveredactions. deltacouncil. ca. ov. Piease

contact Anthony Navasero at Anthony NavaeroC deltacounciLca.gov with any questions.

Sincerely,

r ì

Jeff Henderson, AICP

Deputy Executive Officer
Delta Stewardship Council

City of Lathrop

2- g Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharge Project Final EIR

45



Ascent Environmental Responses to Comments

Letter 3 Delta Stewardship Council
Jeff Henderson, AICP, Deputy Executive Officer
December 1, 2020

3- 1 The comment provides an introduction to the letter, summarizes the objectives of the proposed project, and
provides background on the Delta Reform Act. No specific comment on the adequacy, accuracy, or
completeness of the Draft EIR is provided; therefore, no further response is necessary.

3- 2 The comment provides a general statement that the Final EIR should identify Delta Plan policies in the
applicable resource sections. The Final EIR includes, among other things, the Draft EIR, which refers to Delta
Plan policies that may be applicable to the project on pages 3. 3- 4 and 3. 3- 5 of Section 3. 3, " Terrestrial
Biological Resources," and page 6- 5 in Section 6. 6. 1, " Growth- Inducing Impacts of the Project."

The following Delta Plan policies may be applicable to the proposed project:

Policy G P1 ( 23 California Code of Regulations ( CCR] Section 5002) Detailed Findings to Establish
Consistency with the Delta Plan

Policy ER P1 ( 23 CCR Section 5005) Delta Flow Objectives

Policy ER P3 ( 23 CCR Section 5007) Protect Opportunities to Restore Habitat

Policy ER P5 ( 23 CCR Section 5009) Avoid Introductions of and Habitat Improvements for Invasive
Nonnative Species

Policy RR P3 ( 23 CCR Section 5014) Protect Floodways

Several other policies are included in the Delta Plan but are not applicable to the project. Policy RR P1 ( 23 CCR
Section 5012): Prioritization of State Investments in Delta Levees and Risk Reduction would not apply because

the project would not receive state funding. Policy RR P2 ( 23 CCR Section 5013): Require Flood Protection for
Residential Development in Rural Areas also would not apply because the proposed project would not involve
construction of residential uses. The comment letter includes some comments that are specific to some of the

Delta Plan policies listed above. The responses to comments 3- 7 through 3- 10 address comments related to
Policy G P1. The response to comment 3- 11 addresses comments related to Policy ER P1. The response to
comment 3- 12 addresses comments related to Policy ER P5.

In response to the commenter' s suggestion to include Delta Plan policies that may be applicable to the

project in the Draft EIR, Section 3. 3, " Terrestrial Biological Resources" and Section 3. 9, " Hydrology and Water
Quality," in the Draft EIR are revised to clarify policies that may apply to the proposed project. This change is
presented in Chapter 3, " Revisions to the Draft EIR," in this Final EIR. The clarification provides additional
regulatory information; thus, it does not alter the Final EIR conclusions with respect to the significance of any
environmental impacts. However, also refer to the response to comment 3- S, which explains that the City has

determined the project is not a covered action.

New text is added after the third full paragraph on page 3. 3- 5 in Section 3. 3, " Terrestrial Biological
Resources," as follows:

The following Delta Plan olicies are related to bioloaical resources:

Policy ER P2 ( 23 CCR Section 5006)— Restore Habitats at Appropriate Elevations

a)  Habitat restoration must be carried out consistent with Appendix 3, which is Section II of the

Draft Conservation Strategy for Restoration of the Sacramento- San Joaquin Delta Ecoloqical
Management Zone and the Sacramento and San Joaquin Valley Regions ( California Department

of Fish and Wildlife 2011) The elevation map attached as Appendix 4 should be used as a guide
for determininaqppropriate habitat restoration actions based on an area' s elevation. If a

pro osed habitat restoration action is not consistent with Appendix 4, the proposal shall provide
rationale for the deviation based on best available science.

City of Lathrop

Lathrop CTF Surface Wat2r Dischar e Projed Final EIR 2- 19

46



Res onses to Comments Ascent Environmental

b)  For purposes of Water Code section 85057 5( a)( 31 and section 5001( i)( 11( E) of this Chapter, this
policy covers a pro osed action that includes habitat restoration.

Polic ER P3 ( 23 CCR Section 5007) Protect O portunities to Restore Habitat

a)  Within the riority habitat restoration areas depicted in Appendix 5 significant adverse impacts
to the opportunit to restore habitat as described in section 5006, must be avoided or mitiaated.

b)  Impacts referenced in subsection ( a) will be deemed to be avoided or mitigated if the proiect is

desi ned and implemented so that it will not preclude or otherwise interfere with the abilitv to
restore habitat as described in section 5006.

c)  Impacts referenced in subsection ( al shall be mitigated to a point where the impacts have no

sianificant effect on the op ortunity to restore habitat as described in section 5006. Mitiqation
shall be determined in consultation with the California Department of Fish and Wildlife,

considerin, the size of the area impacted by the covered action and the type and value of
habitat that could be restored on that area taking into account existinq and proposed
restoration lans landscape attributes the elevation map shown in Appendix 4, and other
relevant information about habitat restoration opportunities of the area.

d)  For purposes of Water Code section 85057. 5( a1( 3) and section 5001( jl(11( E) of this Chapter, this
policv covers proposed actions in the priority habitat restoration areas depicted in Appendix 5. It
does not cover proposed actions outside those areas.

Policy ER P5 ( 23 CCR Section 5009) Avoid Introductions of and Habitat Improvements for Invasive
Nonnative Species

a)  The potential for new introductions of or improved habitat conditions for nonnative invasive
species striped bass or bass must be fully considered and avoided or mitiqated in a way that
aqpropriatel protects the ecosystem.

b)  For purposes of Water Code section 85057. 5( a)( 3) and section 5001( j)( 1)( E) of this Chapter, this
polic,y covers a proposed action that has the reasonable probability of introducinq or imqrovinq
habitat conditions for nonnative invasive species.

A new section for the Sacramento- San Joaquin Delta Reform Act of 2009 and a list of potentially applicable

Delta Plan policies is added after the" Central Valley Flood Protection Act" section as part of the regulatory
setting on page 3. 9- 5 in Section 3. 9, " Hydrology and Water Quality," as follows:

Sacramento- San Joaquin Delta Reform Act of 2009
A summary of the Sacramento- San Joaquin Delta Reform Act( Delta Reform Actl (California Water
Code Section 10610 et seg) is provided in the regulato setting of Section 3. 3 " Terrestrial Biological
Resources" The following Delta Plan policies are related to hydrology and water qualitv:

Policy ER P1 ( 23 CCR Section 5005) Delta Flow Objectives

a)  The State Water Resources Control Board' s Bay Delta Water Quality Control Plan flow objectives
shall be used to determine consistency with the Delta Plan. If and when the flow objectives are

revised by the State Water Resources Control Board the revised flow objectives shall be used to
determine consistency with the Delta Plan.

b)  For pur oses of Water Code section 85057. 5( a)( 3) and section 5001( jl( 1)( E1 of this Chaqter, the
polic set forth in subsection ( a) covers a pro. osed action that could significantly affect flow in
the Delta.

Policy RR P3 ( 23 CCR Section 5014) Protect Floodways

City of Lathrop

2_?   Lathrop CTf S n face Water Disch rge Pro;ect Final EIR

47



Ascent Environmental Responses to Comments

a)  No encroachment shall be allowed or constructed in a floodway unless it can be demonstrated
bv aqqropriate ana sis that the encroachment will not unduly impede the free flow of water in
the floodwa or jeopardize public safetv.

b)  For purposes of Water Code section 85057 S( a)( 3) and section 5001( j)( 1)( E) of this Chapter, this
policy covers a proposed action that would encroach in a floodway that is not either a
designated floodway or regulated stream.

3- 3 The comment suggests that the Draft EIR provide additional information related to amendments made to the
Delta Plan. A clarification is presented in Chapter 3, " Revisions to the Draft EIR," in this Final EIR as shown
below. The clarification provides additional regulatory information; thus, it does not alter the conclusions with
respect to the significance of any environmental impact.

The first full paragraph on page 3. 3- 5 in Section 3. 3, " Terrestrial Biological Resources," is revised to read as
fo I I ows:

The Delta Plan was amended in February 2016 to include refined performance measures, which were
again amended in April 2018. A September 2016 amendment made permanent an exemption for

single- year water transfers to be considered as covered actions. Also, in April 2018, the Delta Plan
was amended to revise Chapter 3 to include new text and recommendations for conveyance,
storage, and operations, and to revise Chapter 7 to include new text and a policy for setting

priorities for state investments in Delta levees. In March 2020 DSC rescinded the April 2018
amendment to Delta Plan Poli RR P1 which set new priorities for state investment in Delta levees
and restored the previous version of Policy RR P1 adopted in the Delta Plan in 2013.

3- 4 The comment states that Section 3. 3, " Terrestrial Biological Resources," of the Draft EIR does not clearly

identify potential conflicts with the Delta Plan and suggests that the Final EIR should make any potential
conflicts clear and explain how such potential conflicts would be resolved. De ta Plan Policy GP1 is the only
policy that is directly applicable to terrestrial biological resources and therefore is the only policy for which
consistency may be evaluated. However, as explained in the response to comment 3- 5, the City has
determined that the proposed project is not a covered action.

Policy GP1 requires that covered actions not excluded from the requirements of CEQA use the applicable
mitigation measures identified in the Delta Plan EIR or substitute mitigation measures that are equally or

more effective. Section 3. 3, " Terrestrial Biological Resources," of the DEIR identifies significant impacts on

special- status wildlife species, jurisdictional waters, and riparian habitat. Impacts on special- status wildlife are
not addressed by mitigation measures in the Delta Plan EIR, and mitigation measures in the Delta Plan EIR
other than those relevant to jurisdictional waters and riparian habitat are not applicable. Section 3. 3,
Terrestrial Biological Resources," identifies mitigation measures to reduce impacts onjurisdictional waters

and riparian habitat to less than significant levels. These measures are equally or more effective than the

mitigation identified in the Delta Plan EIR and would reduce project impacts to these physical environmental
resources to a less- than- significant level.

3- 5 The comment notes that the proposed project appears to be a Covered Action under the Sacramento—San
Joaquin Delta Reform Act and that the City must determine whether the project meets the definition of a
covered action. The comment refers to Section 1. 5. 4, " Required Permits and Approvals," of the Draft EIR,

indicating that the City has identified the project as a potential covered action requiring a certification of
consistency with the Delta Plan. Although the Draft EIR identified the project as a potential covered action,
the City has since reviewed the Covered Action Checklist on DSC' s website ( avai able at
https:// coveredactions.deltacouncil. ca. gov/ Files/ Covered- Actions- Checklist_Feb2020.pdfl and determined
that the project is not a Covered Action. This response addresses the applicable steps of the checklist to
demonstrate that the City' s project is not a Covered Action.

Step 1: Determine if the project is exempt from the definition of a " covered action"

The project is not exempt from the definition of a " Covered Action."

City of Lathrop

Lathrop CTF Surface UJater Discharge Project Fina! EIR

48



Responses to Comments
Ascent Environmental

Step 2: Determine if the project meets all four" screening criteria."

The project does not meet all four of the screening criteria, which are as follows:

1.   The action is a plan, program, or project as defined pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21065.

2.   The action will occur, in whole or in part, within the boundaries of the Delta or Suisun Marsh.

3.   The action will be carried out, approved, or funded by the State or a local public agency.

4.   The action will have a significant impact on the achievement of one or both of the coequal goals or the

implementation of a government- sponsored flood control program to reduce risks to people, property,
and State interests in the Delta.

The action is a project as defined pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21065 as it is an activity
undertaken by a public agency; would occur within the boundary of the Delta; and would be carried out,
approved, and funded by a local public agency. However, the project would not have a significant impact on
the achievement of one or both of the coequal goals of providing a more reliable water supply for California
and protecting, restoring, and enhancing the Delta ecosystem, or the implementation of a government-
sponsored flood control program for the following reasons: The project would discharge highly treated
effluent to the San Joaquin River primarily during the winter when flows in the river are high, and would not
affect the availability of surface or groundwater supplies, nor impact water quality. The project also would
mitigate project- related effects to riparian habitat and waters of the state and waters of the U. S. such that the
Delta ecosystem would not be impacted. Furthermore, because the project would return the levee section
affected by the outfall construction to pre- project conditions, the project would not affect the integrity of the
San Joaquin River east side levee, a federal project levee maintained by Reclamation District 17.

In accordance with the Covered Action Checklist, because the project would not have a significant impact on
the achievement of one or both of the coequal goals or the implementation of a government- sponsored
flood control program to reduce risks to people, property, and State interests in the Delta, the project does
not meet the definition of a Covered Action and no further steps in the Covered Action Checklist are required.

3- 6 The comment generally states that Delta Plan regulatory policies may apply to the proposed project and that
the comment letter provides information to assist the City in describing the relationship between the
proposed project and the Delta Plan in support of a certification of consistency for the proposed project. See
the response to comment 3- 5, which explains that the City has determined that the proposed project is not a
Covered Action.

3- 7 The comment states that Delta Plan Policy G P1 identifies the information required for a certification of
consistency issued by a lead agency for a project. See the response to comment 3- 5, which explains the
City' s rationale in determining that the proposed project is not a Covered Action.

3- 8 The City has reviewed the following mitigation measures which would reduce impacts of the proposed
project to a less than significant level and found them to be equally as effective or more effective than
corresponding mitigation in Appendix O of the Delta Plan; note that the comment does not indicate any of
the mitigation measures in Appendix O of the Delta Plan are more effective than what is shown in the EIR:

Mitigation Measure 3. 2- 1: Apply Tier- 4 Emissions Standards to Achieve a 30- Percent Reduction in NOX
Emissions from Diesel- Powered Off- Road Equipment;

Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 1a: Seek Coverage under the SJMSCP;

Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 1b: Conduct Survey for and Protect Valley Elderberry Longhorn Beetle;

Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 2: Conduct Western Pond Turtle Preconstruction Survey and Relocation;

Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 3: Protect Swainson' s Hawk, White- Tailed Kite, Cooper' s Hawk, Sharp- Shinned

Hawk, and Other Nesting Raptors;

Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 4: Protect Loggerhead Shrike, California Horned Lark, and Other Nesting Birds;

City of Lathrop

2_ 22 Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharge Projed Fnal EIR

49



Ascent Environ nen, al Responses to Comments

Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 5: Protect Riparian Brush Rabbit;

Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 6: Compensate for Loss of Waters of the United States and State;

Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 7: Minimize and Compensate for the Loss of Riparian Habitat;

Mitigation Measure 3. 4- 2: Conduct Fish Rescue and Relocation Operation;

Mitigation Measure 3. 5- 2: Implement Inadvertent Discovery Measures for the Protection of
Archaeological Resources;

Mitigation Measure 3. 5- 3: Implement Inadvertent Discovery Measures for the Protection of Tribal
Cultural Resources;

Mitigation Measure 3. 5- 4: Implement Inadvertent Discovery Measures for the Protection of Human
Remains; and

Mitigation Measure 3. 8- 1: Implement Mitigation Measure 4.14.- 1, " Existing Hazardous Materials/ Waste
Sites," Incorporated by Reference into the 2013 CTF IS/ MND.

3- 9 See the response to comment 3- 5, which explains the City' s rationale in determining that the proposed
project is not a Covered Action. Because the proposed project is not a Covered Action, the City was not
required to consider climate change and sea level rise impacts, although such considerations are required

under CEQA if there is the potential for a significant impact. The Draft EIR evaluated the effects of climate
change and determined the impacts were mitigated to a less- than- significant level.

3- 10 See the response to comment 3- 5, which explains the City' s rationale in determining that the proposed
project is not a Covered Action.

3- 11 See the response to comment 3- 5, which explains the City' s rationale in determining that the proposed
project is not a Covered Action.

3- 12 See the response to comment 3- 5, which explains the City' s rationale in determining that the proposed
project is not a Covered Action. Furthermore, the proposed outfall structure would not provide habitat for
nonnative invasive species as explained in Section 3. 3 of the Draft EIR. The end of the pipe would be fitted
with a check valve to prevent backflow into the pipe when it is not discharging, which would prevent
colonization by nonnative invasive species. Also see the response to comment 7- 8, regarding the outfall
structure design, which would not produce large areas of hydraulic velocity breaks where predatory fishes
would hold and prey on emigrating native fish.

3- 13 See the response to comment 3- 5, which explains the City' s rationale in determining that the proposed project
is not a Covered Action. Also refer to the response to comment 3- 8, regarding the finding that proposed
mitigation measures would be equally as effective as mitigation measures identified in the Delta Plan.

3- 14 The comment provides an invitation to the City to engage with DSC staff before filing a certification of
consistency. The comment also identifies a website where additional information related to preparing the
certification of consistency may be found. See the response to comment 3- 5. No specific comment on the

adequacy, accuracy, or completeness of the Draft EIR is provided; therefore, no further response is necessary.

City of athrop
athrop CTF Surface Water Dischar e Projed Fi al EIR 2- 23

50



Respcnses to Comments Ascent Environmental

k' c"
F'"   Letter

4

C1ILIFOqM1A P.ED v_ H

Water Boards

State Water Resources Control Baard

Michael King
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Dear Mr. King:

DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT( EIR) FOR THE CITY OF LATHROP
CITY); LATHROP CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY SURFACE WATER

DISCHARGE PROJECT( PROJECT); SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY; STATE
CLEARINGHOUSE NO. 2019110339

We understand that the City is pursuing Clean Water State Revolving Fund ( CWSRF}
financing for this Project( CWSRF No. C- 06-8561- 110). As a funding agency and a state
agency with jurisdiction by law to preserve, enhance, and restore the quality of
California' s water resources, the State Water Resources Control Board ( State Water

Board) is providing the following information on the EIR to be prepared for the Project.

The State Water Board, Division of Financial Assistance, is respansible for

administering the CWSRF Program ( Program}. The primary purpose for the Program is
to implement the Clean Water Act and various state laws by providing financial
assistance for wastewater treatment facilities necessary to prevent water pollution,   

4- 1
recycle water, and thereby protect and promote health, safety and welfare of the
inhabitants of the state.

The Program is partially funded by the United States Environmental Protection Agency
USEPA) and requires additional " California Environmental Quality Act( CEQA)- Plus"

environmental documentation and review. Two enclosures are included that illustrate

the Program environmental review process including the additional CEQA- Plus federal
requirements. For the complete environmental application package and instructions

please visit:
http:/ Iwww waterboards. ca. qovlwater issues/ proqrams/ prants loans/srflsrf forms.shtml

The State Water Board is required to consult directly with agencies responsible for
implementing federal environmental laws and regulations. Any environmental issues
raised by federal agencies or their representatives will need to be resolved prior to the
State Water Board' s approval of a CWSRF financing commitment for your proposed
Project. For further information on the Pragram, please contact Mr. Brian Cary, at{ 916)
449- 5624.

E. Jo, u: ti Esatt vet. e+ ain  Ei Fen Sottec r :- ura, e oir e crnn

103t 1 Straet,$ acramen o. GA 4v614; lvisllinq AntlrEss.. 0. Box fC'J, Sanramenta CA' J5812- 0100  ww. v. vaterGoa Qs. ca gov

tiF.. .. t,, n.. i,

City of Lathrop

Z- 24 Lathre CTF S arface V4' ater Discharge Project Final EIR

51



Ascent Environmental Respor ses to Comments

City of Lathrop 2-       November 2020

It is important to note that prior to a CWSRF financing commitment, projects subject to
provisions of the Federal Endangered Species Act( ESA), must obtain ESA, Section 7
clearance from the United States Department of the Intarior, Fish and Wildlife Service
USFWS), and/ or the United States Department of Commerce National Oceanic and

Atmospheric Administration, National Marine Fisheries Service ( NMFS) specific to any
potential effects to special- status species.

Please be advised that the State Water Board will coordinate with the USEPA to consult 4_2

with the USFWS, andlor the NMFS regarding all federal special- status species that the
Project has the potential to affect if the Praject is to be financed by the Program. The
City will need to identify whether the Project will invalve any direct effects from
construction activities, or indirect effects such as growth inducement, that may affect
federally listed threatened, endangered, or candidate species that are known, or have a
potential to occur in the Project site, in the surrounding areas, or in the service area,
and to identify applicable conservation measures to reduce such effects.

In addition, CWSRF projects must comply with federal laws pertaining to cultural
resources, specifically Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act( Section
106). The State Water Board is responsible for ensuring compliance with Section 106
and is required to consult directly with the California State Historic Preservation Officer
SHPO}. The SHPO consultation is initiated once sufficient information is provided by

the CWSRF appticant. If the City decides to pursue CWSRF financing, please retain a
consultant that meets the Secretary af the Interior' s Professional Qualifications
Standards( http:!/ www.nps. gov/ historv/ local- law/ arch stnds 9. htm) to prepare a Section

4- 3
106 compliance report.

Note that the City will need to identify the Area of Potential Effects( APE), including
construction and staging areas, and the depth of any excavation. The APE is three-
dimensional and includes all areas that may be affected by the Project. The APE
includes the surface area and extends below ground to the depth af any Project
excavations. The records search request should extend to a %2- mile beyond project
APE. The appropriate area varies for different projects but should be drawn large
enough to provide information on what rypes of sites may exist in the vicinity.

Other federal environmental requirements pertinent to the Project under the Program
include the following ( for a complete list of all federal requirements and instructions
please visit
http!/ www waterboards ca qov/ water issues/ proqrams/ qrants laans/ srf/ srf forms. shtml

4-4

A. An alternative analysis discussing environmental impacts of the Project in either
the CEQA document( i. e. Environmental Impact Report) or in a separate report

i. e. for projects utilizing a Negative Declaration or Mitigated Negative
Declaration).

City of Lathrop
Lathrop CTF Surface Nater Discharge Pro; ect Final E R 2

52



Responses to Comments Ascent Enviro mental

City of Lathrop 3-       November 2020

B. A public hearing or meeting for adoptionlcertification of all CEQA documents
I 4- 5except for those with little or no environmental impacts.

C. Compliance with the Federal Clean Air Act: ( a} Provide air quality studies that

may have been done for the Project; and ( b) if the Project is in a nonattainment
area or attainment area subject to a maintenance plan; ( i) provide a summary of
the estimated emissions( in tons per year) that are expected from both the
construction and operation of the Project for each federal criteria pollutant in a
nonattainment or maintenance area, and indicate if the nonattainment 4- 6

designation is moderate, serious, or severe ( if applicable); ( ii) if emissions are

above the federal de minimis levels, but the Project is sized to meet only the

needs of current papulation projections that are used in the approved State
Implementation Plan for air quality, quantitatively indicate how the proposed
capacity increase was calculated using population projections.

D. Compliance with the Coastal Zone Management Act: Identify whether or not the
Project is within a caastal zone and the status of any coordination with the
California Coastal Comrnission.

E. Protection of Wetlands: Identify any portion of the proposed Project area that
should be evaluated for wetlands or United States waters delineation by the
United States Army Corps of Engineers( USACE), or requires a permit from the 4-$

USACE, and identify the status of coordination with the USACE.

F.  Compliance with the Farmland Protection Policy Act: Identify whether or not the
Project will result in the canversion of farmland. Identify the status of farmland

4- 9

prime, unique, local or statewide Importance) in the Project area and determine
if this area is under a Williamson Act Contract.

G. Compliance with the Migratory Bird Treaty Act: List any birds protected under this 
act that may be impacted by the Project and identify conservation measures to 4- 10

minimize impacts.

H. Compliance with the Flood Plain Management Act: Identify whether or not the
Project is in a Flood Management Zone and include a copy of the Federal 4- 11

Emergency Management Agency flood zone maps for the area.

I.  Compliance with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act: Identify whether or not any Wild
and Scenic Rivers would be potentially impacted by the Project and include 4- 12

conservation measures to minimize such impacts.

Following are specific comments on City' s draft EIR:

1.  For the Project, please obtain executed Incidental Take Mitigation Measures
ITMMs) for federally listed special- status species from the San Joaquin County 4- 13

of Governments who oversees the San Joaquin County Multi- Species Habitat
Conservation and Open Space Plan( SJMSCP) approved by the United States
Fish and Wildlife Service.

City of Lathrop
Z   Lathrop CTF Surface Nlater Discharge Project Fin l EIR

53



Ascent Environmental Resp nses to Comments

City of Lathrop 4-       November 2020

2. The aquatic biological assessment identifies construction- related impacts. A

coffer dam to be installed, dewatering, and contour restoration will occur in dry
season to isolate outfall construction activities. An outfall structure and
conveyance pipeline levee crossing will be installed in the San Joaquin River

4- 14

channel. Please identify the dimensions( length, width, and depth) of ground
disturbance and construction staging for these project activities.

3.  For a similar project the CWSRF Program has recently completed an informal
consultation with the National Oceanic Atmospheric Administration( NOAA)

Fisheries, ( National Marine Fisheries Service, or NMFS) office, for anadromous

fish species in the San Joaquin River, currently being constructed by the City of
Stockton. It would be prudent to gef early feedback from the NMFS on the
modetling methods, potentia! impacts, and conservation measures idenfified in
the aquatic biotogica! assessment. Please contact Jeffrey S. Stuart, Fishery
Biologist, NOAA Fisheries West Coast Region, U. S. Department of Commerce,

Califarnia Central Valley Office at Office: 916- 930- 3607 or by email at
J. Stuart a noaa. qov for technical assistance regarding the adequacy of the 4- 15

biological assessment for a potential federal consultation under the Endangered
Species Act.

a.  Resources of concern: Critical habitat designated for the Central Valley

steelhead distinct population segment( DPS), southern DPS of green
sturgeon, and delta smelt. Additionally, the Essential Fish Habitat for
Pacific salmon, which includes the Sacramento River winter- run Chinook

salmon environmentally sustainable unit( ESU), the Central Valley spring-
run Chinoak salmon ESU, and Central Valley fall-/ late fall- run Chinook
salmon.

Please upload to FAAST the following documents applicable to the proposed Project
following the City CEQA process: ( 1) one copy of the draft and final EIR, ( 2) the
resolution adopting/ certifying the EIR and making CEQA findings, ( 3) all comments
received during the review period and the City's response to those comments, ( 4) the
adopted Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program and ( 5) the Notice of
Determination filed with the San Joaquin County Clerk and the Governor' s Office of
Planning and Research, State Clearinghouse. In addition, we would appreciate notices      ¢

16
of any hearings or meetings held regarding environmental review af any projects to be
funded by the State Water Board.

Thank you for the opportunity ta review the City' s draft EIR. If you have any questions or
concerns, please feel free to contact me at( 916) 341- 6983, or by email at
Cedric. lrving a waterboards. ca. qov or contact Brian Cary at( 916) 449- 5624, or by email
at Brian. CarvCr.r7waterboards.ca.ctov or contact Mrs. Bridget Binning at( 916) 449- 5641,
or by email at Bridqet. binninq@waterboards. ca. qov.

City of Lathrop
Lathrop CTF Surf ce 1Nater Discharge Project Final EIR 2- 27

54



Responses to Comments Ascent Envirornnental

City of Lathrop 5-       November 2020

Sincerely,
Digitaily signed hy Cedric 5.

Cedric S. Irvinry Irvingy Date: 2020. 12. 0103: 08: t3

08' 00'

Gedric Irving
Environmental Scientist

Enclosures ( 2):

1. Division of Financial Assistance CEQA Requirements
4- 16

2. Clean Water State Revolving Fund Environmental Review Requirements
cont.

cc:     State Clearinghouse

Re: SCH# 2019110339)

P. O. Box 3044

Sacramento, CA 95812- 3044

bcc:   Brian Cary, Division of Financial Assistance
Jody Hack, Division of Financial Assistance

City of Lathrop
2- 28 Lathrop CTF Su, face Water Discnarge Project Final EIR

55



Ascent Environm? ntal Responses to Comments

STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD,

DIVISION OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

California Environmental Quality Act Requirements

i'he State% ater Resource5 Control Board ( State X' ater Baard} lli risic>n of l inancial ssistance

DF: 1) funds wastewater, recycled water, and dririking water infrastructure projects as well as w-ater
yualin unprovement projects usin resources from various state ant flrograms. ll applicants

sccking grant fui ds must compl with t ic California Enti ironmcntal Qualit r Act ( CEQ) and pro idc
appropriate documents to the State X' ater Board so that it can fulfill its C1i.Q: responsibiliries.

EAD AGENCY ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 4. ResalutiontMinutes- these

The a licant is usuali the Lead The State Water Board' s environmental
document that the applicant adopted or

pP Y cerdfied the CEQA document, made
Agency and must prepare and review process must be campleted

circulate an environmentai document before the State Water Baard can
CEQA findings, and approved the

before approving a project. Only a
approve a project for funding and the project;

public agency, such as a local, regional project can begin construction.

or state government, may be the Lead
5. Date- stamped copy of the Notice

Agency under CEQA. If a project wili
D4CUMENT REVIEW of Determination or Notice of

be completed by a non- governmental The State Water Board wouid like to Exemption- ttiese result after filing of

organization, Lead Agency review CEQA documents as early as
the document with the County Clerk

responsibility goes to the firsi public possible. Applicants are encouraged and the Governor' s Office of Planning

agency providing discretionary to consult with agency staff during
and Research; and

approval for the project. In this development of CEQA documents if 6. Completed Environmental
situa8on, the State Water Board may considering applying for funding from Package- this is a component of the

4- 17

serve as Lead Agency.   DfA. Potentiai appiicants should Funding Appiication.
consider sending their environmental

RESPONSIBLE AGENCY documents to DFA, Environmental Once the State Water Board receives

Typically, the State Water Board is a
hon during the CEQA public review all the required documents and

Responsible Agency. As a
period. This way, any environmental determines them to be adequate to

Responsible Agency, ihe State Water
ncerns the State Water Board has make its own findings, the

Board must make its own findings
about the project can be addressed environmental review for the funding

using information provided by the Lead
early in the process.      applicabon will be compieted.

Agency before funding a project.    REQu1RED DOCUnnENTS CONTACT INFORMATION

STATE WATER BOARD
The Environmental Section within DFA For more information about the State

requires the documents listed below to Water Board' s environmental review
RESPONSIBILITiEs

complete the environmental review: process, please visit our website:
The State Water Board' s mission is to

1. draft and Final Environmentai
hfrps:/ hvww. waterboards. ca. gov/ water

preserve, enhance, and restore the issues/programs/ grants_ loans/environ

quality of Caiifornia' s water resources
Documents- Environmenial Impact

menlal_requirements.htm!

and drinking water for the protection of
Reports, Negative Declarations,

the environment, public health; and all
Mitigated Negative Declaratlons, Notice

beneficiai ses, and to ensure their
of Exemptions, as appropriate for the

proper allocation and efficient use for project;

the benefit of present and future 2. Ali comments- fhat were received

generations. To fulBil this during the public review period and the
responsibility, and to carry out Lead Agency' s responses to those
obligations as a Responsible Agency commenis,       w a s+.

under CEQA, the State Water Board

Water Boardsmust consider the Lead Agency' s 3. Adopted Mitigation Monitoring

enviranmental document before
and Reporting Plan- this is separate

Y- 0 c , e w r 4 04{. 1 Lap P5i etl Mo*

funding a project.
from, and in addiGon to, the

identification af miiigation measures in

ihe CEQA document;

City of Lathrop
La± hrop TF Surface V/ ater Discharge Project Final EIR 2- 2°

56



Responses to Comments Ascent Environmental

x

ENVIRONMENT REVIE4V F€ DEIfiAl, CR(? 5- fU'( N       x ,    OURSRFPROGRAMS w        ,

R I,NREM ITS          AUTHOR1TtE i  ;  rne s a= a e P o, Ko a ro s a e r       

Nf& sloh4RFflroandngmusfflmm qMY In aldllMn Yd t Y y, Mk l1MkeA'     
ware eoa, A) adm ce s the Clea. va er a d        '`;  I W"`iq

Md' ae M r an anmeaas am4equenus d mmtcpMh# A 1,+ 3+ n u X4       
onnk nq warer sta z Aeroh. m Pund isR') UND'

dkh p Wetl. Applkanls must tomply tlfe Md przpl2 dot4Ft ntlE e' L       9 a s tu sa000rt r de 2 e of nfrastmn re      ,'   '  .      , a+' i

Enwro.« r.      ,,„,       P; E=, SaF o9 m= rep, e.,. u

ENUIRQNMENTAL
tederduo. cuUfngwtlrord'rcs asPanofthe .,     hde` dumscutln9enWfanme[ wtkefiHas. eb .'     F ersn nben. fle hestatea d newtedsrates

SRP4 VirenRSettalrMeetttqa4letbenCstYt$'      tqeUSE141de5 yelite' hWlfeqh[ iff'+AMtap2tM(       E. uaimertal Protecfian pye¢ r( USEPA) h 

REUI EWenuUonmetMl H9Wremee6 rm be mal pdor      hx r4spacetbk br e Aiaa wilM       a des pan- al vro nm tund nq 7h appf z t -.:

MUceNaRq( eanshuc6onattMNn.     appropriatg€ sdeP pen kS t@t Sia16 WaiN ezdtommpleletheEnvi onmenta Facage hi< h

d p       : ompilesandhansm u6 xes, ar inionn, enlal

f ryA p. R q
Commenis and s. DV 9 nfu iiapan lor Stal= R E Q U I R E M E N T S
45' ater8oa: lstaNlo e. wwtedefe: m. ne< om lar< eaddltrortal: Iksmd ananmeon tof l is. :  P'

The mriromme' ipl mderr praess used Ec      
n R, g :     

vnth state and fede a'. e v runmrntal iaurs and

detemtt ecompfian[ ertkhapproprlMts6[ eMfd      
Q 9k    regula[ mns. SRFt ndsareavailaGletorplannrv3and

hdaa4imeNonmenWxgula5onsbegrasvdlh c+ iqn, azrn. 11aznnnwcronart; rties-e9

w¢ wrfuLcampletlanotCEOd.         KNdaco ulE ii crkPr+ um§unkt
aanil AE

rra any, me apprc m a me e teaa M r cb ws s aa QUESTIONS 4- 18
ynJ must preparc and mcutate ar1 end almeabY y; p y,c}

cfocomeM 6elo e approrin5 a proj1R O dp a ErNtapgeryd$ pe imlkt ihemnsultalionprocesswnhe englhy, pr.tallfi{

pubYKaqerµy, wcpatabCat, rkgh481, asph Erpirap MlN JpS c/ f.potutirgfkdes'        
tAepwjxl2expeRcC' oaNenGro( ogcalo: wt ral

gmnmmeM. mAJ SRM1 e iS tltG LN Agenty       + FdiM11NKP1 011 P kt resou2es. Plea; e conta; t yaur State Water 6oard
wder£ EOR: trprojntwNlke ptqleted6y8.       RshlillkYbl aMYMkn1U£ .   Roject Mansaer andror Envtmnmonlsi SecGon

nongweYnmenl organf2atlon; lNd RgeaC} staH= ady. n he planning p ccess o denss v ha 
respons{ 6 kty gocS 1he At# pVMh iyMcy 5' 1' 1oF8

xnvirmime ta' nlorma4 n may he naeded for 1° rl      .

pmddln4Vtse ftib i twaltoril e en. m

theseirt4nnces, theSiahWater9aArdmayurve tl d Y1 t
yourpryee.   

a<. Lealagenryea4eXalfatthea001kant
N? iOtl+E P mnikaAa yi
r       WEBSITE

Usualty, e StNe WateY Boud t i fFOp       • F NatbiXSltQ.       .X6
Resp n bkdgeaty, m kgitsmunipdepandaH Sa{eEkirdtlngV erAct. 5We5nuiaAqW(       hno   .: xa o  '.

fmpogFus ngihkrm+ nonwbroinedbythelwd DqonHan al..., u_ s: i.t ra_.. gr rts i ac si
agenrypnwtaappronn9fundrogktaqqaC.  YliddScedcMreskt t l_     i.,,:_+ r l.

7FieapPl cnntmustprMdetAetraal P l sDe
eaNmnmcad l daumem, aswtlakd Rpwn.       f

md ad er SaPD n9 muerials demamhaGng
mmp lancev id CEQAaspertqfiheapplf atlonY      
FmlmnmeMaYPe kage.   a    „ s,...,.....       

vro'o: r i 1tr.,pr=

e   ' '  '  

HP..       
ws re+ Ada s+ w aap+a sa aw;:     Es, si iaYx iresn ssessmmrmtl arcee   ;' NHraSema,-, oa, rawi. aaK':   SRi ansc aketliataaa qaz on oftl e
CC nrdmmNp fCq e+tteMK; mM iOP-     i dti ueQfiedsoF eC ontedNa t} kced    eiFeds af the projctl for uridMaktag7 4 fium k..-   a4errtadMes Yersd( a iheprojaaaMftl ewtionale  
ateaBwl re Natiae Amhienid#: WWfity 5fandarsk     s edeS aad MlW AatiNH# 4Mfu91d tisoerces. .  0@P cs' NlstorfC propettks il.e; P+Ehktak or.   bt sefnYah Me d 9xh pmFeG aheM iNve Ee ..
m met ae ia aioa5 Uqk' ke wb etf b x     ps rr MRpmtiSroWiydxdrouStmdude. but    . Prswrictlmkas, sik. builld'uys.slruqures, orobl   B eD 6danAdgtrt, tlkennNnrmirczl mWas:..
malm anceplm,     tzmt iudm: SOpea soralde Ya eprapertlestAatmindudadU   ut eacA wdve. KimYm as tde esriromnEmel.

D I ttmissionsa e6elarthtkderal' drmPaknis°'.       lPaanlxpedeaxdttNk 6ahltffi99s    .    ar olig' hle kr irclusian in W Natioeal Ragufer af::    aitarnahve enah sis,# his infamation rm be incWded.

leae&, Ur aCuneralCoe mAy. ddltrmiretlonH:       : 9 dfwm USf 6and. Wii te Mhsto cPl res. a. hutorkpmyeM1iesfdentlYxatlon     L( eP l e yi^B̂e"^ 9re kAcetE6Adaument .
namquN6d. :: SetMu2 Orm mfarPfan n9md ropwt( HPIB) mustbeprcPmd a..atcordantnwftF :   a a tedmKe memorondum. TAe ennronmenW...

tf GNssbnsareabowtthehAerad' dtmlropvs•.       
tmiSiuRii aean d7dbasr;   `. 46ttion746requiramermbpaquaGfiedprofesvwul   a# ammwanalpsismurtincluCethefNkunng:

P% n.    KiereMspecies lktB tntl e NadonatldaAne     meeliog the Se ieUry of the Mtertai Standards fn     , ybk ak matives, inckxqng' w .
ievel6UrenaGmer3lCa oreailpdehemiiaaGonmust.       Ff tiW Smka,fl; cProplrte:    archaepbgyaMsWry             pry ecdnoaGbn" alterrutrve,    .
blth3aP.   ArtGlMSNtC A9f1 14 G IR1 CPdif1AE11 4   

d 1P'72fluB8n31ySRMqdQ7hRi kmi4i' k5 . .

el air R Y A' Hr enah4imsf be meded.       
Tahm dl a' sNab wfOLtnky6ab6ase     ... SPcdlfcrtqulrcmaatsolfieHFlRincluda. butueno2       

tpaRQixusqsd' xtt4 rx4mtlam im e.    .   41$
m a" 4M 6Rr+ Mryxtesobsmatbn      MaitedW:

reqaidlt ufthea dnmmtsWmsWrthr( ollawUg..       . y( o     .

6miefirialanda Mea+ emirunmeraalimpxts
COt1C.

wrotduen6. :       p fkWwna V rtormed69aawlAied
iheD adefuSWnna daekaAydeP nM        ontheexsti 9N+dfaNmamaronmentaswe%
areaotpo emlaleff ca( AP€ 4spm1Yin9 asseeiatbeerniromi++[ a hsYes a d

pmns  . 
bibloy5t     .    

IengMrri. dlh amldeD' afettarNiwt aih dppiop emfi} aM1anrreasuresroaddeess
An etalsatianlww# Idypreser. red fn bbir

C8 6ona+oAmdck.  a66eled map. .    impattt,Ca6o
torm) dtlrepRaJeRsv raralm eatmmnsu. itle:       areum am+atacameww d.ssearcn

Suffwdiwtda       nY sted ac! es.      .   

eaendbqtahaM+Nl¢ 8eyamtthep ajettSpecW, u+t ey5. as7V8 uPtlate.   

PaRcolakinetkclPA123andp1dt0?           •.
Psde atagMc xojv4amas dspeda       +

Bidcgmundref rch wg., oMUSG& map5,       SRfro tkrtsalsot uuaadeu9b fliim kr
x

ocamencx
tlhnegraphitncaAs. Ms caire mds erch.

e9   9 WW  l

Cnmma ly aGP wnl utet eGM' dam7afmh iv a       •. iderrofi`xartdmeiwrrsrominimae. andlar       .

DanmenqtiondunWechtotliewlrve....      
e public  respomibk agmcies. and  .fmh

EsGmMor Mo9N if EEMadI w apprwnmtte praJe¢
x ad unpaax and truster :. itek + gennes umin CEOA.. m
artcommandalioaonanES. Sderorminmon Are¢ rmHerrogeCemmiss'an. aRN° P"    

rt4md en&SioAs llus madel nn he downloaded TriCes, bistrrkai sufieties and N tereskd       cevka . aml mmmeM an the . paJM
wwwtabomairom A. WerY gukte md.

noe ec4"'^' f 4bmneac Niyro  .... ..   
ptM1ies::.: atprojcch, ncepftlaasewllhlittletanoeiMwruneMal.

ad. MsdyaKe4`" mryaNaaandisGMhrm       .
Dem9edEacri oCw  methads mpacrs.: lname tEtra. aemicequeaayAsked9uestroasdoammtaremil. E4.      . ap, Xdyend,    

p  Y h       M P b. mus

rtthusiMesvrel: APV aatsakomay mrod::       ..
andkr ag and     .  . qnldaVuWkheMfiAarmeetlngroapprovctheCE6q

p ur tt
The Si»k Yd r BraM et f wkA totnluU en.      , Hkellfi mdev2Wanardu+ lbuat  .      aQ wneM(gSmp( EO0.prueuincllespuEficirolmng
iadepeiWenttwiewoi MmmNxials4udetaimin  .    raoureesrtlkNrfieAPE .       .     apporcunAkx 6ut a cr. pnblic medfags may De
thBPakaGa4e etldth8 ajeRaeUte:( ddenAy    .. CukuqrrewGt[ eWttSC rtdfoiCEmlmapbe    aeetladwmeanNefederalrequrt6menn:TheappGrontE59

fs lsplciis N qar rea+ a[ ammmentl anio    ured, Entoh2nBrparema' eMkrmatian.          willte: aked. fo. Pmridethedate( s. u4ahensuch
SIS AonYmrioD dxpderESA, Seelinrt7.   .  .   meain t6t were heltl for the projetl a5 paR W the

mdmsmenk rertew.

City of Lathrop
2- 30 Lathrop CTF Surface Alater Discrarge Project Final EIR

57



Ascent Environmental Responses to Comments

Letter 4 State Water Resources Control Board

Cedric Irving, Environmental Scientist
December 1, 2020

4- 1 The comment expresses the understanding that the City is pursuing Clean Water State Revolving Fund
CWSRF) financing for the proposed project. The comment provides background about SWRCB' s role in the

CWSRF program and requirements for preparation of a CEQA- Plus environmental document. The comment
notes the requirements for agencies consulting with SWRCB that are seeking CWRSF financing. While the
City expressed initial interest in this funding source, it has decided to not seek CWSRF financing for the
proposed project; thus, a CEQA- Plus environmental document and compliance with other CWSRF financing
requirements are not necessary.

4- 2 The comment summarizes the federal requirements related to environmental resources for projects seeking

CWSRF financing. See the response to comment 4- 1, which explains that the City is not seeking CWSRF
financing for the proposed project.

4- 3 The comment summarizes the federal requirements pertaining to cultural resources for projects seeking

CWSRF financing. See the response to comment 4- 1, which explains that the City is not seeking CWSRF
financing for the proposed project.

4- 4 The comment states that other environmental requirements of the CWRSF financing program include an
alternative analysis in the CEQA document. See the response to comment 4- 1, which explains that the City is

not seeking CWSRF financing for the proposed project. An alternatives analysis is included in Chapter 5,
Alternatives," in the Draft EIR in accordance with CEQA.

4- 5 The comment states that the CWRSF financing program requires a public hearing or meeting for adoption of
all CEQA documents. See the response to comment 4- 1, which explains that the City is not seeking CWSRF

financing for the proposed project. However, a, public meeting was hosted by the City to hear oral comments
on the Draft EIR ( see Section 1. 7, " CEQA Public Review Process," in this Final EIR), and certification of this Final

EIR would occur at a public meeting of the City Council.

4- 6 The comment summarizes the environmental requirements of the CWRSF financing program related to air

quality. See the response to comment 4- 1, which explains that the City is not seeking CWSRF financing for
the proposed project. Nevertheless, as required by CEQA, air quality impacts are analyzed in Section 3. 2, " Air
Quality," of the Draft EIR.

4- 7 The comment identifies the environmental requirements of the CWRSF financing program related to the

Coastal Zone Management Act. The proposed project is not located in the coastal zone. See the response to
comment 4- 1, which explains that the City is not seeking CWSRF financing for the proposed project.

4- 8 The comment identifies the environmental requirements of the CWRSF financing program related to

wetlands or a permit from USACE. See the response to comment 4- 1, which explains that the City is not
seeking CWSRF financing for the proposed project. Potential impacts on or the loss of waters of the United
States and state are assessed in the discussion of Impact 3. 3- 6 on page 3. 3- 30 in Section 3. 3, " Terrestrial
Biological Resources," in the Draft EIR, which states that an aquatic resources delineation was conducted on

June S, 2020. The delineation has been submitted to USACE for verification. The project would not result in
significant impacts to wetlands.

4- 9 The comment states that the other environmental requirements of the CWRSF financing program include

compliance with the Farmland Protection Policy Act. See the response to comment 4- 1, which explains that

the City is not seeking CWSRF financing for the proposed project. However, as stated on page 3- 3 in Section
3. 1. 2, " Effects Found Not to Be Significant," no Important Farmland or Williamson Act contract lands are

located on the project site.

4- 10 The comment states that the other environmental requirements of the CWRSF financing program include

compliance with the Migratory Bird Treaty Act. See the response to comment 4- 1, which explains that the

Cit of Lathrop
La± hrop CTF S rf ce 4Nater DIscY ar e Prcject Fii a) EIR 2- 31

58



Responses to Corr ments Ascent Environmental

City is not seeking CWSRF financing for the proposed project. However, potential impacts on birds that may
be covered by the Migratory Bird Treaty Act are analyzed in the discussion of Impacts 3. 3- 3 and 3. 3- 4 on
pages 3. 3- 26 through 3. 3- 28 in Section 3. 3, " Terrestrial Biological Resources," in the Draft EIR. The project
would not result in significant impacts to migratory birds.

4- 11 The comment states that the other environmental requirements of the CWRSF financing program include
compliance with the Flood Plain Management Act. See the response to comment 4- 1, which explains that the

City is not seeking CWSRF financing for the proposed project. Flood impacts are analyzed in Section 3. 9,
Hydrology and Water Quality," of the Draft EIR and were found to be mitigated to a less than significant level.

4- 12 The comment states that the other environmental requirements of the CWRSF financing program include
compliance with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act. The San Joaquin River, which is located in part of the project
site, is not a designated Wild and Scenic River. See the response to comment 4- 1, which explains that the City

is not seeking CWSRF financing for the proposed project.

4- 13 The comment requests that the proposed project obtain the executed ITMMs for federally listed special-
status species from SJCOG. As discussed in Section 3. 3. 1, " Regulatory Setting," of the Draft EIR and in the

response to comment 1- 4, the City of Lathrop is a participant in the SJMSCP, and the proposed project is a
covered activity under the SJMSCP. Through participation in the SJMSCP, the City is authorized for take
under the USFWS Section 10( a)( 1)( B) permit and the California Department of Fish and Wildlife Section 2081

permit issued to the City of Lathrop. The City will implement avoidance and minimization measures pursuant
to the issued incidental take permits before ground disturbance. As described above under response to
comment 1- 2, consultation with USFWS under the ESA and with CDFW will occur to obtain the required

incidental take authorizations for riparian brush rabbit and the City will implement Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 5:
Protect Riparian Brush Rabbit to avoid take of individual riparian brush rabbits by the project.

4- 14 The comment requests that the dimensions ( length, width, and depth) of ground disturbance and

construction staging for installation of the cofferdam and construction of the outfall and conveyance pipeline

levee crossing in the San Joaquin River channel be identified.

Before construction on the waterside of the levee begins, a temporary cofferdam would be erected using

fifty 5- foot-wide by approximately 60- foot-tall sheet piles. The piles would be put into place using a 200- ton
crawler crane positioned on the levee crown. To ensure that the crane reaches the full extent of the area
where sheet piles would be placed, the levee crown above the ordinary high- water mark, would be

temporarily widened using crane mats and jump bridges to facilitate crane operations. After each sheet pile
is put into position using the crane, an APE Model 200 vibratory driver fitted on the crane would be used to
vibrate each sheet pile into place, up to approximately 40 feet below the riverbed. The anticipated footprint
of the cofferdam is estimated to be approximately 0. 003 acre and 250 linear feet( LF) in length, enclosing an

area of approximately 0. 18 acre.

For the conveyance pipeline/ levee crossing, approximately 250 LF of new 20- inch welded steel pressurized
pipe would be installed in an approximately 16- foot-wide trench excavated through the levee seepage berm
and levee prism above the 200- year water surface elevation from the levee toe to the proposed outfall on
the waterside of the levee. The trench would be excavated to a maximum depth of 5 feet, with typical depth

being 4 feet.

The outfall structure would be approximately 17 feet by 10 feet, and excavation in the channel would be to a
maximum depth of approximately 16 feet below present channel contours and 4 feet below the channel
bottom.

4- 15 The comment summarizes CWSRF staff experience related to informal consultation with NOAA- NMFS for

anadromous fish species in the San Joaquin River. The comment recommends getting early feedback from

NOAA- NMFS on modelling methods, potential impacts, and conservation measures identified in the aquatic
biological assessment( BA). The City appreciates this comment and submitted its BA to the USACE for
submittal to NOAA- NMFS in accordance with Section 7 of the ESA.

City of athrop
2- 32 L throp CTF S n face Water Discharge Project Final EIR

59



Ascent Environmental Responses to Comments

4- 16 The comment provides procedural information related to the CWRSF financing program. See the response to
comment 4- 1, which explains that the City is not seeking CWSRF financing for the proposed project.

4- 17 The comment includes a summary of CEQA requirements for applicants seeking grant funds from SWRCB.
The City is not seeking CWSRF financing or any other SWRCB grant funding for the proposed project.

4- 18 The comment includes a summary of environmental review requirements for applicants seeking CWSRF

financing. See the responses to comments 4- 1 and 4- 17, which explain that the City is not seeking CWSRF
financing or any other SWRCB grant funding for the proposed project.

City of Latfirop

Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharge Pro; ect Final EIR 2- 33

60



Responses to Comments Ascent Envirornnental

57 4' 1' 8 Ur C 1tU1tN[ A lUS1NttS' IR4NSPOR' PAl' IQN pNDHOUSING AG, NCY Gavin New>om_ C; ovemor

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION Letter
P. O. BOX 2048 STOCKTON, CA 95201 5

1976 E. CFiARTER WAY/ 1976 E. DR. MARTIN

LUTHER KING JR. BLVD. 95205}

TTY: California Relay Servicr( R00) 735- 2929 fakirrgConse} anon

PIlONE ( 2U9) 941- 192 L a Californiu it in• uf'Life.

Fr1X ( 209) 948- 7194

December 2, 2020

10- SJ- 5- PM R015. 27

SCH# 2014110339

Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility
Surface Water Discharge Project

Michael King

City of Lathrop
390 Toevne Center Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Dear Mc Kinb

The California Department ofTransportation appreciates the opportunity to review the Draft Ei vironmental
Impact Keport far the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility( CTF) Surface Water Discharge Project.
Tl e project proposes the discharge of recycled water from the existing CTF to a proposed outfall location 5- 1

on the east side of San Joaquin River on Inland Passage Way north of Sadler Oak Road. The Department
has the following comments:

Further review of the plans is recommended since the pipe crosses the State ribht of way.  An

Encroachment Permit w711 be required for work done within the Deparlment' s right of way. This

vork is subject to the California Enviromnental Quality Act. Therefore, environmental studies may
be required as part of the encroachment permits application. A qualified professional must conduct
any such studies undertaken to satisfy the Uepartment' s environme tal review responsibilities.    5' 2

Ground disturbing activities to the site prior to completion and/ or approval of required environmental
documents may affect the Department' s ability to issue a permit for the project. Furthermore, if
engineering plans or drawings will be part of your pennit application, they should be prepared in
standard units.

Please submit a hydrolo y and hydraulic report to Caltrans District 10 tor review. This report is
required to determine any potential impacts to State facilities, including tlle nearby 1- 5 bridaes. 5- 3

Aoy oversize vehicles that might be used in construction will require a permit through Caltrans
Headquar[ ers Transportation Permits. instructions on how to apply can be found here:  5- 4

https: l/ clot. ca. ov/ pr Qramsltraffic- operations/ transportation permitslhc- to- applv

lf you have any questions or would like to discuss our comments in more detail, please contact Nichotas j 5- 5
Fung at( 209) 948- 7190 or myself at( 209) 941- 192 L 1

5incerely,

ii G  

F4k

TOM DUMAS, CHIEF

OFFICE OF METROPOLITAN PLANNING

Cullrans impr ves mobililv ucrass Culifornia"

City of Lathrop
2- 34 Lathrop CTF Surface Nlater Discharge Project Final EIR

61



Ascent Envirorimental Responses to Commenis

Letter 5 California Department of Transportation

Tom Dumas, Chief

December 2, 2020

5- 1 The comment includes an introduction to the comment letter and summarizes the proposed project. No

response is necessary.

5- 2 The comment suggests that the proposed project would involve construction in a state right- of- way ( ROW),
which would require environmental studies as part of an encroachment permit application. This is not

correct. The part of the project site between Harlan Road and Inland Passage Way includes a state ROW, but
no construction activities are proposed in this location. The portion of the project alignment in the state
ROW includes existing pipelines that the proposed project intends to use. For the reasons described above,
there would be no need to obtain an encroachment permit from the state and conduct any supporting

studies. However, if changes to the project are later proposed that would involve construction in the state
ROW, the City would perform the necessary environmental studies and apply for and obtain an
encroachment permit from Caltrans before any ground- disturbing activities within Caltrans ROW.

5- 3 The comment requests that the City submit a hydrology and hydraulic report to Caltrans District 10 for
review. The application package that was submitted to the Central Valley Flood Protection Board for the Title
23 encroachment permit and Section 408 categorical permission included a screening analysis that
demonstrates that the net impact on the in- channel cross- section area for the outfall structure would be 0. 23

percent at the design floodplain and that the peak discharge of treated flow into the San Joaquin River
would be 0. 03 percent of the design flood flow. Impacts on the San Joaquin River during flood conditions at
the project location, located approximately 3, 000 feet downstream from the Interstate 5 overpass, would be
negligible. A copy of the analysis prepared for the Central Valley Flood Protection Board will be provided to
Caltrans District 10. The analysis demonstrates that the project would not result in any impacts to Caltrans
facilities.

5- 4 The comment notes that oversized vehicles used in construction of the proposed project would be required

to obtain a permit through Caltrans Headquarters Transportation Permits. The City would obtain any

necessary permits related to use of oversized vehicles during construction.

5- 5 The comment provides closing remarks and includes contact information. No response is necessary.

City of Lathrop
Lathr CTF Surface Water Dischar e Project Final EIR 2- 35

62



Responses to Comments Ascent Environmental

STATE OF CALIFORNIA GAVIN NEWS

Letter

CALIFORNIA STATE LANDS COMMISSION JENNIfER LUCCHESI, fxecu 6

10d Howe Avenue, Suite 100- South
916) 574- 1800 Fax( 91

Sacramento, CA 95825- 8202 y; Catifornia Relay Service TDD Phone t- 8      -

t jrom Voice Phone 1- 800- 735- 2922

Coniact Phone:( 916) 5T41890

c f Lvf a, y F'

December 3, 2020

File Ref: SCH# 2b19110339

Michael King
Director of Public Works

City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

V!A ELECTRONIC MA1L ONLY( mkinq aC. ci. tathrop. ca. us)

Subject: Draft Environmental Impact Report( EIR) for Lathrop Consolidated
Treatment Facility( CTF) Surface Water Discharge Project, San Joaquin
County

Dear Mr. King:

The California State Lands Commission ( Commission) staff has reviewed the subject

Draft EIR for the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility Surface Water Discharge
Project( Project), which is being prepared by the city of Lathrop ( City). The City, as the
agency that oversees the Consolidated Treatment Facility( CTF) and the public agency
proposing to carry out the Project, is the lead agency under the California
Environmental Quality Act( CEQA}( Pub. Resources Code, § 21000 et seq.). The

Commission is a trustee agency for projects that could directly or indirectly affect 6- 1

sovereign land and its accompanying Public Trust resources or uses. Additionally,
because the Project involves work on sovereign land, the Commission will act as a

responsible agency. Commission staff requests that the City consult with us on
preparation of the Draft EIR as required by CEQA section 21153, subdivision ( a), and
the State CEQA Guidelines section 15086, subdivisions ( a)( 1) and ( a){ 2).

Commission Jurisdiction and Public Trust Lands

The Commission has jurisdictian and management authority over all ungranted
tidelands, submerged lands, and the beds af navigable lakes and waterways. The
Commission also has certain residual and review authority for tidelands and submerged 6_Z

lands legislatively granted in trust to local jurisdictions( Pub. Resources Code, §§ 6009,

subd. ( c); 6009. 1; 6301; 6306). All tidelands and submerged lands granted or
ungranted, as well as navigable lakes and waterways, are subject to the protections of
the common law Public Trust Doctrine.

City of Lathrop
2- 36 Lathrop CTF Surfa e Nater Discharge Project Fin l EIR

63



Ascent Environmental Responses to Comments

Michael King Page 2 December 3, 2020

As general background, the State of California acquired sovereign ownership of all
tidelands and submerged lands and beds of navigable lakes and waterways upon its
admission to the United States in 1850. The State holds these lands for the benefit of all

people of the state for statewide Public Trust purposes, which include but are not limited
to waterborne commerce, navigation, fisheries, water- related recreation, habitat

preservation, and open space. On tidal watervvays, the State' s sovereign fee ownership
e ends landward to the mean high tide line, except for areas of fill or artificial accretion

or where the baundary has been fixed by agreement or a court. Such boundaries may
not be readily apparent from present day site inspections.

As previously mentioned in our letter dated December 17, 2019, Commission staff
6- 2

determined that the San Joaquin River at this location, over which a portion of the
cont.

Project will extend, includes State- owned sovereign land. It is important to note that the

Commission has a lease in this vicinity with Califia, LLC, a California Limited Liability
Company. On June 19, 2014, the Commission authorized the issuance af a 25-year
General Lease— Right- of-Way Use, Lease No. PRC 2854. 1, for the continued
maintenance of an existing non- operational 20- inch drainage outlet. A lease from the
Comrnission will be required for the portion of the Project encroaching on State-owned
lands. Please contact George Asimakopoulos, Public Land Management Specialist

see contact information below) for further information on the extent of the

Commission' s jurisdiction and lease application requirements.

Proiect Description

The City is proposing to establish a direct discharge of CTF- generated and
dechlorinated disinfected, tertiary- treated effluent to the San Joaquin River for use when
generation of treated CTF effluent would exceed the capacity of the City' s recycled
water system to store and reuse treated effluent for landscape irrigation. The majority of
CTF effluent would be discharged to the San Joaquin River during winter, when
irrigation demands are low and river flow is relatively high, and less would be
discharged during the irrigation season, when reuse of CTF- recycled water would be
maximized for landscape irrigation. This approach would altow land designated under

the general plan for urban uses to be developed in accordance with the plan.

The 2Q13 CTF Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration considered all impacts 6- 3

related to the construction and operation of the expanded CTF using land disposal, but
it did not evaluate impacts associated with modification of the CTF to dechlorinate

treated effluent and discharge that effluent to the San Joaquin River. This Draft EIR

analyzes impacts associated with the construction and operation of the proposed
dechlorination system, efFluent pipeline, and outfall. Project objectives include:

Providing for planned City buildout and development based on the City' s General
Plan by providing effluent discharge to the San Joaquin River
Providing efficient and cost- effective wastewater services through buildout of the
City

Maximizing use of recycled water in the City presently and in the future

City of Lathrop
Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharge Project Final EIR 2- 37

64



Responses to Comments Ascent Environmental

Michael King Page 3 December 3, 2020

From the Project Description, Commission staff understands that the Project would

include the following components that have potential to affect State- owned sovereign
land:

Installation of sheet pile coffer dam
6- 3

Installation of a new effluent discharge outfall
cont.

Per the Draft EIR, the proposed Project would be the environmentally superior
alternative.

Environmental Review

Commission staff requests that the City consider the following comments when
preparing the Final EIR to ensure that impacts to State- owned sovereign land are
adequately analyzed for the Commission' s use of the EIR to support a future lease
approval for the Project.

General Comments 6- 4

1. As noted above, the Commission has a lease in this vicinity with Califia, LLC
Lease No. PRC 2854. 1) for continued maintenance of an existing non-

operational 20- inch drainage outlet in the vicinity of the Project. Commission staff
request clarification as to why this existing outFall was not considered as an
alternative to the proposed Project, as its use would likely result in reduced
environmental impacts.

Recreation

2.  Under section 3. 1. 2, Effects Found Not to Be Significant, it was determined that

the proposed Project would have no impact on recreation; however, the Draft EIR
should include a section describing the potential for the Project to affect
recreational uses and public access to the San Joaquin River. The Draft EIR
should discuss recreational uses and access points in the Project vicinity,
whether and to what extent these uses would be facilitated or disrupted by the 6- 5

Project, and what, if any, measures could be implemented by the City to reduce
any potential negative impacts. This discussion should also identify any safety
measures the City will put in place to ensure public safety for recreational
activities in the area. Measures could include a public notice and Project area
signage provided in advance of the Project, notifying the public of any disruptions
or creation of alternate access points or use areas during construction.

Aquatic Bioloqical Resources

3.  On page 3.4-25, the Draft EIR provides an example of a project in Fort Bragg
conducted in 2Q15 to illustrate the likely underwater noise levels for the proposed 6- 6

Project during sheet pile installation. Although the two projects may be similar, it
is unknown what equipment or procedures were used for the Fort Bragg project;
therefore, Commission staff cannot assume that the peak sound pressures in the

City of Lathrop
2- 38 Lathrop CTF Surface VVater Discharge Project Final EIR

65



Ascent Environmental Responses to Comments

Michael King Page 4 December 3, 2020

water of 170 to 174 d6 are representative of the proposed Project. Commission
staff requests additional information on the Fort Bragg project cofferdam
installation and whether environmental conditions at the Fort Bragg site are 6- 6

similar to those at the Project site. River depth, sediment type, and salinity can
cont

impact sound propagation, which would affect the noise levels at various
distances from the cofferdam/ pile driving source.

Cultural Resources

4.  The Draft EIR proposes Mitigation Measure( MM) 3. 5- 2 to address inadvertent
discoveries of archeological resources. The title to all archaeological sites and
historic or cultural resources on or in the tide and submerged lands of California
is vested in the state and under the jurisdiction af the Commission ( Pub.       6- 7

Resources Code, § 6313). Commission staff requests that the following
statement be added to MM 3. 5-2: " The final disposition of archaeological,

historical, and paleontological resources recovered on State lands under the
jurisdiction of the California State Lands Commission must be approved by the
Commission."

drology and Water Qualitv

5.  Impact 3. 9- 1 ( p. 3.9- 13) states that the proposed Project would require regulatory
permits from the U. S. Corps of Engineers, the Regional Water Quality Control
Board, and the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, and that these permits

would contain best management practices and measures that would avoid and
minimize impacts to water quality. Therefore, the impacts were found to be less
than significant, and no MMs were required.

In order to avoid the improper deferral of mitigation, MMs must be specific,    6_g

feasible, and fully enforceable to minimize significant adverse impacts from a
project, and" shall not be deferred until some future time." ( State CEQA

Guidelines, § 15126. 4, subd. ( a)). For example, references to obtaining permits
from regulatory agencies to reduce an impact, without calling out the specific
activities in the Draft EIR to reduce that particular impact to a less than significant
level, may be considered deferral. Commission staff suggest that Impact 3. 9- 1 be
reanalyzed and if best management practices or measures are required to
reduce the impact to a less than significant level, that they are clearly detailed as
part of the Project plans or called out as MMs.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Draft EIR for the Project. As a
responsible and trustee agency, the Commission will need to rely on the Final EIR for
the issuance of any lease as specified above and, therefore, we request that you
consider our comments prior to certification of the EIR. Please send copies of future 6- 9

Project- related documents, including electronic copies of the Final EIR, Mitigation
Monitoring and Reporting Program, Notice of Determination, CEQA Findings and, if
applicable, Statement of Overriding Considerations when they become available.

City of Lathrop
L throp CTF Surface Water Discha ge Pr oject Fina) EIR 39

66



Responses to Corriments Ascent Environmental

Michael King Page 5 December 3, 2020

Please refer questions concerning environmental review to Cynthia He zog, Senior
Environmental Scientist, at( 916} 574- 1310 or nthia. herzoq a slc. ca. qov. For questions

concerning archaeological or historic resources under Commission jurisdiction, please
contact Staff Attorney Jamie Garrett, at( 916) 574- 0398 or iamie. garrett( c slc. ca. aov. For    -

9

questions concerning Commission leasing jurisdiction, please contact George
cont.

Asimakopoulos, Public Land Management Specialist, at( 916) 574- 0990 or
c,eorqe.asimakopoulos(a slc.ca.qov.

Sincerely,

l.tst i    '
Nicole Dobroski, Chief

Division of Environmental Planning
and Management

cc: O ce of Planning and Research
G. Herzog, Commission
G. Asimakopoulos, Commission

J. Garrett, Commissian

City of Lathrop

2- 40 Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharge Project Final EIR

67



Ascent Environmental Responses to Comments

Letter 6 California State Lands Commission

Nicole Dobroski, Chief

December 3, 2020

6- 1 The City acknowledges that CSLC is a trustee agency and may be a responsible agency for the proposed
project. In compliance with Section 15086(a)( 1) and (a)( 2), the City provided a copy of the Draft EIR for the
proposed project to CSLC for review and comment during the 45- day public review period. Responses to
comments provided by CSLC on the Draft EIR are provided below. This comment does not address the
adequacy, accuracy, or completeness of the Draft EIR, and no further response is necessary.

6- 2 The City is aware of the existing lease between CSLC and Califia, LLC ( Lease No. PRC 2854. 1) for the
continued maintenance of the nonoperational 20- inch drainage outlet. Since release of the notice of

preparation ( NOP), which identified this site as the proposed outfall location for the proposed project, and
on which CLSC' s December 17, 2019, comment letter was based, the proposed outfall location has been
changed. The outfall location identified in the Draft EIR is approximately 500 feet downstream from the
location identified in the NOP. If the current proposed outfall location includes state- owned sovereign land,

the City would apply for a new lease from CSLC, as required. The City will contact George Asimakopoulos,
public land management specialist, for further information on the extent of CSLC' s jurisdiction within the

project site, specifically the current proposed outfall location.

6- 3 The comment provides a summary of the proposed project. No response is necessary.

6- 4 The results of modeling performed during the outfall design process determined that the bathymetry at the
location of the nonoperational 20- inch outlet maintained by Califia, LLC, would not allow for mixing of the
treated effluent that would be adequate to meet Central Valley RWQCB and NMFS requirements for protection
of fish and other aquatic resources. This location was found to result in greater environmental impacts and for
these reasons, was considered infeasible. Therefore, this location was eliminated from consideration.

6- S Referencing Section 3. 1. 2, " Effects Found Not to Be Significant," of the Draft EIR, where recreation impacts are
addressed, the comment states that the Draft EIR should include a section describing the potential for the
project to affect recreational uses and public access to the San Joaquin River. The new outfall on the San
loaquin River would not be located in an area with extensive recreation. Although fishing occurs along the

river nearby the project site, implementation of the proposed project would not meaningfully reduce
opportunities for people to fish. The proposed project would include a new outfall structure that would be
surrounded by 100 linear feet( 4,500 square feet [ sq. ft.]) of erosion protection material ( e. g., articulated

concrete block, riprap) above and below the headwall and extending upstream and downstream of the

outfall to prevent scour. The amount of riverbank near the project site that is available for fishing or for
visiting the river is extensive, and the new outfall structure would not reduce those opportunities; it would
simply remove a very limited area from access to the river and riverbank. This would not meaningfully reduce
the overall area available for recreational use, such as fishing. As part of implementation of the proposed
project, the City may choose to install signage to deter people from climbing on the outfall structure and
address any other potential trespassing concerns.

6- 6 The comment requests additional information on the Fort Bragg project cofferdam installation, which is
included in the Technicaf Guidance forAssessment and Mitigation of the Hydroacoustic Effects of Pi(e Driving on
Fish report( Caltrans 2015) ( see page 3.4- 25 under Impact 3. 4- 1 in Section 3.4, "Aquatic Biological Resources," in

the Draft EIR), including the equipment or procedures that were used, in order to assess the applicabiliry of the
peak sound pressures in the water for that project( 170- 174 decibels) to the proposed project.

The following information was referenced in the Draft EIR from Technical Guidance forAssessment and
Mitigation of the Hydroacoustic Effects of Pile Driving on Fish ( Caltrans 2015: 1- 247 and Table 1. 13- 2):

Construction of the cofferdams consisted of driving four" spud" piles ( H- pile) and a series of 2- foot-
wide sheet piles. The sheet piles were installed using a vibratory pile driver only, and there was no
attenuation used. Underwater noise levels were measured during installation of sheet piles....

Cfty of Lathrop
La[ hrop CTF Surface LVat2r Discharge Project Final EIR 2- 41

68



Responses to Comments Ascent Environmental

Approximately 14 H- piles and 171 sheet piles were monitored on 17 days April 6, 2007—July 26, 2007.
The peak sound pressure levels and RMS levels were measured.

The proposed project also involves installing sheet piles using a vibratory pile driver technique; thus, it is
believed that the peak sound pressures recorded for the Fort Bragg project are a reasonable approximation
of the peak sound pressures that would likely occur during construction of the proposed project. No
characteristics of the proposed project site ( e.g., depths, sediment type, salinity) suggest that peak sound
pressures would be notably higher than those cited the Fort Bragg project.

6- 7 The comment states that archaeological sites and historic or cultural resources on or in the tide and

submerged lands of California are under the jurisdiction of CSLC and requests that Mitigation Measure 3. 5- 2
be revised to reflect thatjurisdiction. In response to this comment, Mitigation Measure 3. 5- 2 is revised. This

change is presented in Chapter 3, " Revisions to the Draft EIR," in this Final EIR. The revision clarifies CSLC
jurisdiction relative to previously unrecorded archaeological resources inadvertently discovered during
project- related ground disturbance; thus, the change does not alter the conclusions with respect to the
significance of any environmental impact.

New text is added to Mitigation Measure 3. 5- 2 in Table ES- 1 in the " Executive Summary" chapter of the Draft

EIR on page ES- 17 as follows:

Impact 3. 5- 2: Cause a Substantial PS Mitigation Measure 3. 5- 2: Implement Inadvertent LTS

Adverse Change in the Significance of Discovery Measures for the Protedion of
Archaeological Resources Archaeological Resources

Although no archaeological resources If any prehistoric or historic- era subsurface
have been identified on the project site,       archaeological features or deposits, including locally

project- related ground- disturbing darkened soil(" midden"), that could conceal cultural

activities could result in the discovery or deposits are inadvertently discovered during project-
damage of previously undiscovered related construction activities, all ground- disturbances
archaeological resources as defined in within a minimum of 50 feet of the find shall be halted

State CEQA Guidelines Section 15064. 5. until a qualified professional archaeologist can
This would be a potentially significant evaluate the discovery. The archaeologist shall
impact.      examine the resources, assess their significance, and

recommend appropriate procedures to the lead

agency to either further investigate or mitigate
adverse impacts( e. g., adverse effect on a significant
historical resource). If the qualified archaeologist
determines the archaeological material to be Native

American in nature, the City shall contact the
appropriate California Native American tribe i. e.

Buena Vista Rancheria Me- Wuk Indians and North

Valle Yokuts Tribe) for their input on the preferred
treatment of the find. If the find is determined to be a

unique archaeological resource and it cannot be

avoided, then appropriate procedures to protect the

integrity of the resource shall be applied( e. g.,
preservation in place, data recovery program pursuant
to PRC Section 21083. 2[ i]). During evaluation or

mitigative treatment, ground- disturbance and
construction work may continue on other parts of the

project site. The California State Lands Commission

CSLC) shall a prove the final disposition of any
archaeoloqical, historical, and paleontoloqical
resources recovered on state lands under CSLC

iurisdiction.

City of Lathrop

2_ 42 Lathrop CTF Surface Water Disch.arc e Project Final EIR

69



AscenC Environmental Responses to Comments

New text is added to Mitigation Measure 3. 5- 2 on page 3. 5- 14 in Section 3. 5, " Cultural, Tribal Cultural, and
Paleontological Resources," in the Draft EIR as follows:

Mitigation Measure 3. 5- 2: Implement Inadvertent Discovery Measures for the Protection of
Archaeological Resources

If any prehistoric or historic- era subsurface archaeological features or deposits, including locally
darkened soil (" midden"), that could conceal cultural deposits are inadvertently discovered during

project- related construction activities, all ground- disturbances within a minimum of 50 feet of the find
shall be halted until a qualified professional archaeologist can evaluate the discovery. The archaeologist
shall examine the resources, assess their significance, and recommend appropriate procedures to the

lead agency to either further investigate or mitigate adverse impacts ( e. g., adverse effect on a
significant historical resource). If the qualified archaeologist determines the archaeological material to
be Native American in nature, the City shall contact the appropriate California Native American tribe

i e Buena Vista Rancheria Me- Wuk Indians and North Valley Yokuts Tribe) for their input on the

preferred treatment of the find. If the find is determined to be a unique archaeological resource and it
cannot be avoided, then appropriate procedures to protect the integrity of the resource shall be
applied ( e.g., preservation in place, data recovery program pursuant to PRC Section 21083. 2[ i]). During

evaluation or mitigative treatment, ground- disturbance and construction work may continue on other
parts of the project site. The California State Lands Commission ( CSLC) shall approve the final
disposition of any archaeological historical and paleontoloqical resources recovered on state lands
under CSLC jurisdiction.

6- 8 The comment correctly notes that the discussion of Impact 3. 9- 1 ( see page 3. 9- 13 in Section 3. 9, " Hydrology
and Water Quality," in the Draft EIR) states that the proposed project would require regulatory permits from
USACE, the Central Valley RWQCB, and the California Department of Fish and Wildlife and that these permits
would include BMPs and measures that would avoid and minimize impacts on water quality. However,

according to the comment, the analysis references obtaining permits from regulatory agencies without
identifying the specific actions that would be required by those permits to reduce a particular impact to a
less- than- significant level, and suggeststhat BMPs and measures required to avoid or minimize impacts to

water quality be clearly detailed in the ana ysis or included as mitigation measures to avoid deferral of
mitigation.

On January 3, 2019, the California Natural Resources Agency promulgated a number of changes to the state
guidelines for implementing CEQA, including changes related to deferred mitigation. The changes to the
guidelines on deferred mitigation clarify that deferral may be appropriate as part of a future regulatory
process if compliance is mandatory and substantial evidence confirms that the regulatory process would
achieve the requisite performance standards. The guidelines also provide that deferral may be appropriate if
another regulatory agency is required to issue a permit for the project and that agency is expected to
impose mitigation requirements independent of the CEQA process.

The analysis in the Draft EIR explains that before the outfall can be constructed within the river channel, the

City must obtain a CWA Section 404 permit from USACE and a Section 401 WQC from the Central Valley
RWQCB. The CWA WQC must be obtained ( before construction in waters of the State), the agency from

which it is to be issued is known ( Central Valley RWQCB), and what it will require is identified generally( i. e.,
storm water pollution prevention plan [ SWPPP] and construction BMPs that would prevent the project from
exceeding water quality objectives at levels and for durations that couid adversely affect designated
beneficial uses of the San Joaquin River). For projects required by law to obtain regulatory permits, it is
appropriate to fully consider the permitting conditions and performance standards of permitting agencies
when assessing project impacts. This provides a more realistic construction scenario that can then be
accurately assessed for water quality changes and resultant impacts, if any, as analyzed in the Draft EIR.
Similarly, on page 3. 9- 13 of the Draft EIR, contaminants entering the river are specifically assessed, and the
regulatory permits to be obtained before construction are identified. Moreover, the Draft EIR states, based

City of Lathrop
Lathrop CTF Suiface l d̂ ter Jischarge Projed Final FIR 3

70



Responses to Comments Ascent Eredironinental

on the known requirements of the permits, that the City and/ or its construction contractor would be required
to prepare a SWPPP and implement appropriate construction BMPs for all activities that may result in the
discharge of construction- related contaminants from disturbed construction areas. However, the analysis is

revised to clarify and amplify the measures in the SWPPP, including potential BMPs, BMP inspection and
monitoring activities, responsibilities of all parties, contingency measures, agency contacts, and training
requirements and documentation for those personnel responsible for the installation, inspection,
maintenance, and repair of construction BMPs.

With these clarifications, the impact analysis for Impact 3. 9- 1 identifies specific measures that are both feasible

and fully enforceable by identified responsible agencies as part of the normal regulatory process. Measures
necessary to ensure that the water quality impacts of the proposed project would be less than significant have
not been deferred to uncertain parties or to an unknown time in the future. The measures identified would
ensure that the construction- related water quality impacts of the project would be less than significant.

In response to the comment, new text is added to the summary of Impact 3. 9- 1: Result in Impacts on Water
Quality during Project Construction on page 3. 9- 11 in Section 3. 9, " Hydrology and Water Quality," as follows:

Impact 3. 9- 1: Result in Impacts on Water Quality during Project Construction

Project construction activities would have the potential to result in a temporary increase in San
Joaquin River total suspended solids ( TSS) and turbidity near the construction site and the release of
contaminants into the river. Implementation of a SWPPP and associated BMPs in compliance with

various permit requirements, including SWRCB Construction General Permit requirements and CWA
Section 401 Water Quality Certification requirements, which would be required for project
construction, would avoid and minimize potential adverse construction- related effects on surface

water quality. Therefore, this impact wouid be less than significant.

Also in response to the comment, new text is added to the discussion of Impact 3. 9- 1 after the second

paragraph under the heading, " Effects on Water Quality: Contaminants" on page 3. 9- 13 in Section 3. 9,
Hydrology and Water Quality," as follows:

Effects on Water Qualitv: Contaminants

Potential sources of contaminant discharges would be the discharge of supernatant from dewatering

behind the coffer dam and the use of motorized equipment on and around the levee to install the

new effluent pipeline and outfall.

The proposed project would require a WA Section 404 permit, a CWA Section 401 Water Quality
Certification, and notification of a California Fish and Game Code Section 1600 Streambed Alteration

Agreement before construction of the pipeline and outfall on the waterside of the levee could occur.
The construction work also would be subject to authorization under the SWRCB NPDES General

Permit for Storm Water Discharges Associated with Construction and Land Disturbance Activities

Order No. 2009- 0009- DWQ/ NPDES Permit No. CAS000002, as amended by 2010- 0014- DWQ and

2012- 0006- DWQ). Therefore, the City and/ or its construction contractor would be required to
prepare a SWPPP and implement appropriate construction BMPs for all activities that may result in
the discharge of construction- related contaminants from disturbed construction areas.

The SWPPP would include pollution prevention measures ( erosion and sediment control measures
and measures to control non- stormwater discharges and hazardous spillsl; demonstration of
compliance with all applicable Central Vall RWQCB standards and other applicable water quality

standards demonstration of compliance with regional and local standards for erosion and sediment

control identification of responsible parties checklists that document when maintenance inspections
occurred the results of the inspection required corrective measures and when corrective measures

were im lemented detailed construction timelines and a BMP monitorinq and maintenance

schedule.

City of L throp

2- 44 LaYhrop CTF Su face Water Discharge Pro, iect Final EIR

71



Ascent Environmentai Responses to Comments

BMPs would be ex ected to include the followinq measures: conducting all work accordinq to site-

specific construction plans that identify areas for clearinq, grading, and revegetation so that around
disturbance is minimized installina silt fences near riparian areas or existindqrainages to control

erosion and trap sediment and reseed cleared areas with native veqetation; stabilizing disturbed
soils before the onset of the winter rainfall season; stabilizina and protecting soil stockpiles from

exposure to rain and potential erosion conducting maintenance on a reqular basis to confirm
proper installation and function of BMPs and during storm events conduct maintenance daily; and
immediately repairing and replacing BMPs that have failed ( within 48 hours of the storm event) with
sufficient devices and materials ( e g. silt fence coir rolls erosion blankets) provided throuqhout

project construction to enable immediate corrective action for failed BMPs.

The SWPPP also would specif appropriate hazardous materials handling storage and spill res onse

practices to reduce the possibility of adverse effects from use or accidental spills or releases of
contaminants Such measures could include developin and implementing strict on- site handlinq

rules to kee potentially contaminating construction and maintenance materials out of drainages
and other waterw s conducting all refueling and servicing of equipment with absorbent material or
dri pans underneath to contain illed fuel, oil, and other fluids; and collecting any fluid drained

from machinery durinq servicing in leak- proof containers and deliverinq to an appro riate disposal
or recycling facility maintainin controlled construction staginq and fueling areas away from
channels or wetlands to minimize accidental s lls and runoff of contaminants in stormwater;

preventina substances that could be hazardous to aquatic life from contaminating the soil or
entering watercourses maintaininq spill cleanup equiqment in proper working condition; and
cleaninc. up all spills immediately according to a spill prevention and response plan

BMPs would be a plied to meet the " maximum extent practicable" and " best conventional
technolog,y/ best available technolog_y" requirements and to address compliance with water quality
standards.

Implementation of appropriate erosion control and pollution prevention BMPs would avoid and
minimize construction- related erosion and contaminant discharges. In addition to the BMPs, the

SWPPP would include BMP inspection and monitoring activities and would identify the

responsibilities of all parties, contingency measures, agency contacts, and training requirements and
documentation for those personnel responsible for the installation, inspection, maintenance, and
repair of BMPs. The CWA Section 401 Water Quality Certification also would require implementation

of ineasures to prevent, minimize, and contain spills and minimize the amount of soil, sediment, and
trash that enters surface waters.

6- 9 The comment provides closing remarks, includes contact information, and requests that copies of the Final
EIR, mitigation monitoring and reporting program, notice of determination, and CEQA findings be provided
to CSLC. The City will provide these documents when they become available.

City of Lathrop
Lathro CTF Surface Water Dischar e Project Final EIR 2- 45

72



Responses to Comments Ascent Environmental

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENTQF COMMER

Natlonal Oceanic and Atmospheric Adminis Letter
i       %    NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES SERVICE 7

West Coast Region

650 Capitol Mali, Suite 5- 1d0
n• 0'    Sacramenko, Caffomia 95814- 4T 0

December 4, 2020

Mr. Michael King, P. E.
Uirector of Public Works

390 Towne Center Drive

Lafhrop, California 95330

Re:    Cornments to the Notice of Availability of the Draft Environmental Impact Report for the
Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility SurFace Water Discharge Project

lectronic trunsmittal ondy

Dear Mr. King:

Thank you for requesting a ency participatian in the review of the October 20, 2020, Notice of
Availability for the draft Environmental Impact Report( NOA- dEIR) for the Lathrop
Consolidated` I'reatment Facility( CTF) Surface Water Discharge Project( Project)( State
Clearinghouse N. 2019110339) adjacent to the Town of Lathrop in San Joaquin County,
California. NOAA' s Nationa] Marine Fisheries Service( NMFS) welcomes the opportunity to

comment on this project.

Based on the information provided with your NOA- dEIR, the proposed Project is located in the
City of Lathrop( City). Elements of the proposed Project would be constructed( 1) at the City' s
existing CTF, located on 54 acres of City- owned land at 18800 Christopher Way, Lathrop, CA;
2) along roadways in Lathrop betw een the CTF and the San Joaquin River, includina Tesla

Way, Harlan Road, and Inland Passage Way; and( 3) along the right bank of the San Joaquin
Ftiver, approximately 0. 7 mile downstream of the I- 5 overcrossing, at approximately river mile
RM) 55. 8.

7- 1

The City is proposing to establish a direct discharge of CTF- generated and dechlorinated
disinfected tertiary treated eftluent to the San Joaquin River for use when generation of treated
CTF' effluent would exceed the capacity of the City' s recycled water system to store and reuse
treated effluent for landscape irrigation. The majority of CTF effluent w uld be discharged to the
San Joaquin Ri er during winter, when irrigation demands are low and river flow is relatively
high, and less would be discharged durin; the irrigation season, when reuse of CTF recycled

water would be maximized for landscape irrigation. This approach would allow land designated

under the general plan far urban uses to be developed in accordance with the general plan.

The City intends to obtain an initial National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System( NPDES)
permit to discharge up to 2. 5 mgd average dry weather flow( ADWF) of dechlorinated treated
effluent( current ADWF treatment capacity of the CTF) to the San Joaquin River. However, to
accommodate buildout of the City and account for potential cumulative development under the

i       
t* K

City of Lathrop
G  Lath o CTF Surface Water Discharge Project Final EIR

73



Ascent Environmental Responses to Comments

2

eneral plan, the analysis in the d IR evaluates the envuonmental impacts of wastewater
generation and discharge of up to 2. 5 and 5. 2 mgd ADWF to the San Joaquin River under the 7- 1

proposed Project, and considers the incremental contribution of future cumulative wastewater cont.

generation and discharge to the San Jaaquin River of up to 6 mgd ADWF.

The component of the Project that most impacts NMFS' trust fish species is the construction of

the CTF outfall on the San Joaquin River and its future operation. The proposed CTF outfall
would be located alon the right bank of the San Joaquin River on the waterside of an existina
State Plan ofFlood Control and Federal Fload Control Project levee maintained by RD 17.
Construction of the proposed effluent pipeline aeross the levee and the new side-bank outfall
wouid include the follo r ing:

Install approximately 250( inear feet( LF) of new 20- inch welded steel pressurized pipe in
an approximately 16- foot-wide trench excavated through the levee seepage berm and
levee prism above the 200-year water surface elevation from the levee toe to the proposed
outfall on the waterside of the levee.

F.xtend the new 20- inch pipe to the river, and construct a new concrete- encased outfall
structttre approximately 19- 20 feet below the mean lower low water level and above the
channel bed of the San Joaquin Kiver at approximately RM 55. 8 to create a new side-
bank outfall. The elevation of the pipe at the outfall location would be set to ensure

7_2

discharge of effluent that is sufficiently low in the tivater column to achieve adequate
mixing with river tivater such that an increase in ambient surface water temperature of no
more than 4 degrees Fahrenheit would be observed at any time during the year.

Install approximately 100 I,F of erosion protection material( e.g., articulated concrete
block, riprapj along the levee waterside face both above and below the headwall and
extending upstream and downstream of the outfall to pre• ent scour. The protected area
would encompasses a total area of 4, SU0 square feet of levee face both above and below

the waterline.

Construction along the east bank of the San Joaquin River would take place between July 1 and
November 1. Construction auld occur on weekdays between 7 a.m. and 5 p.m. The pipeline

crossing of the levee and construction of the outfall is anticipated to take 8 weeks. A temporary
cofferdam will be installed at the outfall location to allow for in- the- dry construction and

subsequently removed foliowing completion of construction prior to November 1. Sheet piles
will be installed and removed with a vibratory pile driving hammer.

The effects of the effluent dischar e trom the CTF were modeled and the results included in the

dEiR. As part of the dEIR, the impacts of the effluent dischar e were assessed for Aquatic
Biological Resources.

NMFS has reviewed thz NOA- dEIR fmm the City of I.athrop and wishes to provide these
7_3

general comments:

1.  The discharge of treated et luent from the CTF to the waters of the San Joaquin River

will potentially impact Central Valley( CVj spring-run Chinook salmon and CV fall- run
Chinook salmon( lJncorhynchus t.rhmrytschu), California CV( CCV) steelhead( O.

Clty of Lathrop

Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharge Pro; ed Final EIR 2- 47

74



Responses to Commenis Ascent Environmental

3

mykiss), and the southern distinct population segment( sDPS) of North American reen
sturgeon( Acipenscr meciirostri,$). CV spring- run Chinook salmon, CCV steelhead, and
sDPS green sturgeon, are listed as threatened under the Endangered Species Act( ESA).
In addition, the discharge of effluent fiom the outfall may affect designated critical
habitat under the ESA for both CCV steelhead and sDPS; reen sturgeon in the San

7- 3

Joaquin River at the location of the outfall. Finally, essential fish habitat( EFH)
cont.

designated under the Magnuson- Stevens Fishery- Conservation and Management Act
exists in the San Joaquin River and may be ai ected by the discharge of the treated
effluent and presence of the outfall structure.

2.  The proposed outfall is a new discharge of treated waste water to the San Joaquin River.
Thus, any impacts from the discharge of this effluent to the aquatic system would not
occur except for the proposed project s existence. At best, the impacts to the aquatic
system related to the effluent discharge to the San Joaquin River would be neutral, but 7_4

would more likely have potentially negative effects, even if such impacts are considered
to be minor. The dEIR does not indicate that there are any beneficial or positive impacts
associated with the discharge of the effluent.

3.  The location of the proposed outfall is on an outside bend of the San Joaquin River at
approximately RM 55. 8. The river' s natural thalweg is located at the foot of the eastern
bank, adjacent to the location of the proposed outfall. The depth of the outfall structure
and the centerline of the effluent pipe[ approximately- 12 feet North American Vertical
Datum 1988( NAVD 88)] are within 5 feet of the channel bottom(- 17. 0 feet NAVD88;

see Figure 3. 9- 1 of the dEIR). The width of the thalweg channel is approximately 40 feet
at this depth before encountering the opposite side of the river ehannel, which rapidly
shoals towards the western bank. This leaves little margin for unhindered fish passa; e

beneath the effluent plume at the point of discharge, which has the potential to
temporarily inhibit upstream movement of adult Chinook salmon( CV fall-run and CV
spring- run), CCV steelhead, and movements of juvenile and adult sDPS green sturgeon 7- 5

utilizing the thalweg as a migratory route. Adult salmonids and multiple life stages of
green sturgeon prefer to utilize the deeper rtions of the river channel( i. e., thalweg) to

migrate. In addition, flow along the outside bend of the river channel will experience
turbulent mixin; of the nearshore water body. This is due to the hydrodynamic forces
present along the margin of the river channel where the ambient direction of the river
flow moves at an angle towards the bank and encounters the friction of the underlying

river channel bank. This causes a helical circulation pattern along the eastern bank of the
San, Toaquin River. This mixing is likely to reduce the zone of fish passage beneath thc
effluent plume which was modeled using a simple trapezoidal channel form in CORMIX
and does not adequately represent the complex mixing present in the natural channel).

4.  in addition to the location of the thalweg adjacent to the outfall location, the river channel
bends to the west- southwest approximately 280 meters downstream of the proposed
outfall location before bending back upon itself forming an` S" shaped curvature in the

7_6
river alignment. This creates another complex circulation pattern that is not modeled by
the simple linear channel used in CORMIX. The circulation pattern at this point should

fully mix the effluent plume across the width of the channel and throughout the water

City of Lathrop
2- 48 Lathrop CTF Surface Wa er Discharge Project Final EIR

75



Ascent Environmental Responses to Comments

4

column. This would prevent any fish moving upstream from tinding a migratory pafhway
through this river reach which avoids the eftluent plume. Any fish encountering the fiully
mixed plume may experience sensory cues that would inhibit or delay migration through
avoidance behavior associated with the plume. These cues may include chemical
constituents or physical parameters such as temperature. Although fish exposed to the

6

temperature gradients or chemical constituents created by the plurne are unlikely to
cont.

experience sigmificant adverse pltysiological responses( as described in the dEIR), they
will be exposed to conditions that can create behauioral modifications and cause

increases in predation risks due to alterations in their behavior.

5.  For fish encountering the effluent plume, sensitieity to water temperatures is likely to
make fish seek out preferred water temperatures within the channel cross section and
avoid those temperatures that are less acceptable. T'his may lead to temporary inhibition
of migration behavior. Fish may either eventually move through the plume after a delay,
or seek out an alternative route with acceptable temperature regimes. In either case,

delayed fish have a greater risk of predation when forced to move away from their
preferred habitat( particularly juvenile life stages) due to a longer period of exposure to
predatian, or moving into portions of the river channel eiiher laterally ar vertically where 7- 7

they are more vulnerable to predators. In the case ofjuveniles, fish would likely move
away from the bank in response to the plume' s location along the eastern bank, or move
l igher in the water column due to the temperature gradient or the effects of the effluent' s
more buoyant warm water moving towards the surface. Juvenile fish moving a vay from
the bank into open water are susceptible to open water predators such as striped bass
Morone suxatilis). Fish moving closer to the surFace are also more vulnerable to avian

predation.

6.  7he construction of the concrete outfall creates artificial under vater structure that can

provide habitat for predatory ftsh thai will associate vith underwater structure, such as
largemouth bass( Micropterus salmoides). The proposed design calls for a 10 foot by 10
foot concrete sill, with wing walls and a back headwall extendin up to 9 feet above the      _$
sill. The effluent discharge pipe exits the back concrete headwall. This artificial structure
would provide velocity refugia for predators from river currents sweeping across the
adjacent rip- rapped levee face.

7.  The proposed outfall also includes installation of approximately 100 lineaz feet of erosion
protection material( e. g., articulated concrete block, riprap) above and below the
headwall and extending upstream and downstream of the outfall to prevent scour. This
covers an area of approximacely 4, 500 square feet. This scour protection permanently

7- 9

removes the levee bank and underwater slope from functioning as a natural riverine bank
with both riparian habitat and subsurface habitat and precludes any future restoration of
this stretch of river bank unless the scour protection materials are removed.

8.  The proposed construction window of Jttly 1 through November 1 for the installation of
the outfall avoids most of the listed fish species under NMFS' authority. However, the
presence of juvenile and adult sDPS green sturgeon and adult CCV steelhead may still 7- 10

occur during this period. These different life stages of sDPS green sturgeon are present

City of Lathrop
a? hrop CTF S nface Nater ischarge Project Fnal EIR 2- 49

76



Responses to Comments Ascent Environmental

5

within the Delta year- round, althou; h the population densities in the San Joaquin River
are considered to be quite low. Adult CCV steelhead typically begin migrating upstream
in the San Joaquin River towards their spawning gtounds starting in approaimately nud-
September. Thus, installation and removal of the cofferdam may expose these life stages
to the effects of vibratary pile driving. Ho cever, the risk of exposure for these tish 7- 10

species is likely to be lower from July through August, compared to September and cont.

October. NMFS would recommend that installation of the cofferdam, construction of the

outfall, and the removal of the cofferdam take place durin; the July and August time
frame to avoid overlap with any of these fish to the greatest extent practicable.

9.  Associated with the expansion and inereased capacity of thc proposed vastewater

treatment plant, NMFS expects negative impacts to local ater qualit} due to increased
outputs of stormwater quantity« ith increased pollutant loads in relation to increased
population growth and urbanization in the City af Lathrop. VVhile the City of Lathrop has
adopted a regional storm« rater treatment plan( Multi- Agency Post- Construction
Stormwater Standards Manual 2015) and has/ will receive the necessary Clean Water Act

permits far additional storniwater outputs ssociated with the population grow th and
development, NMFS still eapects additional harm to its jurisdictional species vid habitats
fiom adverse stormwater effects, as the treatment and control methods proposed in the 7- li

stormwater plans and permits will not sufticiently treat stormwater to levels that
eliminate harm to the species and habitats. Metals, hydrocarbons, pesticides, pathogens,
and tire wear particles are common urban contaminants introduced to aquatic ecosystems
through non- point source stormwater discharges. Many conventional stormwater
treatment and control practices have been found to be insufficient to avoid lethal and sub-
lethal effects to NMFS jLtrisdiction species, hovaever Mclntyre et al. 2015 found that
bioretention filtration of hi hway--sourced stormwater prevented the mortality of coho
salman while untiltered stormwater quickly induced mortality at near 100% levels.

10. Previously, the City ot Lathrop received ESA/ EFH consultations from NMFS regarding
the placement of two new stormwater outfalls in South and Central I,at}rrop through U. S.
Army Corps of Engineer( iJSACE) permit approvals. NMFS would like to remind the
City of Lathrop and USAC that in these formal eonsultations neither USACE nor the
City of Lathrop received covera e for the incidental take of listed species or adverse
modification to their critical habitats due to aclverse stormwater discharge effects. NMFS     _

iZ

highly encourages the City of Lathrop to incorporate stormwater treatment methods that
infiltrate stormwater through soil media with arganic matter to filter out toxic, vehicle-

related pollutants and other contatninants that wauld othenvise lead to the incidental take
of NMFS trust resources; or implement practices that would reduce stormwater volume
discharge such as wide- spread use of pervious pavements and infiltration rain gardens, to
the maximum extent practicable.

NMFS w ishes to thank the City of Lathrop Public Works Department for the opportunity to offer T _ 13

conunents and sug; estions on the Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharge Project NOA- dEIR.      

City of Lathrop
2- 5J Lathrop CTF Surface Ulater Disch rge Project Final EIR

77



Ascent Environmenta!      Responses to Comments

6

Please contact JefFrey Stuart at( 916) 930- 3607, or via e- mail at J. StuartCnoaa. gov if you have 7- 13

any questions concerning these comments, or require additional information.   cont.

Sincerely,

C/' t

Erin Strange

San Joaquin River Branch Chief

California Central Valley Office

CC: Copy to Chcon File

References Cited:

McIntyre, J. K., J. W. Davis, C. Hinman, K.H. Macneale, B.F. Anulacion, N.L. Schotz, and J. D.

Stark. 2015. Soil bioretention protects juvenile salmon and their prey from toxic impacts of
urban storcnwater runoff. Chemosphere 132: 213- 219.

Mu1ti- Agency Post- Construction Stormwater 5tandards Manual. Prepared by Larry Walker
Associates for the cities of Lathrop, Lodi, Mlnteca, Patterson, Tracy, and San Joaquin County.
Jtme 2015. 291 pages. Available at: M ilti-A encv Stonnw ater Manual.

City of Lathrop

athrop CTF Surface Water Cischarge Project Final EIR 2- 51

78



Responses to Comments Ascent Environmental

Letter 7 National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, National Marine Fisheries Service

Erin Strange, San Joaquin River Branch Chief

December 4, 2020

7- 1 The comment provides an introduction to the letter and summarizes the proposed project. No response is
necessary.

7- 2 This comment provides an accurate description of the proposed CTF outfall, including the location and main
components, and an overview of the construction timing and methodology.

7- 3 This comment accurately states that the discharge of treated effluent from the CTF to the waters of the San
Joaquin River would potentially affect CV spring- run and fall- run Chinook salmon, California Central Valley
CCV) steelhead ( Oncorhynchus mykiss), and the southern distinct population segment (sDPS) of North

American green sturgeon (Acipenser medirostris)— all species listed as threatened under the ESA. It also may
affect designated critical habitat for both CCV steelhead and sDPS green sturgeon and Essential Fish Habitat
EFH) designated under the Magnuson- Stevens Fishery Conservation and Management Act.

The Draft EIR provides an assessment of the proposed project' s impacts on aquatic biological resources
including the ESA- listed species identified above) in Section 3. 4, " Aquatic Biological Resources." It further

provides a detailed assessment of the thermal effects of the proposed discharge on San Joaquin River fish
and other aquatic biological resources, including the ESA- listed fishes above, in Appendix E, " Aquatic
Biological Resources Thermal Effects Assessment."

In addition, the proposed project would require authorization by USACE under Section 404 of the CWA;
therefore, a biological assessment( BA) has been prepared for the USACE that addresses the potential impacts
of the proposed Project on CV spring- run Chinook salmon, CCV steelhead, the sDPS of North American green

sturgeon, designated critical habitat for both CCV steelhead and sDPS green sturgeon, and EFH.

7- 4 This comment accurately states that any impacts from the discharge of effluent to the aquatic system from
the proposed new outfall would not occur except for the proposed project' s existence and that the Draft EIR

does not indicate that there are any beneficial or positive impacts associated with the discharge of the
effluent. No response is necessary.

7- 5 This comment accurately states that the proposed outfall would be located in the thalweg of the river, which
is approximately 40 feet wide at the outfall location, and within approximately S feet of the channel bottom.   
The comment states that adult Chinook salmon ( CV fall- run and CV spring- run salmon), CCV steelhead, and

juvenile and adult sDPS green sturgeon prefer to use the thalweg as a migratory route and thus that their
migration could be affected by the discharge of treated effluent from the proposed new outfall.

The primary design factor dictating outfall location and depth was the ability of the discharge to comply with
SWRCB' s temperature objectives contained within its Water Quality Control Plan for Control of Temperature
in the Coastaf and Interstate Waters and Enclosed Bays and Estuaries of Cafifornia ( Thermal Plan). More

specifically, objective 5A( 1) c states that" no discharge shall cause a surface water temperature rise greater

than 4° F above the natural temperature of the receiving waters at any time or place." Achievement of this
objective would help avoid significant adverse thermal effects to fish species. Hence, the outfall pipe for the
CTF must be placed at an elevation in the river channel that would allow for the effluent temperature to
attenuate as the warmer, buoyant effluent rises through the water column, spreading and mixing in the river
channel such that the surface water temperature does not increase more than 4° F above the river

background temperature at any time or place. Submerging the outfall at a depth as deep as practicable is

recommended to maximize the length of time that the effluent plume is submerged and thereby to facilitate
compliance with the Thermal Plan objectives.

Field bathymetry data of the San Joaquin River in the vicinity of the City' s preferred discharge location were

obtained and used to determine optimal locations for placement of the CTF outfall. A location approximate y
420 feet downstream of the City' s existing stormwater outfall was chosen based on Robertson- Bryan, Inc.' s

City of Lathrop
2- 52 Lathro CTF Sur face Water Discharge Pro; ect Final EIR

79



Ascent Ern ironmental Responses to Comments

RBI' s) experience with river discharge outfalls, understanding of plume mixing dynamics, and conversation
with a NMFS biologist as documented in Appendix E to the Draft EIR. This location was chosen based on its

cross- sectional profile, which includes substantial depth on the eastern bank where the outfall structure will

be placed. The channel bathymetry at this location promotes superior effluent mixing and provides better

zones of passage around the effluent plume for migratory fish compared to the cross- section at the existing
stormwater outfall structure and at other nearby locations.

The proposed effluent discharge would consist of two primary components with the potential to affect ESA-
listed fishes, critical habitat, and EFH: a chemical constituent plume and a thermal plume.

Regarding potential impacts on migration from the chemical constituent plume, the NPDES permit would
require the discharge to meet all federal criteria and state objectives for the protection of the designated
beneficial uses of the San Joaquin River and Delta at the end of the discharge pipe. Therefore, because all
beneficial uses, including cold freshwater habitat and warm and cold migration of aquatic organisms, would

be protected as explained in the Report of Waste Discharge and Appendix E to the Draft EIR, potential
impacts from the chemical constituent plume on migration would be less than significant, even with the

proposed outfall located in the thalweg.

Section 3. 4 of the Draft EIR assessed the potential thermal impacts of the effluent plume using two modeled
conditions: a median case and a worst case. As shown in Figure 3. 4- 2 of the Draft EIR, the thermal plume
during the median- case condition would remain attached to the east bank. The comment states that

although the thermal plume is buoyant, the hydrodynamic forces present along the margin of the river
channel would be likely to cause mixing that would reduce the zone of fish passage beneath the effluent
plume. However, as noted in the Draft EIR, plume temperature would be rapidly attenuated within the initial
66 feet( 20 meters) from the outfall pipe, to within about 1° F of the river background temperature. Adult fish

immigrating through the plume at distances greater than about 66 feet (20 meters) from the outfall pipe
would experience temperatures that are within about 1° F of the river background temperatures to which

these fish are acclimated, which would result in no blockage or adverse thermal effects. Temperatures in the

high 50s (° F) to low 60s (° F) are suitable for immigrating green sturgeon, steelhead, and spring- run Chinook
salmon, which can migrate through the area in March. Similar assessments are provided for other months of
the year in Appendix E of the Draft EIR.

Where the most rapid initial temperature attenuation occurs, within about 33- 49 feet ( 10- 15 meters) of the

outfall, the plume would occupy a small portion of the water column, leaving the vast majority of the channel

cross- section, including large portions of the thalweg, unaffected by the plume, which could be easily
avoided by immigrating adult fish. Nevertheless, if immigrating green sturgeon, steelhead, spring- run
Chinook salmon, or delta smelt swim through the plume within about 49 feet ( 15 meters) of the outfall pipe,
where temperatures would be higher than river background temperatures, fish would pass through the small

footprint of the plume that would exist there in a matter of seconds because the plume would be <_16 feet
5 meters) in diameter this close to the outfall. Thus, even if mixing along the margin of the channel caused

a reduction in the zone of passage on the bottom of the channel, thermal conditions would not be expected
to affect the migration of ESA- listed fishes.

As shown in Figure 3- 4.3 of the Draft EIR, the thermal plume during the worst- case condition would push
straight across the channel toward the west bank. This would occur if there is insufficient river flow velocity in
a downstream direction to " bend" the plume downstream, as is shown in the March median- case scenario,

where river velocity was 1. 49 feet per second. Because the temperature differential during the worst- case
condition would be larger than during the median- case condition, the plume would be highly buoyant and
would stay in the upper portion of the water column, leaving a large zone of passage underneath the plume,
and because mixing would not occur near the channel margin, mixing would not be expected to reduce this
zone of passage.

City of Lathrop
athrop CTF Surf ce 1Nater Discharge ProjPct Fin! EIR 2- 53

80



Responses to Comments Ascent Environinental

7- 6 This comment states that the outfall would be located approximately 280 feet upstream of an " S" bend in the
river and that this bend would create a " complex circulation pattern" that would result in full mixing of the
effluent plume across the width of the channel and throughout the water column, preventing any fish
moving upstream from finding a migratory pathway through this river reach that avoids the effluent plume.

The comment goes on to state that any fish encountering the fully mixed plume may experience sensory
cues that would inhibit or delay migration through avoidance behavior associated with the plume.

As stated in the response to comment 7- 5, above, the proposed project' s NPDES permit would require the
discharge to meet all federal criteria and state objectives for the protection of the designated beneficial uses
of the San Joaquin River and Delta at the end of the discharge pipe. Therefore, because all beneficial uses,
including cold freshwater habitat and warm and cold migration of aquatic organisms, would be protected by
the quality of the project' s undiluted effluent, the potential for the fully mixed discharge to prevent fish from
moving upstream is considered negligible, even when full mixing would occur within 280 feet of the
discharge as further discussed in Section 3. 4 and Appendix E of the Draft EIR.

As shown in Figures 3- 4.2 and 3- 4.3 of the Draft EIR, temperatures within the thermal plume would be
attenuated to within 1° F of the river background temperature before it reaches the" S" bend; thus, additional

mixing related to the complex circulation pattern would have no additional effect on thermal conditions, and
any fish that encounters a fully mixed condition within 1° F of the river background temperature would not be
expected to alter its migration path.

7- 7 This comment states that sensitivity to water temperatures is likely to make fish seek out preferred water
temperatures within the channel cross section and avoid those temperatures that are less acceptable. This may
lead to temporary inhibition of migration behavior. Fish may either eventually move through the plume after a
delay or seek out an alternative route with acceptable temperature regimes. In either case, delayed fish have a
greater risk of predation when forced to move away from their preferred habitat( particularlyjuvenile life
stages) because they would be exposed to predation for a longer period or because they would move into
portions of the river channel either laterally or vertically where they are more vulnerable to predators.

As stated in the discussion of Impact 3. 4- 5 under" Energetic Effects," most fish immigrating past the
proposed CTF outfall and associated thermal plume would not be expected to alter their migration route
past the outfall because of the small temperature differentials associated with the thermal plume.
Nevertheless, if the thermal plume causes immigrating green sturgeon, steelhead, or spring- run and fall- run
Chinook salmon to alter their migration route past the outfall to avoid large temperature differentials, such
course changes in the channel would be small ( i. e., tens of ineters or less), and the extra energetic output

that immigrating adult or emigratingjuvenile fish may expend to make such an alteration to their migration
route in the channel near the outfall would be negligible and thus insignificant relative to the energetic

expenditures these fish make for their overall migrations. The Draft EIR states that these insignificant

additional energetic expenditures would not affect the survival of individual adult orjuvenile fish migrating
past the outfall, and such movements would not adversely affect immigrating adult or emigratingjuvenile
fish in sublethal ways ( e.g., adult fecundity orjuvenile growth or predation avoidance).

On page 3. 4- 28 of the Draft EIR, the assessment further states that in a study of the thermal impacts of the
Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District' s Sacramento Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant( SRWTP)
discharge on the aquatic life of the lower Sacramento River, RBI ( 2013) found no increased predation of
hydroacoustic- taggedjuvenile Chinook salmon smolts as they emigrated past the thermal plume associated
with the SRWTP diffuser outfall in the Sacramento River near Freeport. The SRWTP has high temperature

differentials similar to those of the CTF, and the area of the SRWTP plume with a temperature greater than 1—

2° F above the river background temperature is large, thus providing ample space for predatory fishes to

congregate. Nevertheless, this study did not find predatory fishes holding within the warmer water of the
plume at substantially higher numbers than in other portions of the river lacking such elevated temperatures.

Consequently, the CTF thermal plume is not expected to substantially increase predation on emigrating
special- status fishes in this reach of the San Joaquin River.

City of athrop
2- 54 Laihrop CTF Surface Vlater Dischar ge° roject Final EIR

81



Ascent Environmental Responses to Comments

7- 8 This comment states that construction of the concrete outfall would create an artificial underwater structure

that could provide habitat for predatory fish that would associate with underwater structures, such as
largemouth bass ( Micropterus sa( moides).

As stated in the discussion of Impact 3. 4- 6, the proposed outfall structure to be constructed in the river
channel would be relatively sma l and would targely maintain the contours of the channel. ( See Chapter 2,
Project Description," of the Draft EIR for a schematic of the outfall structure.) Consequently, the outfall

structure would not produce large areas of hydraulic velocity breaks where predatory fishes would hold and
prey on emigrating special- status fishes as they moved past the outfall.

Also, as stated in the discussion of Impact 3. 4- 5 under" Potential for Increased Predation on Emigrating
Special- Status Fishes," a study of the thermal impacts of the Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District' s
SRWTP discharge on the aquatic life of the lower Sacramento River ( RBI 2013) found no increased predation
of hydroacoustic- tagged juvenile Chinook salmon smolts as they emigrated past the SRWTP diffuser outfall
in the Sacramento River near Freeport. The SRWTP diffuser is located on the river bottom and provides a

significant underwater structure, thus providing ample space for predatory fishes to congregate.
Nevertheless, this study did not find increased rates of predation associated with the diffuser or associated
thermal plume.

Consequently, the CTF outfall is not expected to substantially increase predation on emigrating special- status
fishes in this reach of the San Joaquin River.

7- 9 This comment states that the installation of approximately 100 linear feet of erosion protection material ( e. g.,
articulated concrete block, riprap) above and below the headwall and extending upstream and downstream

of the outfall would permanently prevent the levee bank and underwater slope from functioning as a natural
riverine bank with both riparian habitat and subsurface habitat and would preclude any future restoration of
this stretch of riverbank unless the scour protection materials are removed.

The proposed outfall would be located in a leveed reach of the lower San Joaquin River. As shown in Figure

2- 7 of the Draft EIR, the existing levee bank and underwater slope do not currently function as a natural
riverine bank because of the leveed nature of the channel and the resulting steepness of the bank. In
addition, this reach of the river contains bank protection material ( i. e., riprap); therefore, the project condition
would differ little from the existing condition.

In addition, the placement of additional riprap at the outfall site is a necessary component of the project to
ensure that erosion of the bank, which could lead to damage or loss of the new outfall, does not occur.

7- 10 This comment states that the proposed construction window of July 1 through November 1 for the
installation of the outfall avoids most of the listed fish species under NMFS' s authority. However, juvenile and
adult sDPS green sturgeon and adult CCV steelhead may still be present during this period, with the risk of
exposure for these fish species likely lower from July through August, compared to September and October.
Therefore, NMFS recommends that installation of the cofferdam, construction of the outfall, and removal of

the cofferdam take place during the July and August time frame to avoid overlap with any of these fish to the
greatest extent practicable.

The July 1 through November 1 time period is designated by the fisheries agencies as the preferred time to
work in the lower San Joaquin River, thus its inclusion as the construction time frame. However, the City

shares NMFS' s preference for constructing the outfall from July through August. All the necessary permits to
construct the outfall have been submitted, and the City is hopeful that all necessary approvals, including ESA
consultation, will be received in a timely manner that allows for construction of the outfall in July and August.

7- 11 This comment states that NMFS expects the expansion and increased capacity of the proposed wastewater

treatment plant to result in negative impacts on local water quality related to increased outputs of

stormwater with increased pollutant loads associated with population growth and urbanization in the City of
Lathrop. The comment goes on to state that although the City has adopted a regional stormwater treatment
plan and has/ will receive the necessary CWA permits for additional stormwater outputs associated with the

City of Lathrop
L thrcp CTF Surface V later Discharge Project Final EIR 2- 55

82



Responses to Comments Ascent Environmental

population growth and development, NMFS still expects additional harm to species and habitats under its
jurisdiction from adverse stormwater effects because the treatment and controi methods proposed in the
stormwater plans and permits will not sufficiently treat stormwater to levels that eliminate harm to the
species and habitats.

The process for approving growth in the City involves updating the City' s general plan and obtaining
approval by the City Council. As planned and approved growth occurs, the CTF is modified to accommodate
it. In addition, the City' s stormwater program is not part of the proposed project and, therefore, is not
analyzed in the Draft EIR. Nevertheless, the City is regulated by the Central Valley RWQCB under a Phase II
Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System General NPDES Permit.

7- 12 This comment reminds the City and USACE that in previously completed formal consultations for new
stormwater outfalls, neither USACE nor the City received coverage for the incidental take of listed species or
adverse modification to their critical habitats related to adverse stormwater discharge effects. The comment

goes on to state that NMFS highly encourages the City either to incorporate stormwater treatment methods
that infiltrate stormwater through soil media with organic matter to filter out toxic, vehicle- related poilutants
and other contaminants that would otherwise lead to the incidental take of NMFS trust resources or to

implement practices that would reduce stormwater volume discharge, such as widespread use of pervious
pavements and infiltration rain gardens, to the maximum extent practicable.

The City appreciates NMFS' s reminder that previous formal consultations associated with new stormwater
outfalls did not include coverage for incidental take of listed species or adverse modification to their critical

habitats related to adverse stormwater discharge effects. Although the City' s stormwater program is not part

of the proposed project, and therefore is not assessed in the Draft EIR, the City continues to look for ways to
improve stormwater quality.

7- 13 The comment provides closing remarks and includes contact information. No response is necessary.

City of athrop
Z- 55 Lathrop CTF S rface VVater Discharge Project Final EIR

83



Ascent Environ 7 ental Resp nses to Comments

7 D q  YA i    

Letster

A1R POLLUTION CONiROL DISTRICT HEALTHY I

December 10, 2020

Michael King
City of Lathrop
Public Works Department

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Project: Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility Surtace Water Discharge Project

District CEQA Reference No: 20200879

Dear Mr. King:

The San Joaquin Valley Unified Air Pollution Control District ( District) has reviewed the
Draft Environmental Impact Report( DEIR) for the project referenced above from the City
of Lathrop ( City).  The project consists of modifications to the Consolidated Treatment
Facility ( CTF), installation of effluent pipelines, and construction of an effluent pipeline,    

8 1

levee crossing, and outfall structure( Project). The Project is located at 18800 Christopher
Way, along roadways between the CTF and the San Joaquin River, and along the right
bank of the San Joaquin River in Lathrop, CA. The District offers the following comments:

1) Health Risk Assessment

There are residential units located approximately 60 feet from the proposed
construction of the effluent discharge pipeline installation, as well as additional
residential units located approximately 90 feet from the proposed construction of the
pipeline levee crossing.

8- 2

The DEIR did not include a health risk assessment  ( HRA).  A Health Risk

Screening/ Assessment identifies potential Toxic Air Contaminants ( TAC' s) impact on
surrounding sensitive receptors such as hospitals, daycare centers, schools, work-
sites, and residences. TAC' s are air pollutants identified by the Office of Environmental
Health Hazard Assessment/ California Air Resources Board ( OEHHA/ CARB) that

pose a present or potential hazard to human health. A common source of TACs can
be attributed to diesel exhaust emitted from both mobile and stationary sources. List

Samir Sheikh

Executive[ t'xectur'Air Pnllution Contrul fficer

Aiorthern Na9ion Gsn# ra{ Ragion{ Main Oifice#      Saatf ecn 8egfan

4$ Enter rise We;     1890 E. 8at gs6ery Gvenue 34g48 r1yn sr Court

Mndesto, CA 89356- 877    Fresno. CA 9372 A244 BaYetsfie d, Ck 83308- 9J 5

Tel: 12fl9! 557 fl4 G Fk}:: i? v91557- 6" 75 TeC 559t 23 J-a IC FAXt! 558! 233 6'J t Telt( an? 1392- 9 QC F E:( 6£ i! 392 5585

w'y w. aa! ieyairsr    s+ v. hes( thyairliviru. cam
P, m. n ewa- J

City of Lathrop
Lathrop CTF Su face AJater Discharge Proj ct Fir,al tIR Z- 57

84



Responses to Comments Ascent Environmental

San Joaquin Va!! ey Air Pollutbn Confro/ Distr ct Page 2

District Reference No. 20200879

December 10, 2020

of TAC' s identified by OEHHA/ CARB can be found at: I 8- 2

https:// ww2. arb. ca. qov/ resources/ documents/ carb- identified- toxic- air- contaminants j
ont.

The District recommends the development project be evaluated for potential health
impacts to surrounding receptors ( on- site and off-site) resulting from operational
and multi- year construction TAC emissions.

i)  The District recommends conducting a screening analysis that includes all
sources of emissions. A screening analysis is used to identify projects which 8_3

may have a significant health impact.   A prioritization,  using CAPCOA' s
updated methodology, is the recommended screening method. A prioritization
score of 10 or greater is considered to be significant and a refined Health Risk
Assessment( HRA) should be performed.

For your convenience, the District' s prioritization calculator can be found at:
http: www. vallevair. orq/ busind/ pto/ emission factors/ Criteria/ Toxics/ Utilities/ PR
IORITIZATI ON% 20RMR% 202016.XLS.

ii)  The District recommends a refined HRA for development projects that result in
a prioritization score of 10 or greater.  Prior to performing an HRA, it is
recommended that development project applicants contact the District to
review the proposed modeling protocol.  A development project would be
considered to have a significant health risk if the HRA demonstrates that the

project related health impacts would exceed the Districts significance threshold
of 20 in a million for carcinogenic risk and 1. 0 for the Acute and Chronic Hazard

Indices, and would trigger all feasible mitigation measures.  The District

recommends that development projects which result in a significant health risk
not be approved.

For HRA submittals, please provide the following information electronically to the
8_4

District for review:

HRA AERMOD model files

HARP2 files

Summary of emissions source locations, emissions rates, and emission
factor calculations and methodology.

More information on toxic emission factors, prioritizations and HRAs can be

obtained by:

E- Mailing inquiries to: hramodeler( cDvallevair. ora; or
The District can be contacted at( 559) 230- 6000 for assistance; or

Visiting the Districts website ( Modeling Guidance) at:
http:// www. vallevair. orq/ busind/ pto/ Tox Resources/ AirQualitvMonitorinq. htm.

City of Lathrop
2- 58 Lathrop CTF Surface Vdater Discharc e Project Final EIR

85



Ascent Environmental Responses to Comments

San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Contro! Distrkt Page 3

District Reference No. 20200879

December 10, 2020

2) District Rule 9510 ( lndirect Source Review)

The purpose of District Rule 9510( Indirect Source Review) isto reduce the growth
in both NOx and PM10 emissions associated with development and transportation

projects from mobile and area sources associated with construction and operation
of development projects.  The rule encourages clean air design elements to be

incorporated into the development project. In case the proposed project clean air
design elements are insufficient to meet the targeted emission reductions, the rule

requires developersto pay a fee used to fund projectsto achieve off-site emissions
reductions.

The proposed Project is subject to District Rule 9510 because it will receive a
project- level discretionary approval from a public agency and will equal or exceed

8_5
9, 000 feet of construction.  When subject to the rule, an Air Impact Assessment

AIA) application is required prior to applying for project- level approval from a
public agency.   In this case, if not already done, please inform the project
proponent to immediately submit an AIA application to the District to comply with
District Rule 9510.

An AIA application is required and the District recommends that demonstration of

compliance with District Rule 9510, before issuance of the first building permit, be
made a condition of Project approval.

Information about how to comply with District Rule 9510 can be found online at:
http:// www. vallevair. orq/ I SR/ I SRHome. htm.

The AIA application form can be found online at:

http:// www. vallevair. orq/ l SR/ I SRFormsAndApplications. htm.

3)   District Rules and Requlation

The District issues permits for many types of air pollution sources and regulates some
activities not requiring permits. A project subject to District rules and regulation would
reduce its impacts on air quality through compliance with regulatory requirements. In
general, a regulation is a collection of rules, each of which deals with a specific topic.
Here are a couple of example, Regulation II ( Permits) deals with permitting emission
sources and includes rules such as District permit requirements( Rule 2010), New and

8_6
Modified Stationary Source Review ( Rule 2201), and implementation of Emission

Reduction Credit Banking ( Rule 2301).

The list of rules below is neither exhaustive nor exclusive. Current District rules can

be found online at: www. vallevair. ora/ rules/ 1ruleslist. htm.  To identify other District
rules or regulations that apply to this Project or to obtain information about District
permit requirements, the applicant is strongly encouraged to contact the District' s
Small Business Assistance ( SBA) Office at( 209} 557- 6446.

City of Lathrop
Lathr op CTF Surface Wat2r Discharge Pro;ect Final EIR 2- 59

86



Responses to Comments Ascent Environmental

San Joaquin Valley Air Pollut, on Contro! Dis6 ici Page 4

Districf Reference No. 20200879

December 10, 2020

3a)  District Rules 2010 and 2201 - Air Qualitv Permittinq for Stationary Sources

Stationary Source emissions include any building, structure, facility, or installation
which emits or may emit any affected pollutant directly or as a fugitive emission.
District Rule 2010 requires operators of emission sources to obtain an Authority to
Construct( ATC) and Permit to Operate ( PTO) from the District. District Rule 2201

requires that new and modified stationary sources of emissions mitigate their
emissions using best available control technology ( BACT). 8- 7

This Project will be subject to District Rule 2010( Permits Required) and Rule 2201

New and Modified Stationary Source Review) and will require District permits.

Prior to commencing construction on any permit- required equipment or process, a
finalized Authority to Construct ( ATC) must be issued to the Project proponent by
the District.   For further information or assistance, the project proponent may
contact the District' s Small Business Assistance ( SBA) Office at ( 209) 557- 6446.

3b)  Other District Rules and Requlations

The Project may also be subject to the following District rules:  Regulation VIII,

Fugitive PM10 Prohibitions), Rule 4102 ( Nuisance), Rule 4601  ( Architectural

Coatings), and Rule 4641 ( Cutback, Slow Cure, and Emulsified Asphalt, Paving    $_$
and Maintenance Operations). In the event an existing building will be renovated,
partially demolished or removed, the project may be subject to District Rule 4002
National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants).

If you have any questions or require further information, please contact Cherie Clark by
phone at( 559) 230- 5940 or by e- mail at Cherie. Clark( a vallevair. orq .

Sincerely,

z Arnaud Marjoll t

Director of Permit Services

AM: cc

City of Lathrop
2- 6 J Lathrop CTF Surface Ulater Discharge Project Fi; a! EIR

87



Ascent Environmental Responses to Comments

Letter 8 San loaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District
Arnaud Marjollet, Director of Permit Services

December 10, 2020

8- 1 The comment introduces the letter and summarizes the proposed project. No response is necessary.

8- 2 The comment identifies residential land uses approximately 60 and 90 feet from a portion of the proposed
construction site. The comment also indicates that the Draft EIR does not include a health risk assessment

HRA), which is a quantitative evaluation of potentia cancer and noncancer exposure to sensitive receptors
associated with exposure to toxic air contaminants ( TACs). With respect to construction activities, diesel

particulate matter ( diesel PM) is the most common TAC of concern, and the comment directs the reader to a
list of TACs identified by the Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment( OEHHA) and the California
Air Resources Board avai able online. The issue of TACs and their treatment in the Draft EIR is discussed

below in the responses to comments 8- 3 and 8- 4.

8- 3 The comment recommends that a screening analysis using SJVAPCD' s Prioritization Calculator( calculator) be
conducted for the proposed project. According to SJVAPCD, projects with a prioritization score of 10 or
greater should be considered significant, and SJVAPCD recommends that a refined HRA be prepared for
these projects. SJVAPCD' s calculator is a tool designed to evaluate long- term operational TAC emissions

from point sources ( i. e., proposed facilities). The calculator was developed consistent with guidance provided
by OEHHA that directs air districts with recommended procedures for use in prioritizing facilities into high-,

intermediate-, and low- priority categories as required by the Air Toxics" Hot Spots" Information and
Assessment Act of 1987 ( Air Toxics" Hot Spots" Act) in accordance with Health and Safety Code Section
44344. 4(c) ( discussed on page 3. 2- 3 in Section 3. 2, " Air Quality," of the Draft EIR) ( OEHHA 2016).

The proposed project is a short- term, linear construction project that would occur in phases between 2021 and
2022. SJVAPCD' s prioritization calculator is an appropriate screening tool for stationary sources of TACs;
however, it may not be useful in screening for TAC impacts for the proposed project, which would result in only
short- term construction- related TAC emissions. The calculator does not account for construction duration, local

meteorological conditions, or linear construction projects. Rather, the calculator assumes that receptors would

be exposed to cancer risk for a duration of 70 years, and assumes that all emissions from the project would
originate from a single location ( i. e., stationary source). By contrast, due to the short- term nature of project
construction activities, receptors would not be exposed for a long duration and construction emissions would
be spread out over a much larger distance/ area ( i. e., approximately 27, 000 sq. ft. of disturbance along a linear
pipeline route during construction of the effluent discharge pipeline and 20, 500 sq. ft. of disturbance along the
levee during construction of the levee crossing and outfall), which can greatly affect how pollutants disperse

from the source and concentrate at nearby receptors. In other words, emissions that are generated over a large
geographic area would result in lower concentrations of pollutants overall at the nearby receptors, as compared
to pollutant concentrations from a single source emitting the same mass of pollutants. These project- and site-
specific parameters cannot be accounted for in the calculator.

Thus, the inputs required to use the calculator produce overly conservative results indicating that an impact
may occur when in fact the results of an HRA demonstrate the project would have a less- than- significant

impact. The preparation of an HRA entails a higher level of project- specific detail, including construction
duration, which would produce more meaningful results than the calculator can provide for the proposed
project. Moreover, the cancer risk screening level used in the calculator to indicate that preparation of an
HRA is necessary is 10 in one million, whereas SJVAPCD' s recommended CEQA threshold of significance for

assessing TAC impacts is 20 in one million. Therefore, in those cases where the calculator may show a cancer
risk above 10 in one million, the impact may not be considered significant under CEQA.

On pages 3. 2- 7 through 3. 2- 8, the Draft EIR includes a quantitative discussion of potentially adverse impacts
related to exposure of sensitive receptors to substantial pollution. As discussed in the Draft EIR,

implementing the proposed project would result in temporary, intermittent emissions of diesel PM

associated with exhaust emissions of off- road heavy- duty equipment used during site preparation and

City of Lathrop
Lathr p CTF Surface N/ at2r Dlscha, ge Proj ct Final EIR 2- 61

88



Responses to Comments Ascent Environmental

construction. However, the results of construction- emissions modeling performed for the analysis indicated
that maximum daily emissions of exhaust respirable particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter of 10
micrometers or less ( PM o), which can be considered a surrogate for diesel PM, would be less than 4 pounds
per day( Ib/ day) during construction. For reference, this is well below the SJVAPCD- recommended daily mass
emission threshold of 100 Ib/ day. This level of exhaust PM o is inclusive of overlapping construction phases

i. e., construction of the CTF and levee crossing occurring simultaneously). Notably, these emissions
represent total emissions and are not location specific. These emissions would be dispersed throughout the

project site and would not be solely introduced at any one location.

Additionally, construction activity located near sensitive receptors along Inland Passage Way would occur
over a maximum of 110 days, limited to weekdays. OEHHA recommends that cancer exposure from

construction projects be evaluated if a construction period would last longer than 6 months. The

construction period assumed for project construction near sensitive receptors would be less than 4 months
and therefore would not trigger the need to prepare an HRA ( OEHHA 2015).

For these reasons, the qualitative evaluation of TAC impacts included in the Draft EIR, which did not involve

the use of SJVAPCD' s prioritization calculator, is a suitable approach for the proposed project.

8- 4 The comment recommends that development projects that result in a prioritization score of 10 or greater
using SJVAPCD' s prioritization calculator perform an HRA to quantitatively evaluate TAC impacts. The
comment also recommends that projects that produce TAC emissions that exceed SJVAPCD' s thresholds of
significance of 20 in 1 million for carcinogenic risk and 1. 0 for acute and chronic hazard index not be

approved. The response to comment 8- 3, above, addresses the TAC impact analysis contained in the Draft

EIR and explains the rationale for not using SJVAPCD' s prioritization calculator for the proposed project' s
construction emissions. No edits to the Draft EIR are required in response to this comment.

8- 5 The comment summarizes the purpose of SJVAPCD' s Rule 9510, " Indirect Source Review," which is to reduce

both construction and operational emissions of oxides of nitrogen ( NOx) and PM, o associated with

development and transportation projects from mobile and area sources. The comment states that the

proposed project is subject to Rule 9510 because it would receive a project- level discretionary approval from
a public agency and would involve more than 9, 000 feet of construction. To clarify the regulations applicable
to the project, Section 3. 2. 1, " Regulatory Setting," and the discussion of impact 3. 2- 1 in Section 3. 2, " Air
Quality," of the Draft EIR are revised below and included in Chapter 3, " Revisions to the Draft EIR," in this

Final EIR. The clarification provides additional regulatory information, which is addressed in revisions to the
analysis of short- term emissions of criteria air pollutants and precursors from the project. These revisions do
not alter the conclusions with respect to the significance of any environmental impact.

The following bullet point has been added to page 3. 2- 6 of the Draft EIR following the third bullet point
summarizing Rule 4601, " Architectural Coatings."

Rule 9510— Indirect Source Review: Also known as the Indirect Source Rule IISRI, this rule is

intended to reduce or mitigate emissions of NOx and PM o from the construction and operation

of new development in the SJVAPCD. This rule requires specific percentaqe reductions in
estimated on- site construction and operation emissions and/ or pavment of a prescribed off- site
mitiqation fee for required reductions that cannot be met on the p ect site. Construction

emissions of NOx and PM, n exhaust must be reduced by 20 percent and 45 percent, respectivel
The rule applies to " not identified" development projects of 9, 000 square feet and larger;

therefore, SJVAPCD determined that the project would be subject to Rule 9510. The provisions
of Rule 9510 are described in more detail in the analysis of environmental impacts and

mitigation measures.

In response to this comment, the following text edits have been made to the last paragraph on page 3. 2- 15
in the discussion of Impact 3. 2- 1:

City of Lathrop
2- 62 Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharge Project Final EIR

89



Ascent Environmental Responses to Comments

As shown in Table 3. 2- 4, above, maximum daily emissions of NOx under Scenario 1 ( two construction
crews constructing the pipeline simultaneously) would exceed the 100 Ib/ day screening criteria set
forth by SJVAPCD; however, construction emissions under Scenario 2 ( one pipeline construction
crew) would not generate NOx emissions in excess of the 100 Ib/ day screening criteria. The proposed
project would be subject to SJVAPCD' s Rule 9510 " Indirect Source Review," which applies to
emissions of NO, and PM, o associated with a new development project. As summarized in Section

3 21 " Regulatory Setting" Rule 9510 requires the on- site construction emissions of NOx and PM, n
exhaust to be reduced by 20 and 45 percent res ectively Compliance with Rule 9510 is a re uq latory
requirement for . roiects constructed under the purview of SJVACPD. Future project construction
would be required to demonstrate compliance with Rule 9510 as a condition of project approval.
Although compliance with Rule 9510 would reduce total NO and PM, o exhaust emissions by the 20-

and 45- percent requirement it is possible that during a day with exceptionally high construction
activity this reduction would not be sufficient to reduce construction emissions to a less- than-
sianificant level ( i e below 100 Ib/ day for criteria air pollutants and ozone precursorsl. Assuminq that
a 20- percent reduction in NOX emissions is a plied to maximum daily emissions under Scenario 1,
NO emissions would be 108. 8 Ib/ day day and would be over SJVAPCD' s 100 Ib/ day screening
criteria. As such, unmitigated construction emissions under Scenario 1 could result in a violation of

an AAQS, and impacts under Scenario 2 would be less than significant. This impact would be

potentially significant.

8- 6 The comment introduces SJVAPCD' s Regulation II, Rule 2010, Rule 2201, and Rule 2301. The comment is

introductory in nature. No response is necessary.

8- 7 The comment summarizes Rule 2010, " Permits Required," and Rule 2201, " Modified Stationary Source

Review," and indicates that the proposed project would be subject to these rules. Rule 2010 is summarized
on page 3. 2- 5 in the Draft EIR in the discussion of local regulations. Rule 2201 is not summarized in the Draft
EIR because the proposed project would not result in an operational increase of criteria air pollutants, as
discussed under Impact 3. 2- 2 on pages 3. 2- 16 and 3. 2- 17. Rule 2201 applies to new or modified stationary
sources of air pollution that would result in new emissions of volatile organic compounds and NOx of 20, 000
Ib/ day, carbon monoxide of 200, 000 Ib/ day, sulfur oxides of 54, 750 Ib/ day, and PM, o of 29, 200 Ib/ day above
baseline conditions. As a construction project, the proposed project wou d not introduce new operational
emissions that would be subject to the permitting requirements of SJVACPD' s Rule 2201. As discussed on
page 3. 2- 17, the proposed project would introduce a one- quarter- horsepower pump to power the
dichlorination system. This pump would be smaller than a permitted stationary source under SJVAPCD Rule
2201, which applies to all internal combustion engines of more than 50 horsepower. The project would

comply with all applicable permitting requirements as conditions of project approval.

8- 8 The comment states that the proposed project may be subject to the following rules: Regulation VIII,
Fugitive PM o Prohibitions"; Rule 4102, " Nuisance"; Rule 4601, " Architectural Coatings"; and Rule 4641,

Cutback, Slow Cure, and Emulsified Asphalt, Paving, and Maintenance Operations." The comment also states

that if a project involves renovating, partially demolishing, or removing a building, it may be subject to
District Rule 4002, " National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants."

Regulation VIII, Rule 4002, Rule 4102, and Rule 4601 are summarized on page 3. 2- 6 of the Draft EIR. To clarify

the regulations applicable to the project, Section 3. 2. 1, " Regulatory Setting," in Section 3. 2, " Air Quality," of
the Draft EIR is revised below and included in Chapter 3, " Revisions to the Draft EIR," in this Final EIR. The

following text edit does not change the significance determinations of the Draft EIR. CEQA requires that all
applicable regulations, rules, and policies be complied with as conditions of project approval. Therefore, the
analysis contained in the Draft EIR assumes that the project would comply with the aforementioned rules and
the provisions contained therein.

City of Lathrop

Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharge Project Final EIR 2- 63

90



Responses to Comments Ascent Environmental

The following bullet point has been added to page 3. 2- 6 of the Draft EIR following the bullet point
summarizing Rule 4601, " Architectural Coatings":

Rule 4641— Cutback, Slow Cure, and Emulsified Asphalt. Paving, and Maintenance Operations:

This rule is intended to limit volatile organic compound emissions by restricting the application

and manufacturing of certain types of asphalt for paving and maintenance operations. This rule
plies to the manufacture and use of cutback asphalt, slow cure asphalt, and emulsified asphalt

for paving and maintenance operations.

City of Lathrop
2- 64 Lathrop CTF Surfa e Water Dischar e Project Final EIR

91



3 REVISIONS TO THE DRAFT EIR

This chapter presents specific text changes made to the Draft EIR since its publication and public review. The changes

are presented in the order in which they appear in the original Draft EIR and are identified by the Draft EIR page
number. Text deletions are shown in *+"^^,"., and text additions are shown in underline.

The information contained within this chapter clarifies and expands on information in the Draft EIR and does not

constitute " significant new information" requiring recirculation.

3. 1 CORRECTIONS AND REVISIONS TO THE DRAFT EIR

3. 1 . 1 Revisions to the Executive Summary Chapter
In response to a comment on the Draft EIR and to clarify the jurisdiction California State Lands Commission has
relative to previously unrecorded archaeological resources inadvertently discovered during project- related ground-
disturbance, new text is added to Mitigation Measure 3. 5- 2 in Table ES- 1 in the " Executive Summary" chapter of the
Draft EIR on page ES- 17 as follows:

Impact 3. 5- 2: Cause a Substantial Adverse PS Mitigation Measure 3. 5- 2: Implement Inadvertent LTS

Change in the Significance of Discovery Measures for the Protection of Archaeological
Archaeological Resources Resources

Although no archaeological resources have If any prehistoric or historic- era subsurface archaeological
been identified on the project site, project- features or deposits, including locally darkened soil
related ground- disturbing activities could midden"), that could conceal cultural deposits are

result in the discovery or damage of inadvertently discovered during project- related
previously undiscovered archaeological construction activities, all ground- disturbances within a
resources as defined in State CEQA minimum of SO feet of the find shall be halted until a

Guidelines Section 15064. 5. This would be a qualified professional archaeologist can evaluate the
potentially significant impact.      discovery. The archaeologist shall examine the resources,

assess their significance, and recommend appropriate

procedures to the lead agency to either further investigate

or mitigate adverse impacts( e. g., adverse effect on a

significant historical resource). If the qualified archaeologist
determines the archaeological material to be Native

American in nature, the City shall contact the appropriate
California Native American tribe( i. e., Buena Vista

Rancheria Me- Wuk Indians and North Valley Yokuts Tribel
for their input on the preferred treatment of the find. If the
find is determined to be a unique archaeological resource

and it cannot be avoided, then appropriate procedures to

protect the integrity of the resource shall be applied( e. g.,
preservation in place, data recovery program pursuant to
PRC Section 21083. 2[ i]). During evaluation or mitigative

treatment, ground- disturbance and construction work may
continue on other parts of the project site. The California
State Lands Commission( CSLC) shall approve the final

disposition of any archaeological, historical, and

paleontoloqical resources recovered on state lands under
CSLCjurisdiction.

City of Lathrop
Lathr p CTF Surface later Discha; ge ProjPct Fina! EIR 3- 1

92



Responses to Comments Ascent Environmental

3. 1 . 2 Revisions to DEIR

In response to a comment on the Draft EIR and to provide clarification related to the regulations applicable to the
project, the following bullet point has been added to page 3. 2- 6 of the Draft EIR following the third bullet point
summarizing Rule 4601, " Architectural Coatings."

Rule 9510— Indirect Source Review: Also known as the Indirect Source Rule ( ISR), this rule is intended to

reduce or mitigate emissions of NOX and PMo from the construction and operation of new development
in the SJVAPCD. This rule requires specific percentage reductions in estimated on- site construction and

eration emissions and/ or payment of a prescribed off- site mitiqation fee for required reductions that
cannot be met on the project site. Construction emissions of NOx and PM, o exhaust must be reduced by

20 percent and 45 percent, respectively. The rule applies to " not identified" development projects of
9, 000 square feet and larger; therefore, SJVAPCD determined that the pro ect would be subject to Rule
9510. The provisions of Rule 9510 are described in more detail in the analysis of environmental impacts
and mitigation measures.

In response to a comment on the Draft EIR and to provide clarification related to the regulations applicable to the

project, the following bullet point has been added on page 3. 2- 6 following the bullet point summarizing Rule 4601,
Architectural Coatings:"

Rule 4641 utback, Slow Cure, and Emulsified Asphalt, Paving, and Maintenance Operations: This rule
is intended to limit volatile organic compound emissions by restrictina the application and

manufacturing of certain types of as halt for paving and maintenance operations. This rule a plies to the
manufacture and use of cutback asphalt, slow cure asphalt, and emulsified asphalt for paving and
maintenance operations.

In response to a comment on the Draft EIR to address clarifications of regulations applicable to the project in the
analysis of short- term emissions of criteria air pollutants and precursors from the project, the following text edits have
been made to the last paragraph on page 3. 2- 15 under Impact 3. 2- 1:

As shown in Table 3. 2- 4, above, maximum daily emissions of NOx under Scenario 1 ( two construction

crews constructing the pipeline simultaneously) would exceed the 100 Ib/ day screening criteria set forth
by SJVAPCD; however, construction emissions under Scenario 2 ( one pipeline construction crew) would
not generate NOx emissions in excess of the 100 Ib/ day screening criteria. The proposed pro ect would
be subject to SJVAPCD' s Rule 9510, " Indirect Source Review," which a plies to emissions of NO, and PM, n
associated with a new develo. ment project. As summarized in Section 3. 2. 1, " Regulatory Setting," Rule
9510 requires the on- site construction emissions of NOx and PM, o exhaust to be reduced by 20 and 45

percent, respectively. Compliance with Rule 9510 is a regulatory requirement for projects constructed
under the purview of SJVACPD. Future development constructed under the proposed project would be

required to demonstrate compliance with Rule 9510 as a condition of proiect a proval. Althou h
compliance with Rule 9510 would reduce total NOx and PMio exhaust emissions by the 20- and 45-
percent requirement, it is possible that during a day with exceptionally high construction activity, this
reduction would not be sufficient to reduce construction emissions to a less- than- significant level ( i. e.,

below 100 Ib/ day for criteria air pollutants and ozone precursors). Assuming that a 20- ercent reduction

in NO emissions is ap lied to maximum daily emissions under Scenario 1, NOx emissions would be 108. 8

Ib/ day day and would be over SJVAPCD' s 100 Ib/ day screening criteria. As such, unmitigated
construction emissions under Scenario 1 could result in a violation of an AAQS, and impacts under

Scenario 2 would be less than significant. This impact would be potentially significant.

City of Latnrop
3- 2 L throp CTF S arface Wa?er Discharge Project Final EIR

93



Ascent Environmental Respor ses to Comments

3. 1 . 3 Revisions to Section 3. 3 Terrestrial Biological Resources

In response to a comment on the Draft EIR and to provide clarification related to the regulatory context of the Delta
Plan, the first full paragraph on page 3. 3- 5 in Section 3. 3, " Terrestrial Biological Resources," is revised to read as follows:

The Delta Plan was amended in February 2016 to include refined performance measures, which were again

amended in April 2018. A September 2016 amendment made permanent an exemption for single- year water
transfers to be considered as covered actions. Also, in April 2018, the Delta Plan was amended to revise Chapter

3 to include new text and recommendations for conveyance, storage, and operations, and to revise Chapter 7

to include new text and a policy for setting priorities for state investments in Delta levees. In March 2020, DSC
rescinded the April 2018 amendment to Delta Plan Policy RR P1, which set new priorities for state investment in
Delta levees and restored the previous version of Policy RR P1 adopted in the Delta Plan in 2013.

In response to a comment on the Draft EIR and to provide clarification regarding Delta Plan policies that may be
applicable to the proposed project, new text is added after the third full paragraph on page 3. 3- 5 in Section 3. 3,
Terrestrial Biological Resources," as follows:

The followinq Delta Plan policies are related to biological resources:

Policy ER P2 ( 23 CCR Section 5006) Restore Habitats at A propriate Elevations

a)  Habitat restoration must be carried out consistent with Appendix 3, which is Section II of the Draft

Conservation Strategy for Restoration of the Sacramento- San Joaquin Delta Ecoloqical Management

Zone and the Sacramento and San Joaquin Valley Regions ( California Department of Fish and Wildlife
2011). The elevation map attached as Appendix 4 should be used as a guide for determinineac  ppropriate

habitat restoration actions based on an area' s elevation. If a proposed habitat restoration action is not
consistent with Appendix 4, the proposal shall provide rationale for the deviation based on best available
science.

Lb)  For purposes of Water Code section 85057. 5( a)( 3) and section 5001( j)( 1)( E) of this Chapter this policv
covers a proposed action that includes habitat restoration.

Policy ER P3 ( 23 CCR Section 50071 Protect Opportunities to Restore Habitat

a Within the priority habitat restoration areas depicted in Appendix 5, significant adverse impacts to the
opportunity to restore habitat as described in section 5006, must be avoided or mitigated.

bl Impacts referenced in subsection ( al will be deemed to be avoided or mitigated if the project is desiqned
and implemented so that it will not preclude or otherwise interfere with the ability to restore habitat as
described in section 5006.

c)  Impacts referenced in subsection ( a) shall be mitiqated to a point where the impacts have no significant
effect on the opportunitv to restore habitat as described in section 5006. Mitiqation shall be determined

in consultation with the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, considering the size of the area
impacted by the covered action and the type and value of habitat that could be restored on that area
taking into account existing and proposed restoration plans landscape attributes the elevation ma
shown in Appendix 4, and other relevant information about habitat restoration opportunities of the area.

d1 For purposes of Water Code section 85057 5( a)( 31 and section 5001( j)( 1)( E) of this Chapter this policy
covers proposed actions in the priority habitat restoration areas depicted in Appendix 5. It does not
cover proposed actions outside those areas.

Policy ER P5 l23 CCR Section 5009) Avoid ntroductions of and Habitat Improvements for Invasive Nonnative
Species

a)  The potential for new introductions of or improved habitat conditions for nonnative invasive species

striped bass, or bass must be fully considered and avoided or mitigated in a way that a propriatel
protects the ecosystem.

Gty of Lathrop
Lathrop CTF Surface 1 later Dlscharge Prc, ect Final EIR 3- 3

94



Responses to Commments Ascent Environmental

b)  For purposes of Water Code section 85057. 5( a)( 3) and section 5001( j)( 1)( E) of this Chapter, this polic
covers a proposed action that has the reasonable probability of introducing or improving habitat
conditions for nonnative invasive species.

3. 1 . 4 Revisions to Section 3. 5 Cultural, Tribal Cultural,  and

Paleontological Resources

In response to a comment on the Draft EIR and to clarify the jurisdiction California State Lands Commission has

relative to previously unrecorded archaeological resources inadvertently discovered during project- related ground-
disturbance, new text is added to Mitigation Measure 3. 5- 2 on page 3. 5- 14 in Section 3. 5, " Cultural, Tribal Cultural,
and Paleontological Resources," in the Draft EIR as follows:

Mitigation Measure 3. 5- 2: Implement Inadvertent Discovery Measures for the Protection of Archaeological
Resources

If any prehistoric or historic- era subsurface archaeological features or deposits, including locally darkened soil
midden"), that could conceal cultural deposits are inadvertently discovered during project- related construction

activities, all ground- disturbances within a minimum of 50 feet of the find shall be halted until a qualified

professional archaeologist can evaluate the discovery. The archaeologist shall examine the resources, assess
their significance, and recommend appropriate procedures to the lead agency to either further investigate or
mitigate adverse impacts ( e. g., adverse effect on a significant historical resource). If the qualified archaeologist
determines the archaeological material to be Native American in nature, the Ciry shall contact the appropriate
California Native American tribe ( i. e., Buena Vista Rancheria Me- Wuk Indians and North Valley Yokuts Tribe) for
their input on the preferred treatment of the find. If the find is determined to be a unique archaeological

resource and it cannot be avoided, then appropriate procedures to protect the integrity of the resource shall be
applied ( e.g., preservation in place, data recovery program pursuant to PRC Section 21083. 2[ i]). During
evaluation or mitigative treatment, ground- disturbance and construction work may continue on other parts of
the project site. The California State Lands Commission ( CSLC) shall approve the final disposition of an
archaeological, historical, and paleontological resources recovered on state lands under CSLC iurisdiction.

3. 1 . 5 Revisions to Section 3. 9 Hydrology and Water Quality
In response to a comment on the Draft EIR and to provide clarification regarding Delta Plan policies that may be
applicable to the proposed project, a new section for the Sacramento- San Joaquin Delta Reform Act of 2009 and list
of applicable Delta Plan policies is added after the " Central Valley Flood Protection Act" section as part of the
regulatory setting on page 3. 9- 5 in Section 3. 9, " Hydrology and Water Quality," as follows:

Sacramento- San Joaquin Delta Reform Act of 2009

A summary of the Sacramento- San Joaauin Delta Reform Act lDelta Reform Act) ( California Water Code
Section 10610 et seq.) is provided in the regulatory setting of Section 3. 3, " Terrestrial Biological Resources."
The followin Delta Plan policies are related to hydrology and water qualit

Policy ER P1 ( 23 CCR Section 5005) Delta Flow Objectives

a)  The State Water Resources Control Board' s Bay Delta Water Quality Control Plan flow objectives shall be
used to determine consistency with the Delta Plan. If and when the flow objectives are revised by the
State Water Resources Control Board, the revised flow objectives shall be used to determine consistency
with the Delta Plan.

Ib)  For purposes of Water Code section 850575( a)( 31 and section 5001( j)( 1)( E) of this Chapter, the policy set
forth in subsection ( a) covers a proposed action that could siqnificantiv affect flow in the Delta.

City of athrop
3- G Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discnarge Project Final EIR

95



Ascent Envronmentai Responses to Comments

Policy RR P3 ( 23 C R Section 5014) Protect Floodwa

a)  No encroachment shall be allowed or constructed in a floodway, unless it can be demonstrated b
appropriate analysis that the encroachment will not unduly impede the free flow of water in the
floodway orjeopardize public safet

Ib)  For purposes of Water Code section 85057. 5( al( 3) and section 5001Q)( 1)( E) of this Chapter, this policX

covers a proposed action that would encroach in a floodway that is not either a desianated floodway or
requlated stream.

In response to a comment on the Draft EIR and to provide clarification regarding SWPPP requirements and BMPs that

would be implemented to avoid and minimize potential adverse construction- related effects on surface water quality,
new text is added to the summary of Impact 3. 9- 1: Result in Impacts on Water Quality during Project Construction on
page 3. 9- 11 in Section 3. 9, " Hydrology and Water Quality," as follows:

Impact 3. 9- 1: Result in Impacts on Water Quality during Project Construction

Project construction activities would have the potential to result in a temporary increase in San Joaquin River
total suspended solids ( TSS) and turbidity near the construction site and the release of contaminants into the

river. Implementation of a SWPPP and associated BMPs in compliance with various permit requirements,
including SWRCB Construction General Permit requirements and CWA Section 401 Water Quality
Certification requirements, which would be required for project construction, would avoid and minimize

potential adverse construction- related effects on surface water quality. Therefore, this impact would be less
than significant.

In response to a comment on the Draft EIR and to provide clarification regarding SWPPP requirements and BMPs that

would be implemented to avoid and minimize potential adverse construction- related effects on surface water quality,
new text is added to the discussion of Impact 3. 9- 1 after the second paragraph under the heading, " Effects on Water
Quality: Contaminants" on page 3. 9- 13 in Section 3. 9, " Hydrology and Water Quality," as follows:

Effects on Water Qualitv: Contaminants

Potential sources of contaminant discharges would be the discharge of supernatant from dewatering behind
the coffer dam and the use of motorized equipment on and around the levee to install the new effluent

pipeline and outfall.

The proposed project would require a CWA Section 404 permit, a CWA Section 401 Water Quality
Certification, and notification of a California Fish and Game Code Section 1600 Streambed Alteration

Agreement before construction of the pipeline and outfall on the waterside of the levee could occur. The
construction work also would be subject to authorization under the SWRCB NPDES General Permit for Storm

Water Discharges Associated with Construction and Land Disturbance Activities ( Order No. 2009- 0009-

DWQ/ NPDES Permit No. CAS000002, as amended by 2010- 0014- DWQ and 2012- 0006- DWQ). Therefore, the
City and/ or its construction contractor would be required to prepare a SWPPP and implement appropriate
construction BMPs for all activities that may result in the discharge of construction- related contaminants
from disturbed construction areas.

The SWPPP would include pollution prevention measures ( erosion and sediment control measures and
measures to control non- stormwater discharges and hazardous spills); demonstration of compliance with all

applicable Central Valley RWQCB standards and other applicable water quality standards; demonstration of
compliance with reqional and local standards for erosion and sediment control; identification of responsible

parties; checklists that document when maintenance inspections occurred the results of the inspection
required corrective measures, and when corrective measures were implemented; detailed construction

timelines; and a BMP monitoring and maintenance schedule.

City of Lathrop

Lathrop CTF Surface Nlater Discharge Pre; ect Fin_al EIR 3- 5

96



Responses to Comments Ascent Environmental

BMPs would be expected to include as the following measures: conducting all work according to site- specific
construction lans that identify areas for cleariny, arading and reveqetation so that ground disturbance is
minimized- installing silt fences near riparian areas or existing drainaqes to control erosion and trap sediment
and reseed cleared areas with native vegetation stabilizing disturbed soils before the onset of the winter

rainfall season stabilizin c and protectinq soil stockpiles from ex osure to rain and potential erosion

conducting maintenance on a regular basis to confirm proper installation and function of BMPs and durinq
storm events conduct maintenance daily; and immediately repairing and replacing BMPs that have failed
fwithin 48 hours of the storm event) with sufficient devices and materials ( e. g., silt fence, coir rolls, erosion

blankets) provided throughoutproject construction to enable immediate corrective action for failed BMPs.

The SWPPP also would specify appropriate hazardous materials handlin , sqtorage, and spill response

practices to reduce the possibility of adverse effects from use or accidental spills or releases of contaminants.
Such measures could include developing and im lementing strict on- site handling rules to keep potentially
contaminating construction and maintenance materials out of drainaqes and other waterways; conducting all
refueling and servicing of eguiqment with absorbent material or drip pans underneath to contain spilled fuel,
oil and other fluids and collecting any fluid drained from machinery durina servicing in leak- proof
containers and deliverinq to an a pro riate disposal or recycling facility; maintaining controlled construction

staainq and fueling areas away from channels or wetlands to minimize accidental spills and runoff of
contaminants in stormwater; reventing substances that could be hazardous to aquatic life from
contaminating the soil or entering watercourses; maintaining spill cleanup equipment in proper workina
condition and cleaning up all s lls immediately according to a spill prevention and response plan.

BMPs would be a plied to meet the " maximum extent practicable" and " best conventional technology/ best
available technology" requirements and to address compliance with water quality standards.

Implementation of appropriate erosion control and pollution prevention BMPs would avoid and minimize
construction- related erosion and contaminant discharges. In addition to the BMPs, the SWPPP would include

BMP inspection and monitoring activities and would identify the responsibilities of all parties, contingency

measures, agency contacts, and training requirements and documentation for those personnel responsible
for the installation, inspection, maintenance, and repair of BMPs. The CWA Section 401 Water Quality

Certification also would require implementation of ineasures to prevent, minimize, and contain spills and
minimize the amount of soil, sediment, and trash that enters surface waters.

3. 1 . 6 Revisions to Chapter 7 References

In response to a comment on the Draft EIR and to provide clarification regarding Delta Plan policies that are
applicable to the proposed project, new text was added on page 33- 5 in Section 3. 3, " Terrestrial Biological
Resources," which included a new citation. This new citation is added on page 7- 5 under the heading Section 3. 3
Terrestrial Biological Resources as follows:

Section 3. 3 Terrestrial Biological Resources

Ascent Environmental. 2020 ( July). Aquatic Resources Delineation Report: Lathrop Consolidated Treatment
Facility Surface Water Discharge Project. Sacramento, CA. Prepared for City of Lathrop Public Works
Department, Lathrop, CA.

California Department of Fish and Wildlife. 2011. Draft Conservation Strateg for Restoration of the
Sacramento- San Joaquin Defta Ecoloqical Manaqement Zone and the Sacramento and San Joaquin

Vaflev Regions.

2018. Protoco(s for Surveying and Evaluating Impacts to Specia( Status Native Plant Populations and
Natural Communities. Available: https:// nrm.dfg.ca. gov/ FileHandler.ashx?DocumentlD= 18959.
Accessed 12 April 2017.

City of Lathrop
3- 6 athrop CTF Surface Nlater Discharge Project Final EIR

97



4 REFERENCES

Chapter 1, Introduction

Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board. 2019 ( September 23). Approval for Ffow Increase and Issuance of

Revised Monitoring and Reporting Program R5- 2016- 0028- 02, City of Lathrop, Lathrop Consolidated Treatment
Facility, San Joaquin County. Letter to Greg Gibson, senior civil engineer, City of Lathrop Public Works
Department. Lathrop, CA.

Central Valley RWQCB. See Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board.

City of Lathrop. 2013 ( June). City of Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Faci(ity Pro ect Fina( Initia( Study/ Proposed
Mitigated Negative Declaration. SCH No. 2013042011. Lathrop, CA. Prepared by Ascent Environmental,
Sacramento, CA. Adopted by Lathrop City Council on June 17, 2013.

EKI. See EKI Environment& Water.

EKI Environment& Water. 2019a ( December). Recyded Water System Master Plan, City of Lathrop Integrated Water
Resources Master P( an Update ( Final). Sacramento, CA. Prepared for City of Lathrop, CA.

2019b ( December). Wastewater System Master Plan, City of Lathrop Integrated Water Resources Master P(an
Update ( Final). Sacramento, CA. Prepared for City of Lathrop, CA.

RBI. See Robertson- Bryan, Inc.

Robertson- Bryan, Inc. 2019 ( August). Evaluation of Wastewater Treatment Regionafization, Reclamation, Recyding, and
Conservation for the City of Lathrop. Elk Grove, CA. Prepared for Central Valley Regional Water Quality
Control Board, Rancho Cordova, CA, on behalf of the City of Lathrop, CA.

Chapter 2, Responses to Comments

California Department of Fish and Wildlife. 2011. Draft Conservation Strategy for Restoration of the Sacramento- San
Joaquin Delta Ecological Management Zone and the Sacramento and San Joaquin Valley Regions.

California Department of Transportation. 2015 ( November). Technical Guidance for Assessment and Mitigation of the

Hydroacoustic Effects of Pile Driving on Fish.

Caltrans. See California Department of Transportation.

OEHHA. See Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment.

Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment. 2015. Air Toxics Hot Spots Program RiskAssessment Guidelines.

Available: https:// oehha. ca. gov/ media/ downloads/ crnr/ 2015guidancemanual. pdf. Accessed December 28, 2020.

2016. Air Toxic " Hot Spots" Program Facifity Prioritization Guidelines. Available: http:// www.capcoa.org/ wp-
content/ uploads/ 2016/ 04/ CAPCOA% 20Prioritization% 20Guidelines% 20-% 20April°/o202016% 20Draft. pdf.
Accessed December 28, 2020.

RBI. See Robertson- Bryan, Inc.

Robertson- Bryan, Inc. 2013. Temperature Study to Assess the Thermaf Impacts of the Sacramento Regiona( Wastewater
Treatment Plant Discharge on Aquatic Life of the Lower Sacramento River. Prepared for the Regional Water

Quality Control Board, Central Valley Region, on behalf of the Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District.

Chapter 3, Revisions to the Draft EIR
No references used.

City of Lathrop
Lathrop CTF Surface Nater Discharge Project Final E( R 4- 1

98



References Ascent Environmental

This page intentionally left blank.

City of Lathrop
4- 2 Lathrop CTF Surface V/ ater Discharge Projed Final EIR

99



5 LIST OF PREPARERS

City of Lathrop ( Lead Agency)
MichaelKing, PE........................................................................................................................................................ Director of Public Works

Ascent Environmental, Inc. ( CEQA Compliance)

GaryJakobs, AICP.................................................................................................................................................................................... Principal

AndreaShephard, PhD.......................................................................................................................................................... Project Manager

Jessica Mitchell, AICP............................................................................................ Assistant Project Manager, Environmental Planner

JuliaWilson............................................................................................................................................................................Air Quality Planner
Dimitri Antoniou, AICP.................................................................................................................... Senior Air Quality and Noise Planner
TedThayer............................................................................................................................................................................Terrestrial Biologist

Tammie Beyerl....................................................................................................................................................... Senior Terrestrial Biologist

BrianPerry................................................................................................................................................................................Graphic Specialist

JimMerk.......................................................................................................................................................................................Technical Editor

GayietyLane.......................................................................................................................................................................Publishing Specialist
MicheleMattei...................................................................................................................................................................Publishing Specialist

Robertson- Bryan Inc.

MichaelBryan, PhD.............................................................................................................................................................. Managing Partner
KeithWhitener..........................................................................................................................................................Senior Fisheries Biologist

KPFF

DanAllwardt, SE.................................................................................................................................................................. Managing Principal
StevenMillett, PE........................................................................................................................................................................... Civil Engineer

MBK Engineers

ProMitra, P. E................................................................................................................................................................................... Civil Engineer

Buchalter

AliciaGuerra, JD................................................................................................................................................................... City Legal Counsel

City of Lathrop

Lathrop CTF Sur; ace Water Discharge Project Final EIR 5- 1

100



List of Preparers Ascent EnvironmenYal

This page intentionally left blank.

City of Lathrop
5- 2 Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharge Project Final EIR

101



ATTACHMENT C

Findings for the Lathrop Consolidated

Treatment Facility Surface Water Discharge Project
REQUIRED UNDER THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT

Public Resources Code, Section 21000 et seq.)

1 I NTRODUCTION

The California Environmental Quality Act( CEQA) ( Public Resources Code [ PRC], Section 21000 et seq.) requires the

City of Lathrop ( City), when approving a project for which an environmental impact report ( EIR) has been prepared to:
1) make written findings with regard to the disposition of each significant impact, and, if significant unavoidable

impacts remain after mitigation, to 2) identify overriding considerations explaining why the City will continue to move
ahead with the project.

The City intends to approve the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility( CTF) Surface Water Discharge Project
project). This document explains the City' s findings regarding the significant and potentially significant impacts

identified in the EIR prepared for the CTF project. The project would not result in any significant and unavoidable
impacts; thus, a statement of overriding considerations is not required.

As required under CEQA, the EIR describes the project, adverse environmental impacts of the project, and mitigation
measures and alternatives that would substantially reduce or avoid those impacts. The information and conclusions
contained in the EIR reflect the City' s independentjudgment.

The Final EIR ( which includes the Draft EIR, comments, responses to comments, and revisions to the Draft EIR) for the

project examined several alternatives to the project; however, none of these alternatives were selected as part of the
approved project because the proposed project is the environmentally superior alternative that feasibly attains
project objectives. The alternatives consist of Alternative 1: No Project Alternative; Alternative 2: Outfall Configuration
Alternative; and Alternative 3: Manteca Water Quality Control Facility( WQCF) Outfall Location Alternative.

The Findings are presented for adoption by the City Council, as the City' s findings under CEQA and the State CEQA
Guidelines ( California Code of Regulations [ CCR], Title 14, Section 15000 et seq.) regarding the project. The Findings
provide the written analysis and conclusions of this City Council regarding the project' s environmental impacts,
mitigation measures, and alternatives to the project, which in this City Council' s view, justify approval of the project,
despite its environmental effects.

2 GENERAL FINDINGS AND OVERVIEW

2. 1 LATHROP CTF SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT

The City is proposing to establish a direct discharge of highly treated wastewater from its CTF to the San Joaquin
River. Currently, recycled water generated at the CTF is stored in ponds and used for urban and agricultural irrigation.
With implementation of the proposed project, the majority of CTF effluent would be discharged to the San Joaquin
River during winter when irrigation demands are low and river flow is relatively high, and less would be discharged
during the irrigation season when reuse of CTF recycled water would be maximized for landscape irrigation. This
approach would allow existing storage ponds and land application areas designated for urban uses to be developed
in accordance with the City of Lathrop General Plan.

City of Lathrop
Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharge Project 1

102



Findings of Fact

The CTF currently treats wastewater to a very high level. State requirements include standards for treatment quality
and specifies allowable uses and restrictions for recycled water. The effluent meets the State' s requirements for

disinfected ( using chlorine) tertiary- treated recycled water. The proposed project would involve modifications to the
CTF to remove chlorine, which could adversely affect fish, from disinfected effluent intended for river discharge to the

San Joaquin River. The project also includes installation of effluent pipelines within City road rights- of-way and a new
side- bank outfall along the San Joaquin River, through which the treated effluent would be discharged.

The City intends to obtain a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System ( NPDES) permit from the Regional
Water Quality Control Board ( Regional Board) to discharge up to 2. 5 million gallons per day ( mgd) average dry
weather flow ( current CTF design capacity) of treated effluent to the San Joaquin River. The effluent discharge

pipeline and outfall would be designed to accommodate CTF flows at City buildout, of up to 6. 0 mgd. The City

previously approved, in 2013, expansion of the CTF to as much as 6. 0 mgd. The NPDES permit would need to be
modified in the future if needed to accommodate flows above 2. 5 mgd.

The proposed project has the following objectives:

Provide for planned City buildout and development based on the City' s General Plan by providing effluent
discharge to the San Joaquin River.

Provide efficient and cost- effective wastewater services through buildout of the City.

Maximize use of recycled water in the City presently and in the future.

2. 2 PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND

The City of Lathrop circulated a Notice of Preparation ( NOP) of an EIR for the project on November 18, 2019 to
responsible agencies, interested parties and organizations, and private organizations and individuals that could have

interest in the proposed project. A public scoping meeting was held on December 4, 2019 to present the project
description to the public and interested agencies, and to receive comments from the public and interested agencies
regarding the scope of the environmental analysis to be included in the Draft EIR. Concerns raised in response to the
NOP and scoping meeting were considered during preparation of the Draft EIR. The NOP and comments received on
the NOP by interested parties are presented in Appendix A of the Draft EIR.

The City published a public Notice of Availability( NOA) for the Draft EIR on October 21, 2020, inviting comment from
the general public, agencies, organizations, and other interested parties. The NOA was filed with the State
Clearinghouse ( SCH # 2019110339) and the San Joaquin County Clerk, and published in the Manteca Bulletin, a

newspaper of regional circulation pursuant to the public noticing requirements of CEQA. The 45- day public review
period extended from October 21, 2020 through December 4, 2020.

The City of Lathrop received seven comment letters on the Draft EIR during the public review period. After the public
review period concluded, one additional comment letter was received. In accordance with State CEQA Guidelines
Section 15088, the Final EIR responds to the comments received during the public review period. Comments received
after the public review period closed were also considered by the City of Lathrop in their review of the proposed

project. The late comments and responses thereto are also included in Final EIR.

2. 3 RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS AND CUSTODIAN OF RECORD

For purposes of CEQA and the findings set forth herein, the record of proceedings for the City' s findings and

determinations consists of the following documents, materials and testimony, at a minimum:

The NOP, comments received on the NOP, and all other public notices issued by the City regarding the project

e. g., Notice of Availability).

The Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharge Project Draft EIR and Final EIR, including comment letters, and
technical materials cited in the documents.

City of lathrop
2 Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharge Project

103



Findings of Fact

All official reports and memoranda prepared by the City of Lathrop and consultants in relation to the EIR.

Minutes and transcripts of the discussions regarding the project and/ or project components at public meetings
held by the City.

Staff reports associated with City Council meetings on the project.

Those categories of documents, materials and testimony included in the record or proceedings identified in
Public Resources Code Section 21167. 6.

The City Clerk is the custodian of the administrative record. The documents and materials that constitute the
administrative record are available for review at the City of Lathrop at 390 Towne Centre Drive, Lathrop, California
95330.

2. 4 FINDINGS REQUIRED UNDER CEQA

Public Resources Code Section 21002 provides that" public agencies should not approve projects as proposed if there
are feasible alternatives or feasible mitigation measures available which would substantially lessen the significant
environmental effects of such projects[.]" Further, the procedures required by CEQA" are intended to assist public

agencies in systematically identifying both the significant effects of proposed projects and the feasible alternatives or
feasible mitigation measures which will avoid or substantially lessen such significant effects." ( Id.) Section 21002 also

provides that" in the event specific economic, social, or other conditions make infeasible such project alternatives or
such mitigation measures, individual projects may be approved in spite of one or more significant effects thereof,"

subject to a statement of overriding considerations.

The mandate and principles adopted by the Legislature in PRC Section 21002 are implemented, in part, through the

requirement in PRC Section 21081 that agencies must adopt findings before approving projects for which an EIR is
required.

State CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 provides the following direction regarding findings:

a)  No public agency shall approve or carry out a project for which an EIR has been certified which identifies
one or more significant environmental effects of the project unless the public agency makes one or more
written findings for each of those significant effects, accompanied by a brief explanation of the rationale

for each finding. The possible findings are:

1)  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the project which avoid or
substantially lessen the significant environmental effect as identified in the Final EIR.

2)  Such changes or alterations are within the responsibility and jurisdiction of another public agency

and not the agency making the finding. Such changes have been adopted by such other agency or
can and should be adopted by such other agency.

3)  Specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of
employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible the mitigation measures or
project alternatives identified in the final EIR.

See also PRC Section 21081, subd. ( a)( 1)-( 3).)

As defined by CEQA, " feasible" means capable of being accomplished in a successful manner within a reasonable

period of time, taking into account economic, environmental, social, legal, and technological factors. ( PRC Section
21061. 1; see also State CEQA Guidelines Section 15126. 6( fl( 1) [ determining the feasibility of alternatives].) The concept

of" feasibility" also encompasses the question of whether a particular alternative or mitigation measure promotes the
underlying goals and objectives of a project. ( See Association of Irritated Residents v. County of Madera ( 2003) 107

Cal. App.4th 1383, 1400 [ court upholds findings rejecting a " reduced herd" alternative to a proposed dairy as infeasible
because the alternative failed to meet the " fundamental objective" of the project to produce milk]; Sierra Cfub v.
County of Napa ( 2004) 121 Cal. App. 4th 1490, 1506- 1508 [ agency decision- makers, in rejecting alternatives as

City of Lathrop
Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharge Projed 3

104



Findings of Fact

infeasible, appropriately relied on project objective articulated by project applicant].) Moreover, "' feasibility' under
CEQA encompasses ' desirability' to the extent that desirability is based on a reasonable balancing of the relevant
economic, environmental, social, legal, and technological factors." ( City of Del Mar v. City of San Diego [ 1982] 133
Cal. App. 3d 410, 417; see also California Native Plant Society v. City of Santa Cruz[ 2009] 177 Cal. App. 4th 957, 1001-
1002.)

With respect to a project for which significant impacts cannot be feasibly avoided or substantially lessened, a public
agency may nevertheless approve the project if the agency first adopts a statement of overriding considerations
setting forth the specific reasons that the project' s benefits outweigh its significant unavoidable adverse
environmental effects. ( PRC Sections 21001, 21002. 1[ c], 21081[ b].) This is not applicable in the case of the project; all
significant impacts can be reduced to a less- than- significant level.

2. 5 MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM

A Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program ( MMRP) has been prepared for the project and has been adopted
concurrently with these Findings. ( See PRC Section 21081. 6( a)( 1).) The City will use the MMRP to track compliance with
project mitigation measures.

2. 6 CONSIDERATION OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT

In adopting these Findings, this City Council finds that the Final EIR was presented to this City Council, the decision-

making body of the lead agency, which reviewed and considered the information in the Final EIR prior to approving
the project. By these findings, this City Council ratifies, adopts, and incorporates the analysis, explanation, findings,
responses to comments, and conclusions of the Final EIR. The City Council finds that the Final EIR was completed in
compliance with CEQA. The Final EIR represents the independentjudgment of the City.

2. 7 SEVERABILITY

If any term, provision, or portion of these Findings or the application of these Findings to a particular situation is held
by a court to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of these Findings, or their application to
other actions related to the project, shall continue in full force and effect unless amended or modified by the City.

3 FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS REGARDING

SIGNIFICANT IMPACTS WHICH ARE MITIGATED TO A LESS-

THAN- SIGNIFICANT LEVEL

AIR QUALITY

Impact 3. 2- 1: Result in Short- Term Emissions of Criteria Air Pollutants and Precursors

Potential Impact: The potential for project construction to result in short- term emissions of criteria air pollutants and
precursors is discussed on pages 3. 2- 14 through 3. 2- 15 of the Draft EIR.

Mitigation Measure: The following mitigation measure is hereby adopted and will be implemented as provided by the
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program: Mitigation Measure 3. 2- 1, " Apply Tier- 4 Emissions Standards to
Achieve a 30- Percent Reduction in NOx Emissions from Diesel- Powered Off- Road Equipment."

Findings: Mitigation Measure 3. 2- 1 requires a 30- percent reduction in oxides of nitrogen ( NOx) exhaust emissions
through the use of U. S. Environmental Protection Agency- certified Tier 4 engines if future construction of the effluent
discharge pipeline would be executed by two discrete construction crews at the same time as the CTF modifications

City of Lathrop
4 Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharge Project

105



Findings of Fact

are implemented. This 30- percent reduction in NOx would be determined by the construction start year, fleet engine
year mix, equipment type, horsepower, and hourly usage. A 30- percent reduction from anticipated unmitigated

maximum daily emissions would lower emissions to 95 Ib/ day, which would be below San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution
Control District' s mass emissions screening criterion for NOx emissions. Because this 30- percent NOx reduction would
be a performance standard to be achieved prior to the commencement of construction, implementation of
Mitigation Measure 3. 2- 1 would be sufficient to reduce NOx emissions to a less- than- significant level, thus avoiding
the potential for an exceedance of an ambient air quality standard and associated adverse health impacts.

In accordance with PRC Section 21081, Mitigation Measure 3. 2- 1 is an appropriate change or alteration that has been

required in, or incorporated into, the project by the City of Lathrop, which avoids or substantially lessens the
significant environmental effect as identified in the EIR. Based upon the EIR and the entire record before this City
Council, this City Council finds that the potential for adverse effects related to short- term emissions of criteria air
pollutants and precursors will be mitigated to a less- than- significant level.

TERRESTRIAL BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES

Impact 3. 3- 1: Cause Disturbance to or Loss of Valley Elderberry Longhorn Beetle
Potential Impact: The potential for the project to cause disturbance to or loss of valley elderberry longhorn beetle is
discussed on page 3. 3- 24 of the Draft EIR.

Mitigation Measures: The following mitigation measures are hereby adopted and will be implemented as provided by
the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program: Mitigation Measures 3. 3- 1a, " Seek Coverage under the SJMSCP"

and 3. 3- 1b, " Conduct Survey for and Protect Valley Elderberry Longhorn Beetle."

Findings: Incorporation of Mitigation Measures 3. 3- 1a and 3. 3- 1b into the project would reduce the potentially
significant impact on valley elderberry longhorn beetle to a less- than- significant level because the project would seek
coverage under the San Joaquin Valley Multi- Species Habitat Conservation and Open Space Plan ( SJMSCP), indirect

effects would be minimized by implementing protective measures for elderberry shrubs to be retained on- site, and
shrubs that would be removed would be transplanted or compensated for in accordance with the SJMSCP.

In accordance with PRC Section 21081, Mitigation Measures 3. 3- 1a and 3. 3- 1b are appropriate changes or alterations

that have been required in, or incorporated into, the project by the City of Lathrop which avoid or substantially lessen
the significant environmental effect as identified in the EIR.

In addition, such changes or alterations are also within the responsibility andjurisdiction of another public agency,
the San Joaquin Council of Governments (SJCOG) and not the City of Lathrop. Such changes have been adopted by
such other agency or can and should be adopted by such other agency.

Based upon the EIR and the entire record before this City Council, this City Council finds that the potential for adverse
effects on valley elderberry longhorn beetle will be mitigated to a less- than- significant level.

Impact 3. 3- 2: Cause Disturbance to or Loss of Western Pond Turtle
Potential Impact: The potential for the project to cause disturbance to or loss western pond turtle is discussed on
page 3. 3- 25 of the Draft EIR.

Mitigation Measure: The following mitigation measure is hereby adopted and will be implemented as provided by the
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program: Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 2, " Conduct Western Pond Turtle
Preconstruction Survey and Relocation."

Findings: Incorporation of Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 2 into the project would reduce the potentially significant impact
on western pond turtle to a less- than- significant level because it would ensure that western pond turtles are removed
from the site and that nest sites are protected so that project construction would not result in mortality of individuals.

City of Lathrop
Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharge Project 5

106



Findings of Fact

In accordance with PRC Section 21081, Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 2 is an appropriate change or alteration that has been

required in, or incorporated into, the project by the City of Lathrop which avoids or substantially lessens the
significant environmental effect as identified in the EIR.

In addition, such changes or alterations are also within the responsibility and jurisdiction of another public agency,
SJCOG and not the City of Lathrop. Such changes have been adopted by such other agency or can and should be
adopted by such other agency.

Based upon the EIR and the entire record before this City Council, this City Council finds that the potential for adverse
effects on western pond turtles will be mitigated to a less- than- significant level.

Impact 3. 3- 3: Cause Disturbance to or Loss of Swainson' s Hawk, White- Tailed Kite, Cooper' s

Hawk, Sharp- Shinned Hawk, and Other Nesting Raptors
Potential Impact: The potential for the project to cause disturbance to or loss of Swainson' s hawk, white- tailed kite,

Cooper' s hawk, sharp- shinned hawk, and other nesting raptors is discussed on page 3. 3- 26 of the Draft EIR.

Mitigation Measure: The following mitigation measure is hereby adopted and will be implemented as provided by the
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program: Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 3, " Protect Swainson' s Hawk, White- Tailed

Kite, Cooper' s Hawk, Sharp- Shinned Hawk, and Other Nesting Raptors."

Findings: Incorporation of Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 3 into the project would reduce the potentially significant impact
on Swainson' s hawk, white- tailed kite, Cooper' s hawk, sharp- shinned hawk, and other nesting raptors to a less- than-
significant level because it would require that project activities would not remove an active nest tree or disturb nest
sites.

In accordance with PRC Section 21081, Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 3 is an appropriate change or alteration that has been

required in, or incorporated into, the project by the City of Lathrop which avoids or substantially lessens the
significant environmental effect as identified in the EIR.

In addition, such changes or alterations are also within the responsibility andjurisdiction of other public agencies,
SJCOG, and California Department of Fish and Wildlife ( CDFW) if active raptor nests are present, and not the City of
Lathrop. Such changes have been adopted by such other agency or can and should be adopted by such other
agency.

Based upon the EIR and the entire record before this City Council, this City Council finds that the potential for adverse
effects on of Swainson' s hawk, white- tailed kite, Cooper' s hawk, sharp- shinned hawk, and other nesting raptors will
be mitigated to a less- than- significant level.

Impact 3. 3- 4: Cause Disturbance to or Loss of Loggerhead Shrike, California Horned Lark, and
Other Nesting Birds
Potential Impact: The potential for the project to cause disturbance to or loss of loggerhead shrike, California horned
lark, and other nesting birds is discussed on pages 3. 3- 27 through 3. 3- 28 of the Draft EIR.

Mitigation Measure: The following mitigation measure is hereby adopted and will be implemented as provided by the
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program: Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 4, " Protect Loggerhead Shrike, California
Horned Lark, and Other Nesting Birds."

Findings: Incorporation of Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 4 into the project would reduce the potentially significant impact
on loggerhead shrike, California horned lark, and other nesting birds to a less- than- significant level because it would
require preconstruction surveys during the nesting season and no- disturbance buffers around active nests so that
project activities do not remove active nests or disturb nesting birds.

In accordance with PRC Section 21081, Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 4 is an appropriate change or alteration that has been

required in, or incorporated into, the project by the City of Lathrop which avoids or substantially lessens the
significant environmental effect as identified in the EIR.

City of Lathrop
6 L throp CTF Surface Water Discharge Project

107



Findings of Fact

In addition, such changes or alterations are also within the responsibility and jurisdiction of other public agencies,
SJCOG, and CDFW if nesting birds are present, and not the City of Lathrop. Such changes have been adopted by
such other agency or can and should be adopted by such other agency.

Based upon the EIR and the entire record before this City Council, this City Council finds that the potential for adverse
effects on loggerhead shrike, California horned lark, and other nesting birds will be mitigated to a less- than-
significant level.

Impact 3. 3- 5: Cause Disturbance to or Loss of Riparian Brush Rabbit
Potential Impact: The potential for the project to cause disturbance to or loss of riparian brush rabbit is discussed on
pages 3. 3- 28 through 3. 3- 29 of the Draft EIR.

Mitigation Measure: The following mitigation measure is hereby adopted and will be implemented as provided by the
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program: Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 5, " Protect Riparian Brush Rabbit."

Findings: Incorporation of Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 5 into the project would avoid or minimize the impact on riparian
brush rabbit by conducting preconstruction surveys, conducting daily surveys of construction areas, using exclusion
fencing, and minimizing vegetation removal. Additional measures may be developed through consultation with U. S.
Fish and Wildlife Service ( USFWS) and CDFW that may include supporting the existing USFWS captive breeding
program to establish new populations in appropriate habitat and purchasing or creating compensatory habitat,
resulting in no net loss of riparian habitat for riparian brush rabbit.

In accordance with PRC Section 21081, Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 5 is an appropriate change or alteration that has been

required in, or incorporated into, the project by the City of Lathrop which avoids or substantially lessens the
significant environmental effect as identified in the EIR.

In addition, such changes or alterations are also within the responsibility and jurisdiction of other public agencies, the
USFWS and CDFW and not the City of Lathrop. Such changes have been adopted by such other agency or can and
should be adopted by such other agency.

Based upon the EIR and the entire record before this City Council, this City Council finds that the potential for adverse
effects on riparian brush rabbit will be mitigated to a less- than- significant level.

Impact 3. 3- 6: Cause Disturbance to and Loss of Waters of the United States and State
Potential Impact: The potential for the project to cause disturbance to and loss of waters of the United States and
state is discussed on page 3. 3- 30 of the Draft EIR.

Mitigation Measure: The following mitigation measure is hereby adopted and will be implemented as provided by the
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program: Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 6, " Compensate for Loss of Waters of the
United States and State."

Findings: Incorporation of Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 6 into the project would reduce the significant impact on waters of
the United States and waters of the state to a less- than- significant level because it would ensure no net loss of
functions and acreage of wetlands, other waters of the United States, and waters of the state.

In accordance with PRC Section 21081, Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 6 is an appropriate change or alteration that has been

required in, or incorporated into, the project by the City of Lathrop which avoids or substantially lessens the
significant environmental effect as identified in the EIR.

In addition, such changes or alterations are also within the responsibility and jurisdiction of other public agencies, U. S.
Army Corp of Engineers and Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board and not the City of Lathrop. Such
changes have been adopted by such other agency or can and should be adopted by such other agency.

Based upon the EIR and the entire record before this City Council, this City Council finds that the potential for adverse
effects on waters of the United States and the state will be mitigated to a less- than- significant levei.

City of Lathrop
Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharge Project 7

108



Findings of Fact

Impact 3. 3- 7: Cause Disturbance to or Loss of Riparian Habitat

Potential Impact: The potential for the project to cause disturbance to or loss of riparian habitat is discussed on page
3. 3- 30 of the Draft EIR.

Mitigation Measure: The following mitigation measure is hereby adopted and will be implemented as provided by the
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program: Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 7, " Minimize and Compensate for the Loss of
Riparian Habitat."

Findings: Incorporation of Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 7 into the project would minimize the loss of riparian habitat and

sensitive natural communities by restoring habitat, implementing measures to reduce erosion and runoff, and

compensating for loss of habitat to ensure no net loss through the permitting process.

In accordance with PRC Section 21081, Mitigation Measure 3. 3- 7 is an appropriate change or alteration that has been

required in, or incorporated into, the project by the City of Lathrop which avoids or substantially lessens the
significant environmental effect as identified in the EIR.

In addition, such changes or alterations are also within the responsibility andjurisdiction of other public agencies,
SJCOG and CDFW and not the City of Lathrop. Such changes have been adopted by such other agency or can and
should be adopted by such other agency.

Based upon the EIR and the entire record before this City Council, this City Council finds that the potential for adverse
effects on riparian habitat will be mitigated to a less- than- significant level.

AQUATIC BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES

Impact 3. 4- 2: Cause Direct Fish Injury or Mortality during Construction Resutting in Impacts
on Fish Populations

Potential Impact: The potential for the project to cause direct fish injury or mortality during construction resulting in
impacts on fish populations is discussed on pages 3. 4- 27 through 3. 4- 28 of the Draft EIR.

Mitigation Measure: The following mitigation measure is hereby adopted and will be implemented as provided by the
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program: Mitigation Measure 3. 4- 2, " Conduct Fish Rescue and Relocation
Operation."

Findings: Incorporation of Mitigation Measure 3. 4- 2 into the project requires that project construction occur during
the NMFS- approved July 1 through October 31 window when no federal Endangered Species Act- ( ESA-) listed

salmonidjuveniles, or delta smelt, are expected to be in the project river reach and thusjuvenile salmonids and delta

smelt would not be expected to get entrained within the coffer dammed area. The only ESA- listed species that would
be expected to be present as ajuvenile life stage, and thus prone to potential entrainment, would bejuvenile green
sturgeon. There is a very low probability that a juvenile green sturgeon would be entrained in the enclosed coffer
dammed area due to the noise and disturbance of coffer damming which is expected to move fish away from the
area. Nevertheless, if one or more individuals would be entrained, juvenile green sturgeon are hardy and would
handle being rescue seined and placed back in the river. This mitigation measure would ensure that most, if not all,

fishes that become entrained within the coffer dammed area are safely removed and safely returned to the San
Joaquin River prior to the start of construction work within the coffer dammed area.

In accordance with PRC Section 21081, Mitigation Measure 3. 4- 2 is an appropriate change or alteration that has been

required in, or incorporated into, the project by the City of Lathrop which avoids or substantially lessens the
significant environmental effect as identified in the EIR.

Based upon the EIR and the entire record before this City Council, this City Council finds that the potential for adverse
effects on fish populations during project construction will be mitigated to a less- than- significant level.

City of Lathrop
8 Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharge Project

109



Findings of Fact

CULTURAL, TRIBAL CULTURAL, AND PALEONTOLOGICAL RESOURCES

Impact 3. 5- 2: Cause a Substantial Adverse Change in the Significance of Archaeological
Resources

Potential Impact: The potential for the project to cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of
archaeological resources is discussed on pages 3. 5- 13 through 3. 5- 14 of the Draft EIR.

Mitigation Measure: The following mitigation measure is hereby adopted and will be implemented as provided by the
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program: Mitigation Measure 3. 5- 2, " Implement Inadvertent Discovery
Measures for the Protection of Archaeological Resources."

Findings: Incorporation of Mitigation Measure 3. 5- 2 into the project would ensure that any previously unrecorded
archaeological resources inadvertently discovered during project- related ground- disturbance would be properly
handled and treated because it would require the performance of professionally accepted and legally compliant
procedures for the discovery and protection of previously undocumented significant archaeological resources.

In accordance with PRC Section 21081, Mitigation Measure 3. 5- 2 is an appropriate change or alteration that has been

required in, or incorporated into, the project by the City of Lathrop which avoids or substantially lessens the
significant environmental effect as identified in the EIR. Based upon the EIR and the entire record before this City
Council, this City Council finds that potentially significant impacts resulting from the inadvertent discovery of
unknown archaeological resources during construction would be reduced to a less- than- significant level.

In addition, such changes or alterations are also within the responsibility and jurisdiction of other public agencies,
California Native American Tribes if Native American archaeological resources are found, and California State Lands

Commission if archaeological resources are recovered on state lands, and not the City of Lathrop. Such changes have
been adopted by such other agency or can and should be adopted by such other agency.

Impact 3. 5- 3: Cause a Substantial Adverse Change in the Significance of a Tribal Cultural
Resource

Potential Impact: The potential for the project to cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal
cultural resource ( TCR) is discussed on pages 3. 5- 14 through 3. 5- 15 of the Draft EIR.

Mitigation Measure: The following mitigation measure is hereby adopted and will be implemented as provided by the
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program: Mitigation Measure 3. 5- 3, " Implement Inadvertent Discovery
Measures for the Protection of Tribal Cultural Resources."

Findings: Incorporation of Mitigation Measure 3. 5- 3 into the project would ensure that any previously unrecorded
TCRs inadvertently discovered during project- related ground- disturbance would be properly treated by notifying the
appropriate California Native American tribe and requiring preservation options and proper care of significant
artifacts if they are recovered.

In accordance with PRC Section 21081, Mitigation Measure 3. 5- 3 is an appropriate change or alteration that has been

required in, or incorporated into, the project by the City of Lathrop which avoids or substantially lessens the
significant environmental effect as identified in the EIR. Based upon the EIR and the entire record before this City
Council, this City Council finds that the potential for adverse effects on TCRs will be mitigated to a less- than-
significant level.

In addition, such changes or alterations are also within the responsibility andjurisdiction of another public agency, a
California Native American Tribe if TCRs are found, and not the City of Lathrop. Such changes have been adopted by
such other agency or can and should be adopted by such other agency.

Impact 3. 5- 4: Disturb Human Remains

Potential Impact: The potential for the project to disturb human remains is discussed on page 3. 5- 15 of the Draft EIR.

City of Lathrop

Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharge Project g

110



Findings of Fact

Mitigation Measure: The following mitigation measure is hereby adopted and will be implemented as provided by the
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program: Mitigation Measure 3. 5- 4, " Implement Inadvertent Discovery
Measures for the Protection of Human Remains."

Findings: Incorporation of Mitigation Measure 3. 5- 4 into the project would ensure that any unrecorded or inadvertent
discoveries of human remains during ground- disturbing activities would be properly mitigated in accordance with the
laws of the state.

In accordance with PRC Section 21081, Mitigation Measure 3. 5- 4 is an appropriate change or alteration that has been

required in, or incorporated into, the project by the City of Lathrop which avoids or substantially lessens the
significant environmental effect as identified in the EIR. Based upon the EIR and the entire record before this City
Council, this City Council finds that the potential for adverse effects on human remains will be mitigated to a less-
than- significant level.

HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

Impact 3. 8- 1: Create a Significant Health Hazard from the Routine Transport, Use, or

Disposal of Hazardous Materials, Including Reasonably Foreseeable Upset or Accidents
Potential Impact: The potential for the project to create a significant health hazard from the routine transport, use, or

disposal of hazardous materials, including reasonably foreseeable upset or accidents is discussed on pages 3. 8- 6
through 3. 8- 8 of the Draft EIR.

Mitigation Measure: The following mitigation measure is hereby adopted and will be implemented as provided by the
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program: Mitigation Measure 3. 8- 1, " Implement Mitigation Measure 4.14.- 1,

Existing Hazardous Materials/ Waste Sites," Incorporated by Reference into the 2013 CTF IS/ MND."

Findings: Incorporation of Mitigation Measure 3. 8- 1 into the project would require that if any soil discoloration,
vapors, or other signs of potential hazardous waste contamination is encountered during construction then the soils
would be tested and removed if found to be contaminated above Department of Toxic Substance Control ( DTSC)-

acceptable levels.

In accordance with PRC Section 21081, Mitigation Measure 3. 8- 1 is an appropriate change or alteration that has been

required in, or incorporated into, the project by the City of Lathrop which avoids or substantially lessens the
significant environmental effect as identified in the EIR. Based upon the EIR and the entire record before this City
Council, this City Council finds that the potential for adverse effects related to the routine transport, use, or disposal

of hazardous materials, including reasonably foreseeable upset or accidents, will be mitigated to a less- than-
significant level.

In addition, such changes or alterations are also within the responsibility andjurisdiction of another public agency,
DTSC if soil samples are contaminated above DTSC acceptable levels, and not the City of Lathrop. Such changes have
been adopted by such other agency or can and should be adopted by such other agency.

4 FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS REGARDING THOSE

IMPACTS THAT ARE LESS THAN S I G N I FI CANT OR

LESS THAN CUMULATIVELY CONSIDERABLE

The City has reviewed and considered the information in the Draft EIR and the Final EIR addressing potential
environmental effects, proposed mitigation measures, and alternatives. The City, relying on the facts and analysis in
the Draft EIR and the Final EIR, which were presented to the City and reviewed and considered prior to any approvals,
concurs with the conclusions of the Draft EIR and the Final EIR regarding the potential environmental effects of the
EIR:

City of Lathrop
10 Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharge Project

111



Findings of Fact

Air Quality

Impact 3. 2- 2: Result in Operational Emissions of Criteria Air Pollutants and Precursors

Impact 3. 2- 3: Expose Sensitive Receptors to Emissions of Toxic Air Contaminants

Terrestrial Biological Resources

Impact 3. 3- 8: Cause Disturbance to or Loss of Terrestrial Wildlife Corridors

Aquatic Biological Resources

Impact 3. 4- 1: Result in Construction- Related Underwater Noise and Vibration Impacts on Fish and Their Prey
Organisms

Impact 3. 4- 3: Result in Adverse Effects on Aquatic Species Because of Alterations in Aquatic and Riparian Habitat

during Construction

Impact 3. 4- 4: Result in CTF Discharge- Related Effects on Seasonal Fully Mixed River Temperatures and
Associated Thermal Impacts on Fish, Phytoplankton, Zooplankton, and Benthic Macroinvertebrates ( BMI)

Impact 3. 4- 5: Cause Thermal Impacts on Fish, Phytoplankton, Zooplankton, and BMI Moving Past or through the
Thermal Plume near the CTF Outfall

Impact 3. 4- 6: Result in Operations- Related Effects on River Flow and Physical Habitat and Associated Impacts on
Fish and Other Aquatic Organisms

Impact 3. 4- 7: Affect Salmonid Movements or Behavior within the San Joaquin River due to Copper

Concentrations in the Effluent Discharge

Cultural, Tribal Cultural, and Paleontological Resources

Impact 3. 5- 1: Cause a Substantial Adverse Change in the Significance of Historical Resources

Impact 3. 5- 5: Disturb Paleontological Resources

Energy

Impact 3. 6- 1: Result in the Wasteful, Inefficient, or Unnecessary Consumption of Energy during Project
Construction or Operation

Impact 3. 6- 2: Conflict with or Obstruct a State or Local Plan for Renewable Energy or Energy Efficiency

Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Climate Change

Impact 3. 7- 1: Generate GHG Emissions During Construction and Operation of the Proposed Project

Hazards and Hazardous Materials

Impact 3. 8- 2: Impair Implementation of or Physically Interfere with an Adopted Emergency Response Plan or
Emergency Evacuation Plan

Hydrology and Water Quality

Impact 3. 9- 1: Result in Impacts on Water Quality during Project Construction

Impact 3. 9- 2: Result in Impacts on Flood Flows and Associated Erosion during Project Construction

Impact 3. 9- 3: Result in Impacts on Groundwater during Project Operation

Impact 3. 9- 4: Result in Hydraulic Impacts That Would Cause Substantial Erosion or Impede or Redirect Flood

Flows during Project Operation

Impact 3. 9- 5: Result in Impacts on Water Quality during Project Operation: Various Contaminants

City of Lathrop

Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharge Project 11

112



Findings of Fact

Impact 3. 9- 6: Result in Impacts on Water Quality during Project Operation: Electrical Conductivity and Total
Dissolved Solids

Impact 3. 9- 7: Result in Impacts on Water Quality during Project Operation: Trihalomethane Compounds

Impact 3. 9- 8: Result in Impacts on Water Quality from Project Operation: pH

Impact 3. 9- 9: Result in Impacts on Water Quality during Project Operation: Turbidity

Impact 3. 9- 10: Result in Impacts on Water Quality during Project Operation: Ammonia, Nitrate plus Nitrite,
Phosphorus, and Nutrient Biostimulation

Impact 3. 9- 11: Result in Impacts on Water Quality during Project Operation: Dissolved Oxygen

Impact 3. 9- 12: Result in Impacts on Water Quality during Project Operation: Temperature

Impact 3. 9- 13: Result in Impacts on Water Quality during Project Operation: Endocrine- Disrupting Compounds
and Constituents of Emerging Concern

Noise and Vibration

Impact 3. 10- 1: Generate Excessive Noise Levels During Construction

Impact 3. 10- 2: Generate Excessive Operational Noise Levels

Impact 3. 10- 3: Generate Excessive Ground- borne Vibration Levels During Construction

Cumulative

Air Quality

Terrestrial Biological Resources

Aquatic Biological Resources

Cultural, Tribal Cultural, and Paleontological Resources

Energy

Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Climate Change

Hazards and Hazardous Materials

Hydrology and Water Quality

Noise and Vibration

5 PROJECT ALTERNATIVES

5. 1 BASIS FOR ALTERNATIVES- FEASIBILITY ANALYSIS

Public Resources Code Section 21002 provides that" public agencies should not approve projects as proposed if there
are feasible alternatives or feasible mitigation measures available which would substantially lessen the significant
environmental effects of such projects[.]" The same statute states that the procedures required by CEQA " are
intended to assist public agencies in systematically identifying both the significant effects of proposed projects and
the feasible alternatives or feasible mitigation measures which will avoid or substantially lessen such significant
effects."

Where a lead agency has determined that, even after the adoption of all feasible mitigation measures, a project as
proposed will still cause one or more significant environmental effects that cannot be substantially lessened or
avoided, the agency, prior to approving the project as mitigated, must first determine whether, with respect to such

City of Lathrop
1z Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharge Project

113



Findings of Fact

impacts, there remain any project alternatives that are both environmentally superior and feasible within the meaning
of CEQA. Although an EIR must evaluate this range of potentially feasible alternatives, an alternative may ultimately
be deemed by the lead agency to be " infeasible" if it fails to fully promote the lead agency' s underlying goals and
objectives with respect to the project. ( California Native P(ant Society v. City of Santa Cruz( 2009) 177 Cal. App. 4th 957,
999- 1000 ( CNPS); Citizens for Open Government v. City of Lodi( 2012) 205 Ca. App. 4th 296, 314- 315; City of Del Mar v.
City of San Diego ( 1983) 133 Cal. App. 3d 401, 417; Los Ange( es Conservancy v. City of West Hollywood( 2017) 18
Cal. App. Sth 1031, 1041- 1043.) "' Feasibility' under CEQA encompasses' desirability' to the extent that desirability is
based on a reasonable balancing of the relevant economic, environmental, social, and technological factors." ( Ibid.;

see also CNPS, supra, 177 Cal. App.4th at p. 1001.) Thus, even if a project alternative will avoid or substantially lessen
any of the significant environmental effects of the project, the decision- makers may reject the alternative if they
determine that specific considerations make the alternative infeasible. Although the analysis in the EIR determined

that all significant or potentially significant impacts of the project could be reduced to a less- than- significant level
with implementation of mitigation measures ( see Section 3, above), the EIR and the Findings herein consider

alternatives that may further avoid or reduce the impacts of the proposed project and achieve the project objectives.

Under CEQA Guidelines Section 15126. 6, the alternatives to be discussed in detail in an EIR should be able to " feasibly
attain most of the basic objectives of the project[.]" For this reason, the project objectives described above under

Section 2. 1 provided the framework for defining possible project alternatives. ( See In re Bay- Delta( 2008) 43 Cal. 4th
1143, 1166.) Alternatives also were evaluated based on general feasibility criteria suggested by the CEQA Guidelines.

Based on the requirements of State CEQA Guidelines Section 15126. 6 and the project objectives, the following
alternatives to the project were identified:

Alternative 1: No Project Alternative

Alternative 2: Outfall Configuration Alternative

Alternative 3: Manteca WQCF Outfall Location Alternative

The City finds that a good- faith effort was made in the EIR to evaluate a reasonable range of alternatives that could

feasibly attain most of the basic objectives of the program but that would avoid or substantially lessen any of the
significant effects associated with the proposed project, even when the alternatives might impede the attainment of
the project objectives and might be more costly. As a result, the scope of alternatives analyzed in the EIR is not
unduly limited or narrow. ( See Draft EIR, Chapter 5.)

5. 1 . 1 Scope of Necessary Findings and Considerations for Project
Alternatives

As noted above, these Findings address whether the various alternatives substantially lessen or avoid any of the
significant impacts associated with the proposed project and then consider the feasibility of each alternative. Under
CEQA, as noted earlier, "[ fJeasible means capable of being accomplished in a successful manner within a reasonable
period of time, taking into account economic, environmental, legal, social, and technological factors." ( CEQA

Guidelines, Section 15364.) The concept of feasibility permits agency decisionmakers to consider the extent to which
an alternative can meet some or all of a project' s objectives. In addition, the definition of feasibility encompasses
desirability" to the extent that an agency' s determination of infeasibility represents a reasonable balancing of

competing economic, environmental, social and technological factors supported by substantial evidence. As such,
these Findings consider the extent to which the alternatives can meet the program objectives, as described in the EIR
and in Section 2. 1, above.

City of Lathrop
Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharge Project 13

114



Findings of Fact

5. 2 ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS IN EIR

5. 2. 1 Alternative 1 :  No Project Alternative

Alternative 1, the No Project Alternative, and associated impacts are discussed on page 5- 5 through 5- 8 of the Draft

EIR. State CEQA Guidelines Section 15126.6, subdivision ( e), requires every EIR to include a No Project Alternative.
The purpose of describing and analyzing a no project alternative is to allow decision- makers to compare the impacts

of approving the proposed project with the impacts of not approving the proposed project." In general, this
alternative should discuss " existing conditions ... as well as what would be reasonably expected to occur in the
foreseeable future if the project were not approved, based on current plans and consistent with available

infrastructure and community services." Consistent with this obligation, " where failure to proceed with the project will
not result in preservation of existing environmental conditions, the analysis should identify the practica result of the
projecYs non- approval and not create and analyze a set of artificial assumptions that would be required to preserve
the existing physical environment." ( Id. at subd. ( e)( 3)( 6).)

The No Project Alternative assumes no surface water discharge infrastructure would be constructed. All wastewater

would continue to be treated, stored in ponds, and used for landscape irrigation or disposed of via land application

on land currently designated for urban development in the City of Lathrop' s General Plan because acquisition of
adequate storage and land application areas outside the City limits is infeasible. Agricultural land outside the City
limits that could be used for storage and land application of recycled water would be too expensive and the

landowners have expressed an unwillingness to sell this land to the City ( RBI 2019: 14). Thus, the City' s ability to
develop consistent with its General Plan would be constrained under the No Project Alternative because existing

lands currently used for recycled water storage and disposal within the City, although designated under the General
Plan for urban development, would not be developed with urban uses and would remain in use for recycled water

storage and disposal. In addition, as some areas of the City grow, wastewater generation and the need for disposal
would increase, committing other land designated for urban development within the City to treated effluent storage

and disposal. This would preclude the ability of the City to fulfill its General Plan land use vision. Therefore, the No
Project Alternative would not meet the key project objective to provide for planned City buildout and development
based on the City' s General Plan.

Findings: The environmental benefits of this alternative over the proposed project are related to aquatic biological
resources and hydrology and water quality, but would not result in substantial impact differences. It would result in
similar impacts on terrestrial biological resources, cultural, tribal, and paleontological resources, energy, and hazards
and hazardous materials compared to the proposed project. However, impacts related to air quality, greenhouse gas
emissions and climate change, and noise and vibration would be greater under the No Project Alternative than under
the proposed project. Because this alternative would not provide for planned City buildout and development in

accordance with the Lathrop General Plan, it would not meet all of the objectives of the proposed project.

While the City recognizes that the No Project Alternative would have some environmental benefits, it would also have

numerous environmental impacts that are greater than the proposed project and it does not meet the project' s
objective to provide for planned City buildout and development based on the City' s General Plan. The project is
environmentally superior to this alternative. For the reasons provided above, this alternative is rejected.

5. 2. 2 Alternative 2:  Outfall Configuration Alternative

Alternative 2 and associated impacts are discussed on page 5- 9 through 5- 11 of the Draft EIR. Alternative 2 would

involve discharge of treated effluent to the San Joaquin River using a bottom- diffuser outfall instead of the proposed

side- bank outfall at the currently proposed outfall location for the project. Alternative 2 would allow for the discharge

of treated effluent to the San Joaquin River similar to that which would occur with the proposed project. This
alternative would allow for the disposal of treated effluent to be redirected from land disposal to surface water

City of Lathrop
14 Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharge Project

115



Findings of Fact

discharge. Operation of this alternative would also maximize the reuse of treated effluent to support irrigation of

landscaping areas in the City during the year.

Under this alternative, land currently used for land application of treated effluent that is designated for urban
development would be available for such uses consistent with the City' s General Plan. Thus, the project objectives to
provide efficient and cost- effective wastewater services for the City and maximize use of recycled water in the City

would be met. Additionally, the project objective related to providing for planned City buildout and development
based on the City' s General Plan would be met.

Findings: Alternative 2 would result in similar impacts to those of the proposed project related to terrestrial biological

resources, cultural, tribal cultural, and paleontological resources, energy, greenhouse gas emissions and climate
change, hazards and hazardous materials, hydrology and water quality, and noise and vibration. Impacts from
Alternative 2 related to air quality and aquatic biological resources would be greater, but not substantially different,

than under the proposed project.

The City acknowledges that this alternative would meet the project objectives, but this alternative would not avoid or
substantially lessen any potentially significant impacts of the proposed project and would result in some additional

impacts that would not occur with the proposed project. The project is environmentally superior to this alternative.
For the reasons provided above, this alternative is rejected.

5. 2. 3 Alternative 3: Manteca WQCF Outfall Location Alternative

Alternative 3 and associated impacts are discussed on page 5- 11 through 5- 17 of the Draft EIR. Alternative 3 would
discharge treated effluent to the San Joaquin River using the existing Manteca WQCF side- bank outfall located at

river mile 57. Alternative 3 would include the same modifications at the CTF as those for the proposed project to
dechlorinate treated effluent. This alternative would require construction of a new discharge pipeline to convey
treated effluent to the Manteca WQCF outfall and would cross State Route 120 and the Union Pacific Railroad rail line

to tie into the Manteca WQCF pipeline that conveys flows to the Manteca outfall or directly into infrastructure at the
levee where the Manteca outfall is located.

Because Alternative 3 would allow for the discharge of treated effluent to the San Joaquin River similar to that which

would occur with the proposed project, this alternative would allow for the disposal of treated effluent to be
redirected from land disposal to surface water discharge when demand for recycled water is low, and otherwise

directed to recycled water use for landscape irrigation in the City. Thus, land currently used for land application of
treated effluent that is designated for urban development would be available for such uses consistent with the City' s
General Plan. For these reasons, the project objectives to provide efficient and cost- effective wastewater services for
the City and maximize use of recycled water in the City would be met. Lathrop staff have expressed concern over
implementation of an alternative that would share an outfall with Manteca because it is unclear how potential
violations of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System ( NPDES) permit receiving water limitations would be
determined, if one were to occur. It is also uncertain as to whether the City of Manteca would agree to implement
this alternative.

Findings: Alternative 3 would result in less potential construction noise and vibration effects and similar impacts

related to air quality, terrestrial biological resources, cultural, tribal cultural, and paleontological resources, energy,
greenhouse gas emissions and climate change, and hazards and hazardous materials compared to the proposed
project. However, this alternative would result in greater impacts related to aquatic biological resources and water

quality, but not substantially different, compared to the proposed project.

The City acknowledges this alternative would meet the project objectives, but this alternative would not avoid or

substantially lessen any potentially significant impacts of the proposed project and would result in some additional
impacts that would not occur with the proposed project. Additionally, implementation of Alternative 3 would require

close coordination with the City of Manteca that may raise operational challenges, including uncertainty about how
potential violations of the NPDES permit receiving water limitations would be apportioned and resolved between the

City of Lathrop
Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharge Project 15

116



Findings of Fact

two jurisdictions. Because of this uncertainty, this alternative is considered infeasible. For the reasons provided above,
this alternative is rejected.

ENVIRONMENTALLY SUPERIOR ALTERNATIVE

CEQA requires that an environmentally superior alternative be identified among the alternatives that are analyzed in
the EIR. As summarized in Table 5- 1 and discussed in Section 5. 6 of the Draft EIR and Sections 5. 2. 1 through 5. 2. 3

above, the proposed project is the environmentally superior alternative. Additionally, the proposed project best
meets the project objectives while also avoiding potentially significant impacts of the alternatives.

6 REFERENCES

For complete lists of references used in preparing the Draft EIR and the Final EIR, see Chapter 7, References, and
Chapter 4, References in these documents, respectively.

Robertson- Bryan, Inc. 2019 ( August). Evafuation of Wastewater Treatment Regiona( ization, Reclamation, Recycfing, and
Conservation for the City of Lathrop. Elk Grove, CA. Prepared for Central Valley Regional Water Quality
Control Board, Rancho Cordova, CA, on behalf of the City of Lathrop, CA.

City of Lathrop
16

Lathrop CTF Surface Water Discharge Project

117



ATTACHMENT D

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Pragam for the

I athrop Consolidated Treatment Facility
Surface Water Discharge Project

State Clearinghouse No. 2019110339

vy- 
q . , r,

r4` r
r

a '   "' '       

r  ,   , k       ka ;+, , h'Y h.! 
r al:;    1      

I,  `,„.  ;,,.      ''.^'.:.   ..,  ,
3,.,   :.,.,' ..'. '  '  ..      .   

r.

r"„"..:., 
y,.       

r:r.-•-         ,       

r 4s m

t r"   
k^ r n.,  F       , s4    v

u   ;''!"' w

t r, ` r n r .  ; s'    r f t ' f   >'"`"
x  +

i#,
s`§ y  y,' d o-

r, , h .. "    a, 
r,

s 9, , ,.. 
sar   ' s a a " S 4 a. 1 * S r",,     L a     .      '

i

i      

i, l e.+, v    "  '. i ^   
f. f tt'  t.  t

r```a .'    ''  <,,  ' 1
p.   `"' d6 f^ r,       

tt . 4      .       , t¢ +     $ n
i'

o,. s . . i x      ; .,:, 5 ,     uf t%    t

3-

i, {   . k' 3..
F,'". Fx

9. z'     Pr/'

4, 

Prepared for

City of Lathrop

February 2021

118



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for the

Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility
Surface Water Discharge Project

State Clearinghouse No. 2019110339

x

i       ; i   ' ii€      l,

Y
F  

r '

a

0'.  .      " 1c..    

Prepared for:

City of Lathrop
390 Towne Center Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Contact:

Michael King
Public Works Director

Prepared by:

Ascent Environmental, Inc.

455 Capitol Mall, Suite 300

Sacramento, CA 95814

Contact:

Andrea L. She hard, PhD

Project Manager

February 2021

19010070 05

119



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section Page

LISTOF ABBREVIATIONS........................................................................................................................................................................... II

1 MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM................................................................................................ 1

1. 1 Purpose of Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program........................................................................................ 1

1. 2 Roles and Responsibilities.................................................................................................................................................. 1

1. 3 Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program Table.............................................................................................1

Tables

Table 1 Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility Surface Water Discharge Project Mitigation Monitoring
andReporting Program..................................................................................................................................................................2

City of Lathrop Mitigation P. onitoring and Reporting Program

Lathrop CTF S nf ce Wat2r Discharge Project i

120



LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

CEQA California Environmental Quality Act

City City of Lathrop

DTSC Department of Toxic Substances Control

MMRP mitigation monitoring and reporting program

PRC Public Resources Code

Mftigation Monitoring ancl Reporting Program City of Lathrop
ii Lathrop CTF Surfiace Water Discharge Project

121



1 MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM

In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act( CEQA) ( Public Resources Code [ PRC] Section 21000 et seq.),

the City of Lathrop ( City) prepared an environmental impact report( EIR) for the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility
Surface Water Discharge Project( State Clearinghouse No. 2019110339) that identified significant impacts and mitigation

measures that would reduce the identified impacts to less- than- significant levels, where feasible.

CEQA ( PRC Section 21081. 6) and the State CEQA Guidelines ( Sections 15091[ d] and 15097) require public agencies to

adopt a reporting or monitoring program for the changes made to the project or conditions of project approval,
adopted in order to mitigate or avoid significant effects on the environment." This mitigation monitoring and

reporting program ( MMRP) has been prepared for the proposed project because the EIR identifies significant adverse
impacts related to project implementation, and mitigation measures have been identified to reduce those impacts.
Adoption of this MMRP would occur along with approval of the proposed project.

1 . 1 PURPOSE OF MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM

This MMRP has been prepared to ensure that all required mitigation measures are implemented and completed in a
satisfactory manner before and during project construction and operation, as applicable.

The MMRP table provided below has been prepared to assist the responsible parties in implementing the mitigation
measures. The table identifies the impact; the individual mitigation measures; the specific actions required before,

during, and after construction; the implementing party; and mitigation timing. The table also includes a column to
confirm implementation of the mitigation measures after project approval. The numbering of mitigation measures
follows the numbering sequence found in the EIR. Mitigation measures that are referenced more than once in the EIR
are not duplicated multiple times in the MMRP table.

1 . 2 ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The City is responsible for overall administration of the MMRP and for verifying that the construction contractor or
other designated party has completed the necessary actions for each measure. The party responsible for
implementing each item will identify the staff members responsible for coordinating with the City on the MMRP.

1 . 3 MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM TABLE

Table 1, which identifies the mitigation measures applicable to the proposed project, includes the table columns
identified and described below:

Impact This column presents all the impacts disclosed in the EIR for which mitigation was identified.

Mitigation Measure: This column presents all the mitigation measures identified in the EIR, each of which has
been adopted and incorporated into the project.

Action( s): For every mitigation measure, one or more actions are described. The actions delineate the means by
which the mitigation measures will be implemented and, in some instances, the criteria for determining whether
a measure has been successfully implemented. Where mitigation measures are particularly detailed, the action
may refer back to the measure.

Implementing Party: This column identifies the entity responsible for undertaking the required action.

Timing: Implementation of the action must occur before or during some part of project approval, project design,
or project construction or on an ongoing basis. This column identifies the timing for implementation of each
mitigation measure.

Completion of Implementation: The City is responsible for ensuring that mitigation measures are successfully
implemented. The " Completion of Implementation" column is to be used by the City to indicate when
implementation of a mitigation measure has been completed. The City, at its discretion, may delegate

implementation responsibility or portions thereof to qualified consultants or contractors.

City of L throp Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program
La'-.hrop CTF Surface V later Discharge Project 1

122



v
v

0..      

Fp+
Y @ a

J

0 

CQ v N
V C Q

C C Y QJ

11 V V V

N N N     +      N   

V          V E V   S

N   O 41  N N
O 

O    ....  
V        Q       Q       d CC. 7 O     +    

G C C    d C           Vl

j-  O C  v O  t -
O O cB '    

F-
c  v             V

v '' v       a      °
1

Q

Q- 
o "  o a

o " a, v o '_' o oo v ._   o     o     ti

Qo
fO    '   L   C

N ,++ .       O N

N d       O  raa
o       v

v a o

0

a

v

a v
v

v

ai c 
v    - o       v .  v -

p a   i      a'  °%      ° Y  v
r6          '''           " a

HG f 6 i6 .  N 6       N io  Q
O

a'    
O

a . L..    ° 
Y " n  E

N
v E E

oE          E     E   v

Q o  =  v . a    o  = a   o — a,  

O
c a c a '

o    ?      o   o o    o

a
E a`,  p   E v    E v  
L-

J   . N C Y   Q
C  .. 6 Q C

f6
y

O v v O v v O
t
V

ai     

0 o  u  a`    Q    a a v —

O v
V        ro  O     L c oi    

v v v o '   o

v a3i o   °°  
fl- a-i     a   °'     Q ai c`o t ° '^  

R 3 v '.  +°     v   Y'     y  U Q  v o fl- Q c '
u"  

v  
c      ' —  a,   a, o Q t    `^ "      o `° c - a  Y o u o       

V   

C C Y n -      Y ' C Q V     Q6i i
6 N C V     

C) 
N c

p .   C     n N ia      C N O v E  °    O  -     a-'    , 

N  '''  
O

u
n c      y '  

a a  ' N y o  > ro o Q a 0 -
o v c ,„ Y     .' c .

ic p     ,       E o a,     .,     v u       - Q S  a,  c        o  -   o a,    o,
o •<

n      
i.      Q  

x o a a,   Q             a  c u     

o ai: Y
V1

n    "  C      c  i  ò la
v a     lJ - o

ai  ' fl-        c  >, y  ,  E
u)     E c a a Z co E c      Y  

o       
v

ra H       v

7 w w      

N   C

V

io c        fl- `°     .-            -'     ,     V O O 
v' 

v p o   - a o Q  o
0 o

v  .      o --
o t v v a

v   , 
a 

u          Z 3 a, p o  o L   a, 
fl- 

Y
o a o E °      o o     fO o

a`   Q    .,  m     - a L a o      3        v c ,^
LL     C         .      ' Q     , T  . O       4J n 

O      p
C     -

LJ
N      

O c

a.,,     O c     _  v o c      ,  a o 3       - o a, a -
a

o v o  E          a,

c a O .-. '  
v . p x m  Y 3 v

c          ' o         o `° c °' ia E
N O n- ri a i  o      -' 

O o v > o     . n  E E o
a      - °;  o

E .,

Y

o a

Q      '        a Z Q    v a  i          o

Q  

N -
o         c   

a

o    N o E       o      o 
c        °'  `°     °' E o 'J       

v .-   a F- o >,    a, E c        
N   7  - 6           v y  fl 6 +'      N T.   r6           i6 7 .     N

Ll ryj         C L l
i it

C     -  Q C N Q- N 7 v Li
W    UJ p p d F---  T O C   p         N i6 N       N 4J O a-+ LL  ~ 

Y
vi

v i f6  t6        C O' O :   p 3  _ O - p l.l
7 f0 7

a o E o       E   - a > a - o Q
o   

r  o   c      c   v v v o  
a   °

J °'    
a a, Y  o , a, a Q    , a,  `'-  a,      °

J
u ' p Y ,  a, ,   

p .  o   o   o Q    E a' 
o o ' oi   `° °"'  a'   o

Q' Y

y '   u-,

O a   v    
m '  o ro      

o v o   

v '  a  o   ' 6 0 ', y o  a    o

a        E a

m a i a` ' o .-. . 
E  . v  o  , '   .   .-.  Q Q °' fl-  a'  ' c .  `°    

c,

t 3 Q c c   c a ì v         ' o ai   c . '   ra   .,      c Q       
o 0 o

Y
o  >  x     o             o ; v    o    

N
o a, .   Y oV Q a    ,    o ,  ra a Q o s Q f- ._  ,     a      .,       ,  3   Q c o

n
O Q

f°        

c
N O cc

S = 6

v 
N O O

0        cO

N N ca
r

C O

w tv

Q
a     _

v1    a.       
v

123



m

O O -   

c     O

d     

fl-'   p

V  r
Qv

u u i       ro c

N p v                  p C

11 QJ , O ll U        N l6 Ol    C     ( 6

T

a  O ca      
a      aNi      -   

a   O a    .       0         
o

pi'   3 Q a      c        a    ', a          a  Q c Y       c E o
c .   a  L' a,  a, Y o `'      `°    c v a,   ` o a °'   `

o  `°    '  '
o  o c

c  o       c     - c     c o     " °' - a    O p
a`,   ° 1 o a

j_     o  a p   o   a a,             o c _n a   a,     c i o     v   '      

oi a  `-' '   v - o L  -   N o_  ,   v       
t6

a`,     ' - o v  '       
c  >    c n. .   a  `_' c a        a     >  >,     

Q  
a     a            o

o  
o'   

O
o   

6   
o -

a c ' v o  c    o ? c    ' o   p v -Lo °'       
v   o, °

J
U

o  °'   i   S E o tJ o v .   u     i- a, -a z   U c a E

rn

o c c

C o C i C 07 O l7
T O Ql p  O N 7    

E / 0  
J  E L    C J    O C U

Ol   
t0 . •   l   Ya d o . o   - o vi    

a, O O .., @    -
p in

T' 
j    

L  

O O
v

v  p "
V     3   V t7     V a  a v 3

OO         

C a-+  N      

tn

O
C v C

O
a,  p1 co  U/ O

O   V - p
O v            o io

D V v i           p v             O co         C 
tn C - p       YJ Y      

6 N 

v     C t6 O
C

C  N l6        
v    6 fl-—      v Ql C   .  N       N   Y

O

O ...    O      
ec v Q       ,„ ' v       v

y v
a,  , Q

a,  c   ry      ?   '    a      c

Q '   v v y t6    E v ou ra - o        - 3        
a

i   v  `° v   c ia     m '''       o  c  ai   

y    y a      `
a o

y         u °'     _ v w    .c
E - o a  ,      a i             ò N a

ra    v ' v       E c Q    E 
O >.  v Q C O

N  ` .     ra  '  ca
y   

u  >  - a

c
p        . L ca

6 Ol      N N     

v   v  °J  E      E   i t             a;  3   a  E

a a'i E " -                - o « T

a 3 a`,  v a
o o      o m Y N a', o c                E       o

v o     > 
o       . c a,    -

o a     

o-  `     
o o

o a o
aǹi    o  iv  >              a'i        a i o  -° Jo o c`°  o      -,

a  ' 
c  c    v ,  v        0 v       o   . o o ai           v ',      ., 

v   

a   Q-  E    Q- a o v°'i o  o a      c o    Q i       n.     Yt N y Y
ca .°  co Q    p  

c     ,       _ c O O        
Y

p
O    - D        c      Oi

N p - d

y -    
ro  . 0 C  T. 6 V V        p- - O .—  v           O 

N          in O . c    —  O N Q N    O O N       L  =  O       v
a '

O ca v
a  ra  "   vi   Q T     ,       ai  ' p '

L-'  

ai d     '  a       c°

c t   "    a  ' O  - a    a                -  o   ' o o   '       
m.  Q v  Q o Y'

N V o                            
Q

Q       

o      
j a, o  o   v   ' t v   ,            ai .      c   - o     Y v     Q-      

o
a,  v

o Y a v c        Q                o      v    v Q   o   ' 3          °'a c    -  aU >  o
o a`,          c om`    aa i ` o "' o Q - a Q o o a

v      . c o       
N      N       U Yo         

v a,'  a

Y  °'Ol C   N N O r6 , C
@ N _ O N  Q1  = 1   

N
G V '   

y Q N
t6   o

Q o '      - a a  L a'     a Y .
r'   '

3 aai  
o           '>   o

m      V     ; o          `^     a`       '  a          +       a "         .   
a  v E c      o    a`  >  ;    ^ m c    ,   a  3        a,'         a

m oi    o o         - a a - o o p
ni   a, .       ,         ,

n
a,        - o  `     Q a,

aì Q a     E E    0 3 c   ° J         a          

v -o     ' -          c o a    a ° J    _         .

a c .   a,      y
E o o °'          - o 0 0 0

0     °'  
3 c

a  
N 

c    ,
n Q           c   

N  '    
u o

a ì Q  ;°  o  
o   a v   i, o ami 

p   o o' - a   E Q   3 o Y a`,  >, a` -  ° 1 a,      
o     ? },

o „  o      a Q         -    o  ,} .  v o        
oi   ..      

a,
o      _    a,       

o  v   v  
o a`,  >,  . c   o E c o        ' o  `°   o      . o, '  v o

o o   @ c      "-' 
U      

ia  " V   6      a    Q a  m` a - a         
a

p v v Q .-, io V c O      N a
rn

Y
o, a ,   -     °/ 

y --   a,    "' v a Q  s a,        .      . a,
o  .   

o Q       
a, o m         - o   - a

n E v        Q o- o- o  s -     w  in a  ra
v

c

t0 4i
V

t

a o,   

O o c
O N J J

Q
m

m  `

a v o °' Q _
Y V1

Q 

N   m V G1 V—

M  
W J 2

H O to 7 N     
n? N    = N v
M OC     m V 

124



Q v

O O
o

O     ra a

J N
p Gl

ra

U  

V E ;      o

v

s
a

rn' '.      C- 
N

H
V

QO

ti

mC.:.:-,.F+C N
N d:.i
a! '
E

c';'
o';,'

i'-'

Q ,,

E  Y o a`,
n     O O i^        

L dl
V

O
N N ra  

O
al O    - p p cv p    7

O                O ' io   a     

N      
a         Q- O  ` n

0
y       N    '

O

Y       .         
Q           +     al

0
v

v  
O          °'      o «  „  v '   Q  ?'  a'  . a a      o

T       v ' o
Y'              °'      o o    _ o      

a' 

Y        
a`, o v

a a`, 

L o `>  ai ' E fl-

v v         °' ° J

o
o              ,         - o    v

N        o v v yo     = a
a, Q a,      s       E       

v o - o .
o a, Q a  

f6   a

0 3 0 0  '    E      ,"'  o   o ° J     .-

o  ,°' Q a_'',  c a, =o o      " — o  E
a`, E a  =   "    

o a     o   - o
a,     o     >,    0 3 0

o o   _ Y v  ' 3   `' o   a  a,  v a, f'a
U °' c   > + -'   i      ;..o ` '

v       " - a       v  >,   a     c c o  >  c v Y   `°  o  tJ  .`      aǹi U ` a` vca v E

N a Q p   o E Q• , a c  . n i -  E v    a` o a ` o   v p  '        `°  o
d

61
0 "   o o  - Q       °

J u          > - o     
c a     

v  a,    a, c   oi  v
v

fl-- a v  c v   a, ai a,  c  E a, ai X c     ' a,

u .;     X o oi   _    a;   a -` a

Y
E    - o        Q y "  - a   c

N' Q   a, o a, o 
p.         ...      a - p    ra ra 

ra   o v a   O     " c iv  ,_,   p   a    n t Q^    
a i   .

L-  

a    ?   m
a    `°      

o       . o - a   3          —   -  v v  o
L

o 3       a   .. v a J a, oi' o

c  ,
v,  

w Q °'   _ o - p o `^    ,°'  3   3  v    Y 3 Y o c Q ' 3 0 -  .a    d a

o °' X '°'         L o  a^     ° x' `^    

a    ' a'  y   `
V' `V"  

p   `-, v o
o 

a`i  ° 
x a   a oi'   a 

c   p  `^ °' 0 3 a o E  
L., 

v    v E   ' p  c

o a    >  Y r o  o  °'  `°   a'  c     E   ' °'  c   o> >   v -    `.   

o cB i '    >,    t io    -       s  - 3 0' 
u  °'   

O v O
a    -

p
3  "    i

n Z         
Y 

a  

Y   o
a   

y    °'  3  ° J   3 `°  a`  p c ?         o o c Q1 a         E ..   

L ,>  V  t       3       `^  o n Q v,  c o Y     o .-, .   
a    t Q a, °

J
o'  a`,    

3
Y'  cZ a ' p c a   >     v   c         p   

v    C  a    _      - O "  
p

p p
o      Q E     a,  ¢  Q  E    z   a,   Q o Q      — o ' 3 Y v a,  a       

a",  a

v Q  
o y a,   _

u LL   E  + L.  "

O
2

GCti
C

O

r, E O

0

125



C
n

p . O :   
C     O
O

a
N ,

a' E a

E °' '   
a

tJ ; E
v

Y N
N Y

V V i- N Vf       a       pl V Vl TJ
4/     co y

Ql         C N C  p N C

Y      - O     v Y      - O O       
p  

o            a,   o          c  o     
o      > 

L

o v        - a   

i °      -     a  -'       °>  >  
oi      c - o   -     - i     i v Z T

C        n
c v     

O    C   - O O  

N Q
O O Q a i v O C io           C

C     C ' C Ol }' 

N         

C }'    N
L     .

0 T

i=     o c  v o v   ' o      a o o   o' 

c T ° J o       n.

o °'      Y a,   
i.i  u   v - Q `-'  i    ia        ,     `°   a _     i  ,  i     3 v i>     >      
7     p v   >,   7 v  p ._ '

O     v to         
7 ry 7 >. 4J    c V

v  - O N "   - p 6 V     C  - O - p   C E 4J O y     -O N  ' D  6       
O

O v-    p `  C  
O a i

N    O v p v            O w-   O   3   O v r a   

V O V .`^  V v i u V C '  N ra .-.  V C  cv - O Q i N  Z V O  v V v7i O V Q '
C   '

Q Q

C  .    

O Y O            

y ,+.  p
O N   Q O N   0 Q

6       
p C U O C U p ro  .-.

N a  O . v  .-. - O N O . v rp  - O  V N v
C NC

V d  t6 vO        LJ d  t6  V   c6 cV6 C Q

T C
Q O in

c C    - p   y
O v+      n i O N     O        

C    "-  

4J     
o       

O v=i Y     O OO V      ' ca
T Qj      ,       UI

ai O            a   7 a a          -             ai O       C       

Y N      c        O ? Y Y  - - O ' v     ' O V    C y N      _> t6   to - .
jn .    pl C       Q1       n C    O j  i p OJ t6 N  C 0       41   j i N C
c     -     u      a,       0 3   °'       "      Q" o    -     o u    a,  o    

o

O      °' f6 °,'   -      r° c Y v c  `^ o      ` o
Q  c a      E a `° a   Q o E    v

i     °'  c   s t°       .`-
o    

a i  -

o " a       L a,  c   s o - o °' - o   Q

Q .    
C  X

ro          
v  - '    

v       '"   c       
v X  `

a       `° 

C C O
r°     p

v  `°      
i Q O f6

O v i O
tO ro O v N - 6 - p Y O    

V  O   Y
V

J

N J .  '_'      
a-
7  N  U  

U L
C  

N              O N       

r"a   o >.   
fl- 

o   Y 3 -    y ,°_' E ro ' a v r"a   o  -'    o
a       v 3

v :  
L Y      - 

v     "  a  - ,

v c c         Q y  `° o c v ; o ' o'  c ai
c v      v c c       

oi .  >  c
o p p o r6       p          p

Y
i  ,} - p      N o p p o io  N    O i6

V    v V  O      co fl- ra V  v v V t      Z V ._c

c 3          o         ?'     a_
a'..   

a
J.,

M 6       C T  
ra N      O ra      ] L N 3 7
v lJ   N y C

N  O O j [6   v
i

N V         " d  .      C             
f0

N       j       v i

N  +-' O      i L O      .   3     N V 
p

LL

41      
Q 7    . }' ~ 

C

F- f6     
O    O Ol

L-+    p O
tn      N O '''      O  -

6 O v v y    O

v       +-' Q1 v'i
O       > +-  N  

I-     t a   O N .`^ 
6 Q    C              . - O      . 0 C     `^         +' - p N

N N 41  v C C .-      3 + C l- 1

QJ N y
a O Y C v      ` Q      v v°Ji E ,-,  ,      O

N
a, 

fl- 1 N t y
O Q Y a y 

y p Q Q     N y       Z O
a v   v a-'     -

0 3   Z'  o
a

o
Q       .°'  -   ro       c3a v v  N     - a     ,

o   c c a w N ai a         - r 6 o  v  2 t   v v io v

N         v      Q   ' a  c ia    p v a  '   '         r°   N f°     O  
v=i

v3i             O c a    '( N dl 6   
C   .   41  

a   
O v O - O   

fl-     9   
a'  E ,'      u

c  _ a    "     = a  a  `° Y o           ` @  E o v -  
L' L yv      o a    c - a     °' ;

n Q ,     ,  o c ' 3 ..     _ - o Q °
J

a           oi c a ,,_
a .  3 . o °'      a '    '        '_ 0        

a            O Z c  
U

lo N -  .>
u 3

c ia . E 3 0   cp   
o ac V

Q-

Y i v      o ' 
o' °

J vi @ 3  °%      a' ._   

O v
o 0

o N _  ..     o L c o o a;     v    . E •   ., E       = o          c`o '

J

a, a,

m     o  o  .,  a   `
o  

o   
o   Q

o , a 
o o Y v a, o a, Q1

a - o o n i - a o  ., 
a,  a o fl-

V c    T- a     .« J   v - ,} o
o    -

o
c o p a a Q         

Y co    - 
ra

v a a     a   `^    v  u
c o >, co ai a        Y  . o

r°  o '     o

c i      fl- E ' t     E    -  ai        
o m 

o      o c ., 6  v

N -    Q v-     
a  v r rci    E v a     fn   .   - 0

3 .      _ },
a v c   

Y
o ra   *'      o   : a a, ' --  

M 
n  E v Y

a    LL   - o

n
Z

a   o ia c    Y   
6 fl- o p o ca  o .      °

J m Q- °'  L a    o
v  E  a

v
a 6 0       a

t6 - o   -          
o

v .      
cn  p 3    v a   E v

in
a'  

c  co  , , ia      c p
t  ca - o  a ra 3    p        t  >    , v  a o

v 
C

Q:      - O      ` ,_ p O O f1 ti v N p _ N N N V1 Q cv
a`
O, 

o E   o y °' c  °'     
c p  °' ro ra a`, a,      E p   m 2' E o     c "      

c a c v s -d  p Y'  3 U `° °'  o' ^ fl- N -   z    = 
d      c  c        cv7 —  T Oj — •-  O v t      —     `

Y"  

y

y - Q Ol    n     p 2 V -`^      pl N '3     o  '  v        '-  a ' ai._           - a o c 3
N   -

o   c    
v

o
o

N Y v
o n v - o o a  .   3 0 - o t .°'  a    ,-,  v   o =    ti   o   y 3  ° 3 v      Q U  y p Q       

o
p o c

N a x  ia a Q   a V in .        ai a a       a

y
a  Q v ra O    O       3 Q      c a  t Q Q  .- O    ry 3 Q  vi         Gi

a  Q3 E E      v  y v3i       
o

v

O O N m      
a

n vi ''' S
c° 

n

O N O  1  i YO
i

J  J
VI N Q V

N    m O  @ O - e - 2 ca
U

O  
U

O  O  O    O- in
i

y  
m  2 V = c O 

m  a m  `^ ai  v*'i i-

Y o c vi Z
tu 7  tC  .   

fl- N O  
d N y Qc    —  c0      Y S

C  ln  ln      V
r6

126



o .o '   
o  

a.+...  
L O

CO     J

N o o
n.  '   

V N
V.: i

Y
Y N N

a a-     
LV V

N          Y d           j
3 -    e " t       c v n c
v t',       v   ., c  v        !   v a     c a

ry a      a   ia   .        o a     }`, y
o     `-'      '_  T Y      a '      , c

L71       V C V Yv U v V C '    s O  .    aJ

C.     . a  N    "
D O 

v ^ '
O v  c

a   O X          ' 3  - C            
vv         

v '    O

T Q E °
J    .° 

o a °;  o . v o c   _^        a 

v " o a,  
c o  o       

ov  Q i     `
6 c ai c v - i v  :,  :,   `^ 

Y M

v   
L  `°         

U

I aUJi       
v' ` 

ia   + v c`  ci
7 C O C '  y 'V'  v'  },       

Q

a  3 _
o   v  - o °'  

E  '-  
o Y c c   v '  , v ' >,     `° c

o

yN   N c O N  C    V O O O O 7

N
7 m U       0 O       

o V C  ra .   ca ca O V O V V lJ Q' 6 Q  o w      v ti

Q

C  -       p r

L..  C O O l7 v'  
O N 7 Q

p  U
LL   

v i

O v   y     
Ol 41

Q
T  fl-' D O - 6 in 

N

V d   co V 3 rCa c co

V t6
Y

T            
Q1

N 6 C N    , 
a-+  1 C      

Y

y6 ' vi Q 3    , a- N N . Y  m r6 Ol'         N .    

c6 V   41 C 6     
N  

j X          1 p ` , aT+ a-' O      
L C  U

a    

v     Y , c O   
a 

E . c   .    
O  . p      " ?  v t

O O `^ 

ca

Q  C   Q
O    ?  '       _ . n     O  cVv v    v O - p 

4-1        V
O N p 6      cd 1, C

U     O .- 1 61 C yN O N V v
U O Ol 7 O

0..    C Y c    N  -        ' V   ?  v
a Q.

a a'    
co

o `—°   = ao E
2' 

Q;.    > o u  - a c     ' Q + .  .    s t°   

y o o a,  v 
i C V V Q1 t6 - O

N v  d  - O      O N L   t C           C  ' a    p    '
p 

7   ' Q t6 C      V  Q  t6      
p      

V l6   - 6     t  7 - 6
O

Y .`_^     
t6  L +-          V C NO

o
p ?

f  `  v       N - 6 y Y  Y         O O O   
C c    

Tv ..`,   
v  4J  '    ' '_     N  n y 7 i tv6   O T C

4J  >  C 

Y _
n

O a1-      O     

Y
L O >   C C ... ' O O  i  `^   =    c    C C C

V > 

7    V .       

N    
v v N

f6
O N 4l  7  ` t6 Ol O C O O

O t° 7  
vNi v7i     .-3  ra        c   s' t- a v v c      V E   v V t n 3 V c a

v

U
v V O        

7 ^ C =     p7 N vi Y C a- 1 - O Ql T       L

N      6         N .
0  '        

Y
l       N          

o        E    o -
0 3

0 0 - a v -         
o       

o
o N . 7 a, 

fl-     T
V

C Y E 3         T . O i  a-      ( O N    - O

Y `      
C

O
N O

ra    - Q  .> O     _            U C c    '   L 7
O1 c N 01     

U           •
L-' 

U    - O N il .fl Y  ra  . --%  O N  
O   N       

v i -O          QJ vi      

N 
N     6 7  .1O      N      

C     —       _
O      C i6   N Y          V N  —      

O
ta

p 6 . - O O O N       . ia N . 
n   Y rd 6

i
N ,     

r° .- T.     .`
n N

L r6   C          L ra      `-' y      +'      _      -
C           

Y O Q1   >   C

p       v       '
C . 

p  O j     - Qi L C      - O O          c pi j  >+    O `"^

ai a p r a     ' 6  3 0  Q Q 6  .--   -              '         .  c   `°   ia p
C       n  '       

N    .—  

N    >  N L C v         L N           N 7 Y     1  `  O

Ql — in r'a          N - O  z —      T, O    
L

6 N

V CJ       O        O- 
L '   `

a
p '   

3  - a     ?   

N  '' c `

v Y > t'i c           rn      
p '      o    

3
fl-      - o

N          a,       a,     o rn ,    o '   F-  fl-  
o u` v

v       ' v p       .       
r`"'o '_' °'  C C

O '    
v        o     i v  ' c  "_

o           o       V   p `°   a p oi  p a,  a t'i °
O          

o ^  U o o  
C dl `  N    C  V  

1 
n '

fl       1 t6  V        7 m      '      6

c      v - a   p a  E o  R avi ?   -
o ,   -      a "  c E . Y V 3  oi  U o 

c     " 
o  - o °

i >, 

E . c Q u-,      '`^  c a  a  o `^ Z  `°  °'      N `° '    
o a 

L:           N Ol     ^! N N '_'  
O      N c       V     - o Q

Q  Y 6  ,    - O

n

aN`,  
o       ' y   a`  - y    a  o       m a`  o . E       ., 

Y i ,  3    o  
3    

a,      o `°       c    - o °' Y o o        ^' y  o —  v oi.        ,  c

3   y `°   o   
c  a  a`> ;  Y   a>     >  v       p a ' 3       o  > ' _ `°      

a

5   o o o a m o v
a      y a      o u   a

ai v m
a c         i 3

a          3 io v —      `° c a    c             3 v

a a  ' Q ° - a    >     
a t —    ro -

6 E   v
y      iJ o

Q  c La ì - o    r-

i T      O C
N O >  

v     , , 
T   Y 3 N N N v L    . 9 v   

ai aV,  c  - 9 p  o N  — aT, °'  , ' o N' p' Q Yn    C J c '''  0 9       
l `a   o ' 

a,   o
ia Y  p  O        N  

N
V c  .—  

v O a '.   ' O     - p   a vi        
Q O ._  -

O p '+ >
J Q Q      T   Q >  - O —  C  >  >   L m   n U    6 >+ c6  - 6 C

C
d

a c   v°'i Q o   _ .  Y   u     c o     a' E c   Q' Y Q    °; c     _ c    U'
o o
S V in   c  ( o o

C 2

OO .-     
vf  `

y T'

O U Y
N J  O

C

N .       t=a O Y   O

C
lJ   p C

O

ry V N p
M   

J m r

D 
O

m 7 Ol C .      
d            

O = Z
U

127



0 o ti
c,

o  -   
o

a
a    

a,

a E

Q

v E

Y
c a

ai i v
v v 3

a>     > a`,     c      o v o o  :° o, c      `' a°Ji a,

c c u'  
L o ' ' °' 

a   3  Y        ' o '-     .
a  p             - 6     

c a' o o, 3   ,., v  ` v o ' 3 v o ° x'  

7  

c N  a`°,  6 f6 0

F-

o c `°" >, c N  c y m ' fl-       Y c -       +-' a a  
o 

n E '      c Y       o
o   n .     E a         o  c o c '          o o c       o  

o

p Q - O L  i     s c     
n , _     , io ` 6 o W     o O

a   ` - o v     o E   
a,    `     -

Q  
o`  

a c    j o
o E .            

Y
0- O - O

C        

7 >_  C C    C C LL N       C C   
y,., _

O   ' p .   
O '       

Y O   V  N O O O
N v       O O O    C  C '   U v O

0 O L

a i   c 3 ,  oi ca - o n o Q      c V o     v 3 ra     ` v     v     

Of o-   v

C  ;    
Y C     O       

7+:       O N          C coCJ •    

E L y LL      
0! d .   0 v  Ol  

V   

p„       p C  - 6 v O 
V d  .

L--     t6 C vvi . L.

U1 N

C . O N O N      C   

N `' 
Y         Y     _

p C O
O       v QJ

N      v  Y v C C             
N       N       C C D Q

s V C ro io p       - O N C  
c

C
7     

V O  

QJ           " O 7     
N N   , O

N
Y

N

O - 0    
j C        ia            p v N " ta ."' 

U

o a   E  '       o y a   '      v a''       ' °' 
no    - a  + a ia  a vi c

p .    
p -

Q `° lJ         E  ° ` a   lJ ? `° , c c    
3   o    s o

Q:   •  ' a*'' - o >       y    u s   ai '— .

o v     la Q' v ra 3  "
a1  0 3 ra 6

v   a     
U - O C " O          '

v .   "  - - O

p  
6

O
v   - 

c .  `=  O   a i O  Y O     
O t v      C '   l6 - O   U   t6 U C J U

rd   dl
a  ,       E n  

N °        
o  

o  `  ,-  '
o

C a :  7 n        

ro  = > ._ o w   .
J  ,, c ..  

c •-•  ,,.'— ,, o

C C LL
J   

p  a       O O 0 v 
N    ° O v :-,°  O X N O   v O

ro O             V      V      co        >      a - a   

a c
o ' ?    c

O    ,,       O O     p - 6 6 ra fo 

L
Ol C E       

C  

V  p _     ca y fp 6  V O p  la       rY
O  Oi a ' 6      Y - O

a-             O 7
Y T

V N - O     '  
C     C

C     +   
C N

C C O O .      N 3 7 L

NO   a  Y T- O    CO N  3 . de a  

L j
v  9 '  N - O ra 7 p       Y N

o o> >  ,            c a c =        3 r°     '  —   
a

v - a E - o v ' 3 
Q

Y ; .  v  - o  Y '   ` o '  o       m - a ra
o      —  3 ,-,    c            `-'    o ra o c v

oi c 4J " c   - a '  y (o ia a 3  '      —   .  °' 
lv     - a . o 

o ,„ c    - '>   o p      _c    e a,       a, ,   `^ ' 3 i v E a           ,
lo - 6 ,'-'n  p

3
V     V   c    

N       i n '"'° , n         
c ca   y fl- ra O   

up  c v v  v   o  w°  f6    

p       m w  ra     — c    ai 3   ro  

1
c c

a'       
a  c      

c .    c a   3

N..        '—  —   4/ L   . .. Q C 3       6 N        O 01 L    Ol      yJ  > L N

Q1 6 N    C 
cu c a  oi      ., t o     " 

Y   a
a .   v   '^ ' E  cv        +-°  3 ra

a

o  - o ' e    .  p v         -
o o   oi, w   t6 Y L'    o   

ca  - o

o - o ' N, -o c a o E  ._ ,  
a,  i  a 

o              `° c ' , a,  

a L L
ia

i:..      v - O      c .      v 7      N
7      +''  '    - fl 61 N Ol 7      O   >  '

pl
cp ..      ra N .-

J n Ol      c
6 - p O 6 N      6 '         o  >     N , ..     T C

Q1.      v C N L O    C - o    a  c ra     ` 

Y v y   vi    O   c '-    C C      `  EF    N   ' C H  vi V —     U      c0  in
O   , C y C O C U

N O N
O

a c          ro a x s a Q

a`  ,

m°'

n .°'  N '     ~  `^ `
a

c  `^ y Y  -   ' o _ o  ' ` `^  c       o     > 'm o

n E v, c     '  —   - p >  
o  Y m 3 c v c o 3    fl- "  '' 

o 
Q1 

o
o  E ai

a,  c   n. a  -  
v . N   c ' i,  o 6

fl- o  - ` o a, Q '`  c `y   a`,  c v c ° 1 a`,
c    ` o   o Q o . a     ` 6   

a v    n    `^   -  

v  °' 
o 

a, -
o fl- 

a, °'  `  ` v v 3
E  ` a

a,   c a     o     c        c o .- ,           a      ,_.    
o

o - o      o  ,    Q o p o   v    o o  Q c  o       '  v o c Q—  
Y ' .  

oi , y o    - o a i i, _   '   = Q    o ,  a, c  „ 
r° o ° i       0 3 - o

a i

a .'^ -
o  i o c v . a ' o   i    '  °

J.,   
c ' 3 vi c     p.            

a  a
o

a   p ' o •
J

c 3    `   •' •'   v a   O
Y U v n i ai "  °   a`     

Y  

v a`  c a " `°       a_

O aa '   - O C c p O to
N

C c       >   p 6 '    >  C ' O     61    _  C        .  N

0 o a`, a, o   c o   c o a
Y

a,    v  a, E   o o 3 u 3 y     `°         c a Q V 6 Y t   O " D V V    - O ra   _  -
Q N '  J V         vi O G

c

C .

G H           
V

Q>

O ti

v     a,
J

V

R     f6    
v--

Q-     U O L 2 s
N i LL

m  m r H

m   io V

i  m
J  

m  ', n o 0
Q N       

U J

128



Q

O ......0.._..:   N

3.:;-.   O
O J 

p Oi
E N

Q'  v N
V ' ,      

v
v

o N

a

a o     s o o          
a

v       " :,° : n - o  >,        . n          _      c          
a     `°  

oi a`   Q a,

v 3 0  .      °
J '

N  a      3
L   .  v .,     - o o  _            

o . @ o      o

a

N       
E ro    o ., c a  

c c c    o c 
o a          o   v         

c a  c ?     " io L c a,      3  ,     o ia ' u .  a `
o

a,   
V

p       -      a a

c  '   .;      
a y a           c  Y c       iy      Y        ' fa  i.,  Y

v

v .  o  ra c p       c  . o v   o       .  a  Q o o .,   v c E  >      o
3 0 o o, c a  o c           o a,    = o v  o - 6

a, .       a, i=

u  -   '        o, o    t   - o E v a, t -Q  -
a  c -      

Y c ' c   c ` a . a c :   . ,° '^ .,  `'  
a' c '     o  . n c - a  `°    c o  —     a`

Q, c v o .   -
o p    

a, ,,, o 0 0        v      a o a,  
Y°     o

p   N N O
0

Q ca C  O  X O  . v t O x N a     p   
O co v      

Y       
ro

o       v      s ra v ca a  ,  a . n  3  ,  3   >     a o ti
J

v n.
i a'',

E

v v
c 3 o

ai a o  =  
t°     L ia ° 1   

3 r9,a v c
C     C C

C },     
fa    .      O  L    '       C      y

6  .

p C
Ol

t L    
T o

C
co

O      
N       O

Ql C    to ca       i

E " •  _  . v oi     
o E a` p    c  - o

o
c c o >, 

ca

U            
VI N

V
y_,    

O        
6 Q

v.    p         c - 0 3 t  > -a    .°-,       " ro c ' v     a > >   .       - ra - a n
v .-  o -

o       
a v v   3 E v '   .,      E

c     a >  c ai a ia       o ;
n x 3

v     '=  
v

vO.      o  
o   v o ,  Y  o   >     '—'  

ca  " 

c o Q  a N        
c      ,

G       cv' ,  X ' Q     ,        ? a      ., `°  a  c    v       v n v Y °' - Y c YQ.    
ra `

o - 6  '  °' °
1 Y 7 `  `     y   a >  

c° Q c`o
o n  

o l°      

c  - o ro
J C    io  C O la C `     v C N c6  7    O

O   iv O m  n

C io  p C C ia

a
t6    Y N   p    O o p O

O ' O Y         U    +' a N '  O     ra   U   

v c i     c v "    v c v
a,  

io  v
a oi

o
E     o           o     E o     E

L
y     

7 V     +-'      —  
N Ol r.     in        O C

N .>  ra '_'     O >    l6          p

ro
O    N

c o  v V    p  X O Y   
c  p ca O  

O O O X    p O
n - o V        ra         ca  ia V a v     "      V O- ra      V a ' v   v V

o            c v o     _ v
@       ,,, 

r6      a      o
y a a

v.     
a'      o °

Y°      3 v     `'  "    
o `    3 Q c v

J    =      

a ' `°  0           -+     Q ai
c c 6     E oi oi     — a  

f6 ai c t c a  tJ   o o      .      >o
O            a

c     { . c      ',  
c     —      y '+'  o a y i.,  o    - o Q         a,

v a v    ca p     3     >     >       c       c    -
o ro

7               .. 0 '  C    p
v  Ol O O-   r6

T V      O  
p 

j          O  , C  _ . 

C
N        p   t6 t6 N      Ol l/ 1 d C Q   V - O C

a       n  E 3 a v c a         c o  -a   X  ? E         a     o a'
o   _ ? v v v  '°   °'      

o  ' -  o o     
o         

a,  a,  `° ' o
o  

v   .,  - a p Q 3 0, a . ,  `°      E o Q 2 ,  - a o      `^ 
a Y o a   o    o

3 0    `°    '^  - c c o  c v     a °'     Y  °'  E  o     '^     

o  ov N c o a`,     o 0 0, a o
v   , a,     v       o

u ` o      ' o—, ` o  —  ', '.,  -
a     >      o o    c E

v  o  ' 3 a
o  o Q o ' 

o       v
x o 3 a>  > - o o,    i          a ra    a`,   o >,     E     ,       a, Q 

t    °' a,  a c , a,  c `° X        
o 7  Q    n. _   o   v c c X     ,-

a g ' 3  '  o     v
a,  o      ,,   = a,    3 0     o   O     _ o   

o
ai  r°  >     

c   . O v   °  i>      >,    6    0      >. p a H    v   c a c v

0:           '   t .,     a          
ca ca     v

Q
oi.      c ., ' o  o la

o      3 i,o  `°      `° +, '   a,  a`, 
t° '   a n_ ' Q ;  `^ a  '^  a a +°  °'

p    3     
a` —  

a ra c -
a o - o , c ` 6

a y v c  s  v Q  
a a  E o   c -  a ia

G    O C N   C      ai     @ a  
rp

O    • - O .
O       c 

v v   o p   
L    Q ca

a'. o -
o  °_'  -

n    Q- 

v .   V ..,     ` o     -    $  c E  ,  3  v @ Q o  .    
o, o

c T   o v Q     
T  o .   o     o

p      3    Q
m o o   `^   `° ' ~ . a, a . v p '> a,  `°   o   c a, v a,  o         c E N    , o

v °' '       
o o `    ., c  ,  

a, a  ;,   °' o Y   '
p

o, R   ' 
a '   

v - o ' a
a     -        c   o

Y    , Y
y  —    c     E a  ., o  o   o

o a,  ?  p v  o ( o     w o      .  
c        

a,   
p     0 ' a  

i     
o     a     =s

x o x 2` ai 3   .,  u E ,  . E _ a c       
7 io c   oi

v   a a   a> > ? „    v  u t'i a     -  . c   o a      _ c  ia     c cn

o 
6 a,  p ,  .,  ca .,  ,     v

a,   ,    v Y o      o   Y o   

N    ' 
o 0

v,     c v p a      a : n     ca            -
o >    "'  

c  n '^   p
C

ai     a.
o `° `° o  °'   Y o ' `°  o ` 9° >. o a", = ,   o , °' o 0 3  `` o  °'  '   o'-

a  `°   Q  ,°      

v  E m c 3      v co a c o      Q - o  -       p E    o     c

7 O    '
C O   c ca ui     +•

Q   3 O ca t V N   >     O
2

ti

J O
R.....:   y

d....   c
o

0

129



0 0 o,

O     
O

a
N d
Q`    

N

Q

V '    Q

U C '
O

6
p N

c      ` p lo O          a n       O O
ca      ,., t cc

cv O

N
vi v   T V

v     a, o Q a, o a       .      ? ` 6 c ' a.i a- r à
o aT, `°      

o o ' co E Y `='      
6,

c t'., E    
ai   

a - a c a' ` v v   o o  °'    v a'  c E  o y Y  ' ',    •-.        o
J fl-.,        c a' o o - o     

o-'   `°  `° 
a`,    

c°       L        

v y t6      'ca +     
C x .  U a) V C  n  c  7         Ol 7

V

v 7  p ta .    c N
p

o y '., Y' o o a", '  a,  
o' ` a     °,' 

X    o x o  ' o     "       E       

V  "  v  
O    O- p   ia '. c a' ' ro   y °'    ` p  °'  

o c c Q , Y j  pi   ' f-

C         ca o   _ C Q j O   
C .

y       .
Y-    

p +'    -
9 Ov OV p  C  '

O p N
O

o .   
c         a — E i.,  , o a''   cv v io   E   v

a =  
a .>' >  

E  >   p " c

a  N   p . 1

Y         Y
x U     .   L rp

C N O       L    
Y

co v a   
p O G

a   i.i '6 , ia H       a  ra E  fv E u_ a      o .    F-  3    - o ra   V     

C O     _

c 
o   .

o

J     f6

d d 0 . 0  
n-

Y   
a o 

o     `°   a,          E v a`,

3  t v L  _       o        o  o
ai ra  rd       ' o 3 +   
c6 u

v c     a           -            a`
v a,      o        

o     o a,   a      a .      o     o

ai c       o `°  c '-  c
f°     

3 Q     > a''    a `

6

c
o       

o *'    o a  o        !°     oi
3 =  

a,

N.._    
61 

D    
Q -'   . j

L  _        v C     N E
6             -

i -   
y      

ro  
a

C.:..   -
6 +-' 

v     .`-  ` 
p7 `  O  . u    Q     .

n O O p fl-

l...    

C C 7       " C N v 7 C   C   Q.     t V U 7 

ra O c '   L v p C co ra 7 V ia p
Q,    v  

a,       o    Y  v o v '          ,    X ,  3 
ro ., - a

s c a -    ro     "        a -     v

ai  °

J   
ca °'  .  . 

fa

y  — o      ca O '
O t

a  ' o

y .-.  a v v      ...,       
a''     Q

O  O       '^     ra Q   i -O           y C a

o '.,     ., E   `  o      
a, .  E v    E   o

o c    - '  >, a`,     " v "    - a'    c  "' 
x   x o  ' v     o O v    y      a
N co N V  - O - O ra     t        V    - O V O

NL     
v-     N

N fl-

m E
o

o    
N     

0 N
w N

N E
a       a,

c     
3

0 0

0
rn v v

YC.'    
L

M  

M y N
v N 

6 Q1

f0 fC 

Na i,
Q

p N T O

O

V
C  

H
u

O  

N ti

OJ
N N

d .      f0 ( O C
d      U

Q =      Q 

t0          O 

G1v
rci R O -+   c U

Q

tC 7  V1 Q O
d N     

o  m
V J

130



O ' O.    va
o

o @ a
v

v     o  n.`E '
v

U , ,  
U `^

y  - o     },    

Y

c a,

Y a

w

E       
o  ' a`

T
ai       a     c a a    y oi v     _ ' o v

a`,   
a a,       o c      - o

U Q E a` `°        c a   ,„  a —  `°       Y o a   a 
a' p a` 

t6
a,

Q Q            Q 3 o a 
o c Q

a a     o           a .  ,   

c--. . Y   io
O a  "  o  .       r° O   `

6 '
O O O    c

C

p   o  `°   
o - a

v
E     ,     a  3    `° .-, :   > `°  t6 ` a   m  `°     

i6  `° `°    `° - 6   Q co N

O      N p   T v     ia V C          O Q v    
Y

7 Q O       O NF-     -
0 3 fl- 

a `°           ro  
o  ;

n
a'  o

a i           
a"i   v   c    a"i  '   i-

ai v  v`  o     a -
a  

c a   c + E E   °' o - a y'       a,' o `   o  p Q
U C1 ro a ia     -          a ay,      p a iv p

a  ca    + 
o

v o a'    ° 1    -
o  

a   a ' c v "  - o -a 3  p     v Q 3  c   o c@ c
C N V Q1

t +.  .    O    o 3 3     Q.  t v - o = o ai   C.     - a v    Q    
cJ

v m Q

G v C

c        t

o    
o t

m. Y v    J     c 
N d     U  ,  O 

n o 
3 o >   v a o o    3

c

a

3
O oi- o ro

c cv     _  
c  a o o

T , 
D C

N .  - -
d p .

O  
S'     N C

c N tv
ta aJ    7 U C C ca p O cv O O

7  O i  
N _ O   

c

Y

6
i N ra O

Q ' V   
O a1 Q     - O iv

N c0           c6 Ol Q      
n- c

o > i a   - o a'    E °'   a oi       v a`    a    a      v co Y —  °   O a  O fl-.      v N -
O C io ' n   Q-   

O c v
Y    +  

v
o

oi      Q 3   E        a, c
o 3 a - a

fl-
a  >

O o c o .   3
3

a Q      
o o     - a Y

t°  
v a  a

6 t6   oi. 0
V N

N

o a,  
o o `° v o '  aV,    ` o_  i c a o    v o ac,  o  *'  °' 

a
a             o Y   '      o v '      ` c o ò_  L c    o v a     , , o      Y

a
w      '

a    O   o Q  i  aYVi        O t Q   fl-  Q fl- O p Y cVQ v ra  o i io - o v i

N

Y  i      c ' D  '     c .   p
U' `-'  E w ll N  3 j O E

w U      .    E O _  
v i

E o _         E c E  

c Q
a  -

a °
J     c Q  :  '`    ' c a a`  v  'c a a`       c '   ' c  

O tn   c C   a a  
O   41   v p O >  >  N O  >  >  p O 0

C p 

V    U1 ` a O V  cL t    Q v V  2 c V - O cC v V N o V

O m iv v m
Q      _ —     n

O C
V Y V N        l..)     N 3 —     O    . .

p         '      c       O O N
3           a v  Y . c    c V          o      > a     v

o  `
a

a Y E a' i  
ia o

ai   c  :,  '
o , c     ia      +   

o   o 3        o o   o '      - o           c  ?  a o       v
a   a  °'      

E > 
io a o  w o o-- 

Y              
a a          

v      E

v a i   - o i :°       > s .-,  V Q  v   O
in     },  >` a       ra       io t 

c  .., o  .,          o   
Q  ' 

a o   c _
o E   3  °     o  

c
3 cN c

v      u  o          - o a Q     Q`
n 0        

a         c     a      - fo

v x         v   a '  - g fl- o ° o  o _     v, °' fl-  1 p
L ;      v

t°      .
o o     °' - a . n. c o  v o  o ' 3 a   

c o      

o v o Y a`,   `^      o ai o  ' Q' o c o  y     "     a      

d Q  E  a  o  
o  - a 3

y '   .,  

a i      
o -    U o o   ai co

a

in a ?  .  3 Q
a ".' °° 3  `a o a c  " c  a     v   L c

oi '     
o' °'

C..     
t     co C - O .   V

O _   + ro O c  '       N `  C F-      
ry p - O        

IV      
y

0:   ,_,  ia
v, m O    

p vai
t6   

o N O  fl-  L w  .. 0
Q Z c O      .     p

7 QJ C —     Q1 C   C p        Y LL    - O  a-     

V
N a        C

f6 (
p      •

C    — 
t6 

c o 
3

a o ' la t V c
O -

o  .  a o o v
pi Q y 3 , a o   oi      

L
G tn

n i      a 

UJ 
1 c , Q

o 3  >,.  O ca  
m ' a ra

LL ~        

ia "          a i         1    y  L
o  .-. ,,  v -o o

v
a, o c a, 

v        

o -   
o  >  >_       _

o   `°       m c
o a Y            , - 0 2  Q O'  .   c

a, _ o  `^    ' v
c 3 a c

ca

y   y    Q    v   v          v  ' v             v            Y '
o    a,  v

o
v  o   , '° o

o  ' o o    ^      
f°   

a,         Y v  . Q

3   j C .  v i  — 

u fO
a v io o °'    

U      ` o- =  
3

c a v   .   Q '      m     
io rVo   O   ro ii p ' 3 p 41 U1 t0     O

T E    o    T c io v  ° 1      ` o'     >, n
c c a o         _ = 

c a      
V

N      . C
V          Ql C a  

Y C - 6       7 C '   '   (/ 1 Gl

V Q       
a,  

V '     
co     o Q e   '

Y

i.J , o    a      3 ai  o Cp .°   v; v o

a   vi - °
J  `  

v   a p - 6 v ia a    _    v v p    - O   Q      '
p `

m Y a ì       a

F--  .' O     H    y        y
ra p a   N O a  Q

O1 ' U  in C ì3 .   o U z     ,  3 Q E- n a o ,  Q  o v       ,_,   a, o
o o   0

Q

o cti

y

o

V

J

R m O +..     O
v       

O

r      
M U

M @

N       7

Q  Q
K O

131



o O
o     o

a.' E a'

E  '   

v E Q

E         E c o ` o_      o`_      o

v     =   a  ^
o   c m

v a -o :-°     v ' p a a Q    °'    a a   ,          v  - o p a .,    - o           o

c ' "   o,      i v 3  y o  o      o E    v '      ,  >, o - a     °' Q c     
c

o a, o   c a,    n..  

Q v  .       .          c   v  a,           v     o
a      C                 

O N  C '"'     
a1 )          

io  
O        O     O   

6   
C

j     c    o o' 
a, - o     

f6 '

3  „ -
a c .

0 3    ' a Q o c -
a      >  

a      c v    °
J

o

v
a, o ' v v o, a  a, ra ' ai      - o E     >, v c   

E o a    o -o
v   ,   c    

E   o    v    o  v ' ra °;  a`  `-   ' a  _  v  =   . Y   
v            o    

a      c + o a, vVi    '   a,   c  - a c  , E   c   
c- :°  "     

o     a o

Q  ` o_ v   ` o_ c     o  
fl--

o               c          c v o    
o Q  a,   

E a '   o t       °
J '   o t a,  o

o        
o a v a o 0

0
0 0

0
0    v   o   '      Q u ii Q v Q ra in Q   Q F- V v c  V V ro 3 t v 

C       _

d .  U v
Q

ai
la c

Y
c y         O            O i       p'  Y C

Y O cYa O +-' v      v '     Z,      p - 
o a Y

a - a o E    -    o p

o '  

T
v  Q

o      `° 
a  ai E

oi c a, 
a, s o —       .'    a o        p

ia   o  X a
u a c v     O a

v   a Q 

o '  - a,  c    o o       b  a, ca - c `
n

o      °' `^   o, °' ,_   o
Q Q a  >     o io  - ca

ro      ca   -      - c    ' o       -

C:    c      O a  n L ' V ' V V ia fl-     
vi a - 6 = 

ia
c N Q           Y io y0 

O ..    O  "  Q N N          `  "=  dl ?)      N  C ' 3  O  >      O  L N   C     
N  _   " D     v '     O         L r6 4! -   > y O O

Q._.     `  r'a
Y  d U a 

o c C          ia - o    
ia          .      ai  -    

c     > o   - oa, o  >  o  6 .   
E o `   S

O iv  - O  . c v aQi Q "'  ia  O c    3  c ca v      .     
3 O

N    O

fl- 
a-  

r6 O     - t          O  .-.    - O     c E                   . V                o          .

o V c a v E  °' ., i E   o     o   c a  E '   r°        a 

C  -  C Y
N N   C    -   in  `- in T     L   Q  =   Q    +- Q.

o c ' a c  >  v a  - o   - o  c     °
J E       E  o  ` o o E

i  °1   , Y     v      v  > t v E , 
o   '  o o o    o

o v

a a v
c a,      a, o

ra Y' c    '     c i    -            y  t Q c o a ro c  n       
o ra ai - o 3 

V . Y                  Q. N    c . o    o 
v a o E o      `

6
o a a` " a  >.  U Y    x

o'
L -a           c g   o E       Y      `

6 
a .-' s >   E  `

6
0      t6 0 °'

J  

ca            in Q  °' 
L+       ,  

a a o  - o ._

c          " a,  a,  o c            v u o o  v  L io e    p a o
t       -o o   "  ca   -  c    

N  - p      V T    d  _ 3        a1 s   " O C O a o C  O
f6 Q + .          O . V      '           - O C . 0  > . 

f6 C  Q C    '^ Ol 

7          
N       .-,   

u  O       y r a  p O -  0 .     O   c - O a
o   "      C

C u =   o v —p E o io v , o       a ° J p
o a` v a, a, ' c o c c v

a, Q    o   a, a,
a

c o       E        o o a      °' o o       , t  >
o  o -  3 3 a`  ., Y  v o ''          oi yv p      

v       _     c

v t '         

c  > c a Y      ' o  
u

c          c 3 0 '`_^ r6 a  
N ` 6 co v e a O Q

u ia  
O '        O

o   ' 
2   cà  >  c

O UJ .- O   N ca     N vi O       ra    y Q    _     Q     O N 

V "`-     
Q N t     '      

p
O     T   O        Q m N  a-'

UJ  > 7   n  >    

3   Q O     ....     j N Q ia   ia      O    p
a

a v   " a ì   o , a oi       E    > `'   E    °'  o     `,° a

Q V i.  C   O  .-  , C - O      p G N    '     N '- Li a1 Ol

C       V 7 O   .   

V'     
N f6 Q +  T  - 6

Q    p 3 ia > O Q 7      =    Ol L31 V O N

d   T a  Y v
O - O

r p
a — t O C O       

U    —  
N

Q    

v c v - o j v Q `     ' , o    -  3
a  c  ,  

a       ._.       

j    C    O a  " L3
O   

l..J iv      
O

O .  O Q. +-' " a  V   >   O

6 v     `° >  `° p 3 v Q v   a  a`   a  ` a  
ai c -o  °' `^ = o o E       n-

N 6 6 O N   N O Ol ro
L       L N O 7

I

Lt         a-.     C V C 4J O O --  O
N V  -'   -' O- d ro ' .-+ C H ra .-  H i .- .-+ in .- l6 ra O V Il V vi N .-   Gl

m

v

4)

ti

V

QC Q 

C

i V

O 

a

V 

132



0 0 ''   r o
O     J 

N : N ,.  c5

U vVi
l.1 E o

c u v a v i 
Y

ai - o o a    - Y 3
L v

N O y c
O

ra u     
O v a     T

U c     6 to

r  fo O   
a c

0
L

co c c ui 0 p        p      a  O v      „ t o ra

rn 3 v o a, , a  °
1 g E v a,     •  o c         ai o a,    i a             "-

o fl-=' fl' 
o    a,  o      ' a

o v        a      o      ° v v,
i_ ,    C v - O

N
UJ   N . 0 O C *' N - O UJ io T

N
Q w

O C    U
LL

1 .,.    f6  Q1     C   ( 6
O C  N N Q        QJ  lQ '" _' 6

O       N       F—

Q d           C ll  v   N   - O N - O       V V V      —      lJ

v y  o '    v Q v Q    . 
a  c u       

Q

o             
a Q o      

x E  :' . v    °' a`  aEi 

a
x  - a o 0

o o -
a ao,, 

o Q o 0 0 °'  o   o    o o $      o o °'  .°' o      
in   a, > .      V o  .   V 3 u   v ,  ra - O a,    V o  .   

J

O    

dC     L Y   
L

Y       
a

iv O   O 4J •     ia

E m
J    J    °  

a'  Q
a a o .   a .   Y o
fl-      Q y 

n.    Q
a,      v

lJ a   V      ra

o ca     a
No 3  a  

E      - o
T `°     a` io

o v o a  °'  
p'   

c     °'      i  
O v       

p
v             -   

y v             O      y       v

v,.   p C      - Qi 3 N    - p p ' C LT

7 C Q1      aJ   . V L O

0
c

v ro v  `  , o      o-       E v  `° a'  ` o a,
o }'     ' ia      +-.  

L a   , 
lv C 7 7 V  d

Q Y    v Q' s    ?  " E a 3         y —,   v  ` o 
c v  v    •-•   v  - a

v ia .  c v  .,  ca

O
Y   

C   - O     >,       L   O L  N           
a1 O       - O 4J 

i v   ai  

E     E a    E v c  ai
a' t

fl-«- 
c  =  ' io fl- E n "      , 

v E v   v  ., r o   U  ai         V E  v

o   

v

p      a, o o
a,

ov,           „ 
v  >        

v o       c                   o

p     o O T v V

d O           Q .
0 N             01 E   C

Q      N      i0     vf 7 O '   >. 7
O 7 Y

o . E         
v        Q o a i ` o   ` oi

v   - a a a • - o   E 3 c  ra

UJ Q..'''  - O T 7 Q1 V  N  O

V      

V           '      

Y N V t6 C >   '

d'      Ol N yj   
O  N v  

C       O
N  t6 . Y

N Q QJ V C .
v . 3   - 6 O ' N      ra     j

T      >  > .-+       c O
s        v    i

i.     O     p N    v N v     O ca T ca fa

C •       
u O        vi v  rd   

i 3  `^      },     C  
O

O :.   p O a  
v       

ai C  `^ —  
a "'        

a Q     o

N
o 3      ra —  o-   

ro Q i
o o Q  . 3  s a o     o         o a, o'  
V V      +

N     . .+ 
o p  N ' v     a

fl- 
a N YO O

7   
O

V V

v N
V- E v "   v          n v y  Y  

m ai       ia a ' O ta  Y Q       n O      
r6 N         1 Vi - 1

p1      Ol.
V  - N a- L .0    rd      s

d  Y — 

7 N O          n ia 7 N
fl- E o- a o . n E a`  a3i

L  •,  

a - o c"a  ' V Q   ,
E - o          c o >  - a   v y a       ai o u  ,    

a  "  °' `°      °' a E c iv o    -
o  a    

c         '-' °' > v   Y c - n a a       c ,„   p - a o   
O O

T N N L
Q O v    

l6 v i         
Q

in  Q
O

v O       ia ia U " '  +- o E          a         co N T u oi
a`      a 3   

a a o O a Y        
aOi  a o     

O   E      Y     o
N

c     n y u 
C

L          N ZJ̀

v -p , C '   7 N v c,6

Q   
tC O L

v m v ,    o,

O        '      v i     

i ,   7  
7

d GJ N
co -   O ca O '^       C cp ca a    

o

Q..   V   N V V  V   
U N 0 C i.    C 0 CV Q  . v O

j tJ r yj ' j
O yj "+'  O O

Q'        ` 
n

7
f0̀ C Y     7

a    
Q t C d

V
y    Q aL-- t Jj _

f i    ii V     tv) U d   tn . Q

133



m

ti 
O : q.'   
c     o

o

a E
E a'    

n Q
V     

Y

n i   
QJ T N          - p

i
N C

d     6 N     L N     1        m

N O V C      - p           C     - O co     

Q a- N
a-`+      N  v Q1        v

C                        
C

Q          Y  UJ ,, U l6
V N  Q      

rn'    o p  ' o,.  c o .        a        -  o o,'       o
N o E '       Y          Y Q a,        a,  o      o v ,      o E       

a`,  o o a;  c a,  a`,          a,          n a, -  c     p
a'  v v     

o

Y   o   E ia E _ a   E ia  o 0

0  v v E '    y     
t       -     , Q v    -     a        i  v   -  =          c r-

a  o   c o ai     c o o a v a `° a i  "      
c  ,

v `` °'    
o

o p     >        o Y
o ;,, i, 

U   C
L1 C V Q.    C   u Q Q  Q C v   V C   N N     i4

c d N

41  d O Q  O       Q Q O     . v p O '   L
fl-      ._ t' li

3 H     E la V  ra z  ,  ii  to  o ra V o   .   LL         

O         
F+  .  

Y             
r6

O N      ro C     n

N
J     

J >  Y  VQ vN d .  j
v U = - 6 O .    O j '   

a v  p = Y   
t Q     o 

z ¢   ° J +- O V 2     m z Q f`-   
o

Q
N Y C

6 Q C
O C O ' O C           O O
c O O        a

v
N

Vf   —   V
O C O      

V
O Q N  Q        Yp 6 C Q 

O —  .   Z      T Q1 Q a`  0 ' a--       
f1 aj C . w , O Z +

L N
C N .  vi 1  Q C ca }       O p  >' O    p N O y   `^ - O 

a` ia .     a,   E ia p o   v ro   
T Y

o      
Q          Y       o  .     a, o

c   3 0 ,     ca v,  
a a,     

p o Q
a,      a,     c       v

o io        3 0 

y
7 O      O                

dl L   
V      N C la 0 N     n p Q  O

c o E a      c a  a` E  `,°     s  >     E
ro >  E     "   d       °,'  - a c a

p      . .
l v  o  y >     -        '    Q        oi v

a,   E a,     a,  v o ,

t'-,..    a i
c :>_   -'    o o - co

t°     
a v   

v

v
a`,   , y    o c   Y 0 ' w : " 

Q v o  o ' .^  ,  
o       Y    .>_     

o  « a     o    o v      io .' Q
a Y '>     

Z    - a -
a       n" 

c
c "  ' - o c       

C C  '

Ol v  N  io          C Z
ca '

D 
O  .'-^      Y .'^ p      p O  Ol vi

O O vi
6 0 - a  a    a  o      o ra c   ,                  ' -   a` i       -o

Q     L —ai 
a c

a i   

a' °'    
E `° a, 

c       _  °'       Q u'   E      "  "     a o 

E + o  
Y  >  °'  

E n_  o m  o c    ,-, ` o  , 
o .. 

E Y co 
c ' c  L p     _ o    °'    -   '   ai   `"° 

Q
v    v c c   ,  c ' c - o  o

0 0 '   c      o     a p a,        a; Q   o

o    E  a oi 3 .   . L    - a E c V   co V E         a i   E c a co oi

v      — !
o

o Y
aiw

v
ai c

y
v   

o      ia y p .`
n

@      V v

v°'i   E v     t 
v   . c -

6 a j Y Z'
o      a`,  

o  a  °' _ •' .  
v  c o

0 o a
N  v > >  a   ( a  v -a a 

r°     Q Q    - a O 

O 7    c6 O  
N

N

Y N }' ^ C  t6
C

7
C v p 7

c  O O   ' O    [ o    `— 
a i '   N     

iv c a
O

N Q p O  O  -  ' 6    o m

Y
o    , - O v

v .^  v aj p C O .- c0 n ia  N 

Y Ol
N

QJ "  vi

V — v } t+=   
Q 6

0 `^      
u C

y        v T a a      N   ro J     ° i a c

d...     a i a O.. `
p   N  '^   +

L-      

v i            D +-
ro O     V `^ n ta

p.     u  Q
U  .- 

V c  
O ' ? Q  p   L O C V

O v      
O . O  

N N01 C QJ Ol
C i6

o    v  v
o '      

p     p     c v ai    . Q- o
a a i    o > ai  

o      '+   E  -  o a,   
a       '   a,  o E    o v        o 

rn      a „   a     °
J  '     

v  -     ' ,

E O ' o   -         ?  c   °'  `
a -  a  c

U       
p c

c         .^   a       Q a  o :  o          n; • a

O w N p ' Z -
0 UJ  O 41     

T J T        
u' f N 

c6  N - O QJ Q t6     7 Q_            C         M 0 C
t6 C N i   V C Q Q io    ta O O

Q      N

N V   "  > L   O  N UJ   H    
c   N t6

io V  - o U   `~     
a i       v C   o L., '

1

3   a c o  o Q u d, c  Y      3   o a

a    >, 

oi- o a, o o o c ' =- ' '    g `o     a
u       `-     O Q    O

w

Z'  a i

ai .,_  
lo ro

Q.  v . o t'i  Q o     o d a i
ai

fl -
o >    i> > 

z p     O
a, j io Y V - O o -,    o N     Q,

l7.  OV ' i  

Q  Q C '    Y  
p C QJ t6  J

0
O-   Ul

to '      Y  Q ra Y aJ N       >  O . C to vl co

O L 6     t6 d'    -O 9 O N V H : L1 V
V

O

Ol; fl

co     ti

o V .    
y O v

i     

E riQ
@

n m c a     
M "' 

Ol     2 , J

Y
N (

L
J  

Q  
Y

Y Y
v=i . S V V J

134



v

O ..O ...   
cv

O
Q.....   J 

d p 

Y 

C   

v 

V C.       Q

L
Y

C N

N 4!           +-       L           N        
L lJ l')  C

ll C           
7 U C     - O N       

ll S =     O

a °' p +      a °' v aa'i °'    a   o a fl- a  a Q Q  '+     

6   ro

a  v      o V        - c   Z Z    o

c p Y         
O p  _ N - p v-T'-

GC rp        V U        Q N     v  p tv6   `

n N

N Y  "  c6 vl
G..         c aJ a1     t aJ Y     C in aJ     t       

N C
U , 

O aJ
a' 

a   E io E - o    E ia ,     o    v E     E  '  61 ia
U     Q         Q1     v lJ v    L      U     Q      Q V

0   
C

Q
N   U   

O O N N
7  ( d    U C    7 C Ov v         2_

p
fl-   fl-';

a
c     fl- fl- •

L--. 
Q Y C v a 

Ov c },  
O

O

ca
t° 

v   Q

E   v S  z       o v o  .      3    3      E  v
J

m o N . c
c

a'''i
o v g o E

c i, 
CL

c ai  ,     

C N .      

J  

Y    T QJ  
C  

N d .      Q . V          C Z V N E f6 OO 41 '—

N  '-' O O y E a O   
v a. o    3 v v a =   o

T

v 41 v O    _ O Y V
i 

O ia in     Y  ro O Q O ra v i 7 3 N
t      >   f6 . v'   w 41   O Q N o C ' O ..'.    y _ iv E

C  ' .'
n     

O O ? y     
O

Y O l6 Q O 7            L ''' a-- I O O    
C   v v 

ro n . O ai      p     Z a : a .   ca - a O co          co           Z   - o     >   t6 >

a :       °' 
c° Ja ia io .` m c F-  - o v -a  °' a'   ' v c E ai   

ai ro  '   -   ia

po,  E u       - n Y    ' e `^  c .  
ca ,

L fl" 
a   E      '- ,, v .,   '   o   Z

o o Q      ro " E    
7    

E a  v   a  c     
p  °-' 

iv
r"o o c o,;   ,"„  E 

Q                
ra  '

a v  } a`    a        o    v    o y        ra E .    a' o
o Y v c v   a o

o o  o E ai co .;       °'     
o a, ',  p '    p   T  a  0      Q    , a, ca - a

y      ' 
a   a o ia     _ v — - a     n v v a    .`_^     _  E     -       _  " ` a   ro

v

a  c v              .   a
v -

a oi v ' i    v v E     `' o v   c

c   >  °
J °  '   ` a  p- v  °' >   a'  io    °'        c"v

L c     
o a  ' > ia Q  E

Y >  
a E Q v   v  p '      v  .,   - a v , c   -     •      >, o • E  .,  

Y '>  
o   Q a

ia   Y ,'  
o Q °'  c  c a ai "  o o a     aài c c   v c ' c a   ,,, a N a    Y y'

o v c v o a,     v Q   o 0 o
Y > >    y

o p o c o '   _  o
Y     > 

a,

3 .   .   `- - o E ro Q  Z  Q v ra n.     v E         a   E ` v     - o a  ca   

U

c
o    = 

o v a,

o a`> >,       Q a io
o N o .      z a

3 a Y
o'- o

y  `°  
V Q             a L

a,    v    = '   o c a,
v Y .' a  

Q v U _    ° J a c Q-
Z

Q      o
n    ' v_i fv

N      C O

o  t 3     ° 
v      o o -

o   - o - o  3 c
Nv

o  
o v  o   c v c o

j  o n  >,
o  c — cG    °'  `° Q a`,  a,  v i

H c  a,  v    o   . a 3  `°   3   o
c   E ai.     o

v  a  a o - o '   o c
p c ` 6     f6 i a , 2

a -" y  °'   c v 
a E   E - o a c

ro          c oo .     Q .       - o

0..       a .  a i  o - o Z c o c   O a  ia

a o  '  a  v   .  E    . y  o
rn.:      a   

v a  — 
o @ ai  

U ca

c
a` ia

V C

Q a v   L O - O O Z L O  >;
m       

3 a . - a E      g   ' v N - a a CO    . c = p  `^ U Q p ia    - O       - 6 Qv   `°  o
a       °' ^ i eo

c `'      
a      oTn 3     ,        Ql      N C Q1 N

f0   
C —  

E QJ  l6  I    N E   L +
L--'     Q

N      td '   C 6 Z a O N       Q . C N   
O   

li L      v o   p
O - O   .      

L'i

lJ    C  al N  
N Ql  N     O

d         
C       

C  t6   i      

J - p NO 7
Y S Q fL3

Y —    

7 C
Q O1

c a      
lo   a t i —  7 cYo O         

V 2 ° °; c C E '   t 'o
On

cm

2

c

m N O

Q

E ' O

J,   
m + o
G • c
cc ` O
a 

135



o. o,   
a ' '   o
v 

n. E '   
y

v     
o`

a

V fp 6
U1 V

Q nj     V vt  ' j p  - 6 Q a''     
C O N l0 Q1 ' 0  QJ v

N
Q1     >   C

CT y C   ry           co        - fl C
ry

41     O

C .    
O Y

p  O O  " ia  > C cv iv > , - p C   r

a 3 O a  a   v       O Y      c  v
O       cVo  [  -      Q 6 c 4J 

p     [     x - O  O

v E  ,.,  a"i   o > a°'i    E    _ 
a i . v E a a   - o s

V   L1  N t        U C V -  C
p V         L  -  N [ 6  U 41 r

L O p ,
C V    i6 

C p  7 C +-'  C
C   

N '_  V C r6   N O
QJ       C U       O L - O      E

T   

O  61 6, C N    4

V v i  Q Q i.. .-  v O 3 V   v   N  v i   i-   v i   O   

01     fl-    c
C O

L

y  ' 
O

w

O a    V
J       

a i; a
F- - o

a
o '_  `°   -

c   °'
V a   3 c

T=  
vi L

c      
C '     n

O O
N      

Yt o   3 - a

o  o
3

3 Q-
o .`=' c p s 

a  a      a     ia      v
a co Q i o     c c r a         `

a
rTa       +-'     c a

0  V

Y  —      Q V N O  a N  y     . O p C        O' 6

L N N C ' 6      v i  i6     Y -                        O

V:    
Q O - O v O

N
O OJ N

3 N O io T C  '   >  _ 
V N V O io     -     N X    ` p        - 

o-    °' , t`°„ Y  3 =      
o - o       o.    

o 

Q  
o ' o  >'  '  E v    >  V X a   .;

p v     X n           N    N      C

J.     V — `~ L Z O
O- 

t-,  -
p O

N    
j 6  p 61       N    p v

V N —  l6 C vi  ( d ( 6
a-+   

4J

a +'

O N ''  _      
n C

U
Q O n       ' V N O C O O      U N           

N .C r6

Q Z E  o  °;     c '   o   `° .   ai  o 
a ax,  -   v p o o-   — o     

z ,,; a o   a o u' ,    -
o c c ' Y .,  >     .

6
a, -

a
E c  ' o a Q o-

c ^  L a.,i    `° ° 1 E    o  '  E a   a  ° E y° , oi .,  
a

a'      _ o `
o

a, a, .      _     L,    +•  _       v a Q v la Q v v - o Uco O     '-^L / p  Q ta   c >     c   N O N O C c c C

pl C  > 6   Y C   ' O tn

p     G N    O O   O
c  v

L
O O O          >  tv O V

N  
C 

c     o = a  E V oi 3        Q 3 0    v E o V a a co

a

a     Y, c o  - o

v v :=    a o      a ra a

O v  o iv Q O
3 Y .    _     

c a,  Q t
v .n 3 ,     v o 

ai v °' a, L o .' o     o o °  fl- a,

c    3  
a`  a     o vvi Y  

N O    U dl v
N  ._ 

iB N v V
Q    \   Q vQ1Ni      

vYi    Q   O  l/ 1

N       C V N      N 
U            

N NC C j Ol C v      
x ;  

a O O fo L
N V a-  

a+

i.    Ql N Q 
1

Q
i^ 

O O
L      p C    

3

y j..    
a-+     Q O     

4! c6 C
C ' J

t0 O V p  UJ

C

N O   -      >  O  
L  N   `     N

N v i  `   
C

V C x O

Z p    R N O Y   v CO  ° +     O

p    2  o    , 
3

a iL  , n

Y ro

Q   c v 

n. ' a a c    o
r,      

c          „

o E n a x c
rn ia      p a o     ; a _  

@     

G H O V   N     
y°  `^ x QJ pa V

c °' o N = - o     `^  c a p  
N a0  M v ca @  —  

O o     v --' ~  `^ — 
c      

r` j  p  - p N  ' ' p .    N    _  — ia

y n
N Q 4J .- - 6  in io -

6  p       N O
N O vi al     >. C vi Q

aL-+     O . t6   .`    C T    . - d

in U1
N   N

t6   . O-   C 7 O _ 6 C t'  ~ O vi
p C  Q      Q    Q   ( 6 N

v i N td C N

v     3  " `° `° °' ' a-i a N  , a       

o
a a m      > o

v a    ia  -   o p .. a - o E
c v o  -

a  a o    v    
v     

a a       
y

LT N     — ` 6 Q  ' N '
Y

t6 '   p    N   7 G1
X       

N io O N    ' U Ol     ] L2  6
UJ '      to O ro

v i

W
K 2  L  ' v Q vf6- O O  ra v Q a N

u

p Q a>

N

ti

N C
T i

Y = F    p v

toO •    N

N.    C
io  O      

vf   

U   
O  c c    n

d

3 pp =  Q
N  

Gl l. L

NO f,. j m   p ol ca .-• ic V
p       V L    - C  C J 2

S ca @ `. "'  , a  
v+ v O o

GO N
fl' 

6) O N a V  V

M 2   vl   2   Q V J

136



This page intentionally left blank.

Mitigation Monitoring ancl Reporting Program City of athrop
16 athrop CTF Surface Wat r Discharge Project

137



ATTACHMENT E

CITY OF LATHROP

PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 21- 6

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

MAKING A FINDING OF CONSISTENCY WITH THE GENERAL PLAN FOR THE

LATHROP CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY SURFACE WATER

DISCHARGE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT ( WW 20- 17)

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop Planning Commission held a duly noticed public meeting
to consider the Consolidated Treatment Facility Surface Water Discharge Capital Improvement
Project ( WW 20- 17); and

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop originally adopted a Comprehensive General Plan on
December 17, 1991, which has been updated from time to time and includes specific policies and
objectives for infrastructure, construction and maintenance of public facilities; and

WHEREAS,  pursuant to California Government Code Section 65401,  the Planning
Commission is required to review Capital Improvement Program to determine that it is consistent

with the City' s adopted General Plan; and

WHEREAS,  the environmental impacts of the Consolidated Treatment Facility Surface
Water Discharge Project were addressed in an Environmental Impact Report ( SCH # 2019110339)

certified by the City Council on March 8,  2021.  The City has determined that the potential
environmental effects of the project have been addressed in this certified EIR.

NO', THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission finds that the
CTF Surface Water Discharge Project is consistent with the City' s General Plan goal to provide
wastewater treatment plant capacity to accommodate buildout of the land uses contemplated in the
Land Use Element of the General Plan.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of Lathrop based
on substantial evidence in the administrative record of proceedings, its findings above and pursuant
to its independent review and consideration,  does hereby find that the proposed Consolidated
Treatment Facility Surface Water Discharge Project ( WW 20- 17), is consistent with the adopted City
of Lathrop General Plan.

Plannin Commission Resolution No. 21- 6 Pase 1 of 2

138



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Planning Commission of the City of Lathrop at a
Regular Meeting on the 17`" day of March, 2021 by the following vote:

AYES:   Dresser, Rhodes, Gatto, Ishihara

NOES:   None

ABSTAIN:     None

ABSENT:      Ralmilay

teve Dresser, Vice Chair

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

ark issner, Secretary Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Plannin Commission Resolution No. 21- 6 PaQe 2 of 2

139



140



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT
ITEM 3. 1

MARCH 22, 2021 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVE THE CREATION OF CAPITAL

IMPROVEMENT PRO] ECT GG 21- 11  -  CREATE THE

LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT,  IMPLEMENT THE

TRANSITION OF LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES

FROM THE COUNTY TO THE CITY AND AUTHORIZE

THE RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt a Resolution Approving the Creation of Capital
Improvement Project GG 21- 11 — Create the Lathrop
Police Department, Implement the Transition of Law

Enforcement Services and Authorize the Related

Budget Amendment

SUMMARY:

The City of Lathrop has contracted police services with the San Joaquin County
Sheriff' s Office  ( SJCSO)  since 1990.  Most recently,  Lathrop executed a five- year
contract with the SJCSO on April 17, 2017 that expires on June 30, 2022.  For 31

years, the SJCSO has implemented a community- based policing model that has very
successfully engaged the community and administered programs geared toward
reducing crime while meeting the goals of City Council. The community is grateful to
all the hardworking law enforcement men and women that have served Lathrop over
the years making the community a safe place to live, work and raise their families.

However,  in recent years,  the cost of the SJCSO police services has increased
annually with the current year' s budget rising to over $ 9 million for 28 sworn officers.

The cost increases are mainly due to the unusually high pension cost paid for each
officer and the ever- increasing officer startup costs.  For instance, we currently pay
approximately $ 2. 5 million in pension cost on the SJCSO contract for 28 officers.
Lathrop' s pension projections are $ 0. 5 million for 33 sworn positions.

At the same time, the new officer startup costs have gone up substantially over time.
In Fiscal Year ( FY) 13/ 14 the cost was $ 219, 000, in FY17/ 18 $ 294, 000 and FY20/ 21

355, 000. These startup costs are in addition to the annual officer cost, and while
the dollars are amortized over 15 years to lessen the impact, they are owed and
become part of the annual contract costs.

The proposed SJCSO contract for FY 2021/ 22 is estimated to be $ 9. 1 million to fund

28 sworn ofFicers.  The estimated cost of the new Lathrop Police Department is $ 8. 8

million, and includes 33 sworn officers and 13 non- sworn positions.  The table on the

following page will show a summary of costs and personnel.

A City Police Department will provide the community with more officers, a lower

budget, personalized services, and predictable costs. The Lathrop Police Department
will aim to produce an organization that would appeal to local applicants and seek to
recruit from within the community. Additional advantages will include promotional
opportunities within the department that will help to promote longevity within the
organization and in turn familiarity within the community.

141



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 2

MARCH 22, 2021 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

FORMATION OF LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT

r ..:.  .   .

r .  ;       a. a,.. ,: m_, A._  .  .

a _"   _. .

AnnualCost g, i3o, z49 8, 8z3, 8o6

Sworn Personnel 28 33

Non- Sworn Personnel o i3

Officer Start- Up Costs       $ 354, 763

Transition Costs 6, 460, 333

City Council and Staff have been working diligently for the past decade or so, on

achieving financial stability and are confident that today is the ideal time for Lathrop
to transition to a city police department.  We have evaluated all components of a
proper transition and estimate the costs at approximately $ 6. 5 million. These funds

are available in a combination of monies set aside in the Police Transition Fund,
General Fund and Measure C Fund.

Staff requests City Council consideration to authorize the creation of Capital
Improvement Project  ( CIP)  GG 21- 11  -  Create the Lathrop Police Department,
implement the transition of law enforcement services from the County to the City and
authorize a budget amendment of $ 6. 5 million.

BACKGROUND:

The City of Lathrop has contracted with the San Joaquin County Sheriff' s Office
SJCSO) since 1990.  Most recently, Lathrop executed a five- year contract with the

SJCSO on April 17, 2017 that expires on June 30, 2022. For 31 years, the SJCSO has
implemented a community- based policing model that has very successfully engaged
the community and administered programs geared toward reducing crime while
meeting the goals of City Council. The community is grateful to all the hardworking
law enforcement men and women that have served Lathrop over the years making
the community a safe place to live, work and raise their families.

In recent years, the cost of the SJCSO police services has increased annually with
the current year' s budget rising to over $ 9 million for 28 sworn ofFicers. The cost
increases are mainly due to the unusually high pension cost paid for each officer and
the ever- increasing officer startup costs.

In the past,   Council has directed police services reviews including possible
modifications of the San ] oaquin County' s contract,  contracting with other public
agencies for law enforcement services, review of pending development impacts on
current law enforcement activities and the feasibility of creating our own Department.
Those studies have laid the groundwork from which we will launch the formation of
a new City of Lathrop Police Department.

142



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 3

MARCH 22, 2021 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

FORMATION OF LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT

City Council and Staff have been working diligently for the past decade or so on
achieving financial stability and are confident that today is the ideal time for Lathrop
to transition to a city police department. Since 2010, Council has made difficult fiscal
decisions and held the line on stafFing requests to set Lathrop up for the success it
has reached today. Council has routinely set aside funds for unforeseeable events
that prepared the City to effectively endure difficult conditions without affecting its
structure and core services.

An example of the forward- thinking actions of the Council could be seen in the
creation of the Fiscal Stabilization Reserve to accommodate for unforeseen economic

uncertainties associated with the coronavirus pandemic.  Through this action the

Council was able to set aside $ 1. 5 million to establish a fund that could be used to

I mitigate the economic ambiguity associated with the coronavirus pandemic. The City
has managed to maintain this balance throughout the pandemic by working within
their means and adopting a mindset of constant improvement through workflow
efficiencies. Additionally, Council has set aside funds in a Public Safety Reserve, to
be used to one day assist with the funding of a City Police Department.   These

efficiencies are warranted to be built upon, and that is the structure in which the

Lathrop Police Department will come to fruition.

The full funding of the project will allow the City Manager to establish the Police
Department. With the project in place, City Staff will be well positioned to implement
the City Council' s decision to form the Lathrop Police Department.

The start- up costs associated with the transition to creating the Lathrop Police
Department are outlined in the table below:

I 9 i i/: 

I•'     
r   • i i ,    +; i     

Hiring Costs 947, 000

Officer Overlap Costs ( 1) 3. 458, 22

Non- S vom Police Staff 436, 590

Non- Sworn Other DeparUuent Staff 402,? 21

Other Costs 90, 800

Total 5, 334, 933

Equipment 725, 400

Dispatch & Records Equipment, Sofnvare, 400, 000

Transition Costs

Total 1, 125, 400

Total Transition Costs 6, 460, 333

1) Officer Cost are estimated at Step 5 and with family health care premiums.  Depending on what
kind of officer hired ( new recruit, academy grad or lateral), number could be lower.

143



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 4

MARCH 22, 2021 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING
FORMATION OF LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT

While the startup costs are significant, the ability to control costs in the future will
justify the return on the initial investment.  The cost benefit analysis on pension

benefits further clarifies the need to transition to a City run police department. The
County retirement system currently marks up sworn personnel salary between 81%-
99% ( based on the officer tier). The City has been quoted by CALPERS ( the City' s

pension provider) a rate of 13. 66% of salary for a new Safety Plan. Currently, the

City pays for 5 Officers in the County Tier II ( PEPRA), 10 Officers in County Tier I ( no

Cola) and 15 Officers in County Tier I ( other), which is higher than Tier II but lower

than Tier I ( no Cola).  See table below for details:

A t r
H R

a„    

s   . S.,

ec

4 F   ....,     ._. 

v. auu.

d §.. _..  ,+... n.  c.._._ Y... .., 1 t. vc,.. vv. ivae ui... a< <..,   _.`. 3.. e. wt..      ._       . 

Tierl Tierll

Tier I( No Cola)+ 5% Tier II( PEPRA)+ 5%   PEPRA vs City vs City

FiscalYear

13/ 14 17/ i8 so/Zi i3/ 14 17/ i8 zo/ Zi

Percent 67. 33%     85. 08%    99. 5%       5. 81%   68. 58%   8. 74%       3. 66%

Officer 59, 546    $ 75, 244    $ 87, 687     $ 45, 8zo  $ 6o, 65i   $ 7z, z90       $ 14, 346       $ 73, 341 57, 944

Sergeant s98, 296   $ 124, 209   $ 144, 75     17, 215      $ 127, 535

Lieutenant     $ isz,s54 siqi,7zi   $ 165, i58 21, 451      $ 143, 707

Chief 12g, ogo Ss63, iu   $igo, o97 z4, 73o      $ i65, 367

Total FY zi/ z County Pension Cost are S2. 5m Annual City Pension Cost wil) be So. Sm.

The proposed SJCSO contract for FY 2021/ 22 is estimated to be $ 9. 1 million to fund

28 sworn officers.  The estimated cost of the new Lathrop Police Department is $ 8. 8

million, and includes 33 sworn officers and 13 non- sworn position.   The non- sworn

staff will include multiple community services officers, records personnel and a crime
analyst, to name a few. These positons will further help Lathrop residents with quality
of life issues that may not meet the threshold for a sworn staffing response.

144



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 5

MARCH 22, 2021 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

FORMATION OF LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT

N

r-,,  , 

Chief i i

Lieutenants s z

Sergeants z 6

Detectives z

Officers ( 1)   zz 2z

Total Sworn 28 33

Non- Sworn PD ( z)  3 7

Non- Sworn City ( 3) 0 6

Total 31 46

i)  Includes Patrol, CIT, CRO, SRO, Kg& Motor.

z)  Includes CSO, Crime Analyst and Records

personnel.
3)  Includes IT, Payroll, and HR personnel.

Another area of significant savings over the current San Joaquin County contract is
in the startup costs associated with hiring new sworn stafF.  The County charges

355, 000 in startup costs for each new officer regardless of whether it is a new
recruit, academy grad or a lateral from another agency. The charge is amortized over
15 years. When adding officers to the force, this dramatically inflates the financial
obligation owed on the contract.

The fully burdened costs to provide sworn staffing through the County contract are
significantly higher than a City officer. Currently, a fully burden County officer at top
step costs the City about $ 216, 190, that same officer takes home about $ 86, 800

annually.   A fully burden proposed Lathrop ofFicer at top step would cost the City
about $ 151, 500 and the officer would take home about $ 105, 000 annually.   The

higher County costs are further compounded by County overhead and administration
costs. These overhead costs are questionable under current state law and have driven
the county agreement cost higher and higher.  In the current budget they have
amounted to more than $ 400, 000 per year.   Because the City' s pension cost will be
significantly lower than what is currently paid, we will be able to ofFer a higher take
home salary in the hopes of attracting qualified and experienced officers.

145



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 6

MARCH 22, 2021 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

FORMATION OF LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT

Establishment of the Lathrop Police Department will also bring other benefits that are
less measurable.  For example,  staff anticipates improved coordination with code

enforcement,  animal control,  Lathrop- Manteca Fire and other City services.  In a

similar manner, a municipal police department will also provide the public with better
access to police services since there would be a Police Chief reporting directly to the
City Manager in the City. This differs from the current reporting model, where the

assigned Sheriff' s Office staff has a chain of command within the Sheriff' s Office and

City Hall.

Staff requests City Council consideration to authorize the creation of Capital
Improvement Project  ( CIP)  GG 21- 11  -  Create the Lathrop Police Department,
Implement the transition of law enforcement services from the County to the City
and authorize a budget amendment of $6. 5 million.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

With Lathrop' s economy and population continuing to grow, there comes a time when
moving forward with our own police department makes economic sense.  A City Police
Department will provide the community with more officers,  a lower budget,

personalized services, and predictable costs.  Any one of these reasons are legitimate
enough to start our own Department,  but with all of them in play it has become
apparent that right now is the optimal time to start the transition. The City' s tax base
and development activity have become solid indicators that Lathrop is poised for
starting its own Police Department to provide the community the high level of service
that they have come to expect from City Hall. For those reasons, Staff recommends

the City Council authorize the formation of a project to start a municipal police
department, and direct the city manager to immediately begin implementation.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Start- up costs for the Lathrop Police Department are estimated at $ 6. 5 million. Staff

has identified sufficient existing funding sources to seed the proposed project
formation. The General Fund funding sources identified include $ 3. 25 million from

development collected police startup costs, fund balance that had previously been
committed to public safety reserves and one- time sales tax revenues that have been
collected in the current fiscal year. The remaining $ 3. 25 million will come from the

Measure C Fund and will include Measure C public safety reserves and Measure C
unassigned fund balance.

ATTACHMENTS:

Resolution

146



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 7

MARCH 22, 2021 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

FORMATION OF LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT

APPROVALS:

3 19' 21

Thomas Hedegard Date

Deputy Finance Director

f..

s,       
L:

Cari Jame.s Date

Director of inance and

Administ   ive Services

I   - o- I
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

3• • 2DZ1
ephen Salvatore Date

City Manager

147



RESOLUTION NO. 21-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING THE CREATION OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT GG 21- i1

CREATE THE LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT, IMPLEMENT THE

TRANSITION OF LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FROM THE COUNTY TO THE

CITY AND AUTHORIZE THE RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

WHEREAS,  the City of Lathrop proposes to provide police services to its
residents and businesses through a transition process that will establish the Lathrop
Police Department; and

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop has contracted police services with the San
Joaquin County Sheriff' s Office ( SJCSO) since 1990. Most recently, Lathrop executed
a five- year contract with the SJCSO on April 17, 2017 that expires on June 30, 2022;
and

WHEREAS, for 31 years, the SJCSO has implemented a community- based
policing model that has very successfully engaged the community and administered
programs geared toward reducing crime while meeting the goals of City Council. The
community is grateful to all the hardworking law enforcement men and women that
have served Lathrop over the years making the community a safe place to live, work
and raise their families; and

WHEREAS, new officer startup costs have gone up substantially over time. In
Fiscal Year ( FY)  13/ 14 the cost was $ 219, 000,  in FY17/ 18 $ 294, 000 and FY20/ 21

355, 000. These startup costs are in addition to the annual officer cost; and

WHEREAS, the proposed SJCSO contract for FY 2021/ 22 is estimated to be
9. 1 million to fund 28 sworn officers.  The estimated cost of the new Lathrop Police

Department is  $ 8. 8 million,  and includes 33 sworn officers and 13 non- sworn

positions; and

WHEREAS, the City Council and Staff have been working diligently for the
past decade or so on achieving financial stability and are confident that today is the
ideal time for Lathrop to transition to a city police department. We have evaluated
all components of a proper transition and estimate the costs at approximately $ 6. 5

million; and

WHEREAS, with Lathrop' s economy and population continuing to grow, there
comes a time when moving forward with our own police department makes economic
sense.   A City Police Department will provide the community with more offiicers, a
lower budget, personalized services, and predictable costs; and

148



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop hereby approves the creation of Capital Improvement Project ( CIP) GG 21-

11  -  Create the Lathrop Police Department,  Implement the transition of law

enforcement services from the County to the City and authorize the following budget
amendment of $ 6. 5 million:

Increase Transfer Out

1010- 9900- 990- 9010 3, 250, 000

1060- 9900- 990- 9010 3, 250, 000

Increase Transfer In

3010- 9900- 393- 0000 GG21- 11 6, 500, 000

Increase Expenditures

3010- 8000- 420- 0100 GG21- 11 6, 500, 000

Decrease Reserve

1010- 202- 1400 - Police Start Up 400, 000

1010- 251- 0500 - Public Safety Reserve 900, 000

1010- 253- 0000 - General Fund Reserve 1, 950, 000

1060- 253- 0000 - Public Safety Reserve 205, 500

1060- 253- 0000 - Measure C Reserve 3, 044, 500

149



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 22" d
day of March, 2021, by

the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

150


	2021-03-22 City Council Special Meeting Agenda
	2021-03-22 Item 2.2 Approve LCTF Surface Water Discharge CIP WW 20-17
	2021-03-22 Item 3.1 Approve Creation of CIP GG 21-11 Create Lathrop Police Dept., Implement Transition of Law Enfo Svcs from County to City



